
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Please note that by law this meeting can be filmed, audio-
recorded, photographed or reported electronically by the use 
of social media by anyone attending.  This does not apply to 
any part of the meeting that is held in private session. 

Please ask for: 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
 
 
 

9 January 2018 
 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of the WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SOCIAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be held on Wednesday 
17 January 2018 at 7.30pm in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, The Campus, 
Welwyn Garden City, Herts, AL8 6AE. 
 

 
Yours faithfully 

 
Executive Director 
Public Protection, Planning and Governance 
 

A G E N D A 
PART 1 

 
 
SECTION A - PROCEDURAL BUSINESS AND POLICY REVIEW AND DEVELOPMENT 
ITEMS. 
 

1.   SUBSTITUTION OF MEMBERS  
 

 To note any substitution of Committee Members in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rules 19 – 22. 
 

2.   APOLOGIES  
 

3.   MINUTES  
 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 11 October 2017 
(previously circulated).  
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

4.   ACTIONS UPDATE (Pages 5 - 6) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Public Protection, Planning and Governance) on 
the status of actions agreed at the last meeting. 
 

5.   NOTIFICATION OF URGENT BUSINESS TO BE CONSIDERED UNDER ITEM 17  
 

6.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BY MEMBERS  
 

 To note declarations of Members’ disclosable pecuniary interests, non-disclosable 
pecuniary interests and non-pecuniary interests in respect of items on this Agenda.  
 

7.   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME AND PETITIONS  
 

 Up to fifteen minutes will be made available for questions from members of the 
public on issues relating to the work of the Committee and to receive any petitions. 
 

8.   SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK AND SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN 
POLICIES (Pages 7 - 30) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) seeking endorsement 
of proposed new policies. 
 

9.   COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS ANNUAL REPORT 2017 (Pages 31 - 
38) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) on the partnership’s 
successful work in 2017. 
 

10.   PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER (Pages 39 - 140) 
 

 Report of the Executive Director (Housing and Communities) providing an update 
following the consultation about an order in Hatfield Town Centre and seeking 
approval to a draft order. 
 

11.   COMMITTEE OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 (Pages 141 - 142) 
 

 The pro-forma which sets out the Committee’s overview work programme has 
been updated since the last meeting to enable forward planning of items to be 
considered to take place. Items which the Committee agrees it would like to 
consider will be scheduled into the work programme. 
 

12.   RESPONSE FROM CABINET TO RECOMMENDATIONS FROM OVERVIEW 
AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

 There are no responses to report to this meeting. 
 
 
 



 
SECTION B - SCRUTINY ITEMS - EXECUTIVE MEMBERS ARE EXCLUDED FROM 
THIS PART OF THE MEETING. 
 

13.   CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS FOR SCRUTINY  
 

 To consider 
 
(1) whether any Cabinet decisions should be scrutinised post-implementation 

(Paragraph 14.1 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules)  
 

(2) whether any items which relate to areas covered by the Committee which a 
member of the Committee may wish to raise with a view to deciding whether 
an issue should be scrutinised. 

 

14.   COMMITTEE SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18  
 

 The pro-forma which sets out the Committee’s scrutiny work programme is 
attached to enable forward planning of items to be considered to take place as 
appropriate. 
 

15.   RESPONSE FROM CABINET/COUNCIL TO SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS/ 
REPORTS  
 

 There are no responses to report to this meeting. 
 

16.   COUNCILLOR CALL FOR ACTION  
 

 To receive any request from a Councillor for a discussion on behalf of residents on 
an issue affecting a single council ward where local problems have arisen and 
other methods of resolution have been exhausted. 
 

17.   SUCH OTHER BUSINESS AS, IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIRMAN, IS OF 
SUFFICIENT URGENCY TO WARRANT IMMEDIATE CONSIDERATION  
 

18.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 The Committee is asked to resolve: 
 

That under Section 100(A)(2) and (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be now excluded from the meeting for item 19 (if any) on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of confidential or exempt information as defined 
in Section 100A(3) and Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the said Act (as amended).  
 

In resolving to exclude the public in respect of the exempt information, it is 
considered that the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information.  
 

 
 
 
 
 



PART II - PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL ITEMS 
 

19.   ANY OTHER BUSINESS OF A CONFIDENTIAL OR EXEMPT NATURE AT THE 
DISCRETION OF THE CHAIRMAN  

 
Circulation: Councillors D.Bennett (Chairman) 

B.Fitzsimon (Vice-Chairman) 
T.Bailey 
L.Brandon 
A.Chesterman 
L.Chesterman 
 

J.Cragg 
P.Mabbott 
T.Mitchinson 
F.Thomson 
K.Thorpe 
 

  T.Kingsbury (Executive Member for Policy and Culture) 
 

 Tenants’ Panel Representatives 
D.Goodson and B.Rhodes 

 
 Executive Board 

Press and Public (except Part II Items) 
 
If you require any further information about this Agenda please contact Gurdip 
Paddan, Governance Services Unit on 01707 357349 or email – 
g.paddan@welhat.gov.uk / democracy@welhat.gov.uk  
 
 

mailto:g.paddan@welhat.gov.uk
mailto:democracy@welhat.gov.uk


Part I 
Item No: 4 
Main author: Gurdip Paddan 
Executive Member: Councillor Roger Trigg  
Not Specific Ward  

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SOCIAL OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 17 JANUARY 2018 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (PUBLIC PROTECTION, PLANNING 
AND GOVERNANCE) 

ACTIONS STATUS REPORT 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 In order to ensure that actions identified at meetings are completed, this 
report lists the actions from the meeting on 22 November 2017, those 
responsible for completing each action and its current status. 

2 Recommendation(s) 

2.1 That Members note the status of actions which were identified at the meeting 
of this Committee on 22 November 2017. 

Minute Action Responsible Status/ 
Date Completed 

 
11 

 
Update work 
programme 

 
Gurdip Paddan 

 
Updated and circulated 

 
13 

 
Prepare response 
to the PSPO 
consultation to be 
recommended to 
Cabinet. 

 
Sian Chambers 

 
Report submitted to this meeting 

 
13 

 
Committee visit to 
Finesse Leisure 
sites  

 
Paul Underwood 

 
To be arranged early 2018 

 
20 

 
Repair to the visitor 
car park at the King 
George V Playing 
Fields. 

 
Paul Underwood 

 
Following a request from Members, 
regarding a repair needed to the car 
park surface at the King George V 
Playing Fields, the Council’s Corporate 
Property service has confirmed it will 
arrange for this to be completed by the 
approved contractor as soon as 
possible. 

 
20 

 
Changing Facilities 
at Hatfield Swim 
Centre 

 
Paul Underwood 

 
Photographs to be circulated at the 
meeting 
 

. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Main author: Simone Chinman Russell 
Executive Member: Darren Bennett 
Wards: All 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SOCIAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE –17 JANUARY 2018 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
  
SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK POLICY 
SAFEGUARDING CHILREN POLICY 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to present to Social Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee two new draft safeguarding policies, the Safeguarding Adults at Risk 
Policy and the Safeguarding Children Policy. 

1.2 The proposed new policies are in line with current legislation and follow the 
recommendations made by the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults 
and Safeguarding Children Boards.    

1.3 Once approved the policies will replace the council’s and the housing trust’s 
respective existing safeguarding policies. 

2 Recommendation(s)  

2.1 That Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee endorses the new safeguarding 
policies and recommends their approval to Cabinet. 

3 Explanation 

3.1 Following the re-integration of the Housing Service back into the council in 
February 2017 a new council-wide Safeguarding Steering Group has been 
created with the aim of reviewing current arrangements for managing 
safeguarding and developing a new standardised approach across the council.   

 
3.2 The Safeguarding Steering Group has developed two revised policies which will 

replace the previously published policies for Welwyn Hatfield Community 
Housing Trust and Welwyn Hatfield Council.  The proposed new policies are fully 
compliant with legislative requirements.  

 
3.4 The proposed new safeguarding policies provide a framework for ensuring that 

our commitment towards protecting vulnerable individuals is reflected in our 
interactions with customers and our employees.   

 
3.5 The policies explain how we will approach safeguarding issues and what 

measures we will take where concerns have been identified.  The policies each 
provide definitions of the various types of abuse and they make reference to 
other linked strategies and policies which have previously been adopted by the 
council. 
 

3.6 A comprehensive set of operational procedures have been produced alongside 
these policies.  These will be made available on the council’s intranet and a 
range of training sessions are in progress to communicate clearly to employees 

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



- 2 - 

what is expected of them, depending on their particular job roles.  In addition a 

Members’ briefing is also being planned. 
 

3.7 In recognition of the fact that safeguarding issues are addressed effectively when 
carried out in partnership with others, the policies make regular reference to the 
other organisations we work with and the principles of effective and safe 
partnership working.    
  

4 Financial Implication(s) 
 

4.1 The Safeguarding policies will be implemented within existing service budgets. 

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 The proposed new policies are compliant with the following legislation: 

Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy: Care Act 2014; Mental Capacity Act 2005; 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 2008. 
 
Safeguarding Children Policy: United Nations Convention on the Rights of the 
Child, 1989; Childrens Acts 1989 and 2004 

 
6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 These policies set out the council’s approach to mitigate the risks posed to 
vulnerable adults and the children in our communities.   

6.2 Failure to raise staff/Member awareness of safeguarding issues and how to 
address them and failure to have appropriate procedures in place to report 
suspected safeguarding issues will create a risk not only to the adults and 
children involved, but also carries significant reputational risk to the council.  
These policies cover the above issues and such their approval and subsequent 
implementation will mitigate this risk. 

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 Both of these policies set out the council’s commitment to following government 
 guidelines in relation to the PREVENT (anti-radicalisation) initiative.  As such 
 there will be a positive impact in relation to the threat of terrorism. 

 
8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no direct procurement implications associated with this 
 recommendation. 
 
9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this recommendation. 
 
10 Link to Corporate Priorities 

  

Page 8



- 3 - 

10.1 The subject of this report is linked specifically to the Council’s Corporate 
 Priorities: 
 

Maintain a safe and healthy community by 

 Working with partners to keep people safe 

 Helping to improve and maintain the health and wellbeing of residents. 
 

11 Equality and Diversity 
 

11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) was carried out on 5 January 2017.   
(Outcome to be shared with the Committee Members at the meeting) 
   

Name of author Simone Chinman Russell 
 
Title   Executive Director, Housing and Communities 
Date   3 January 2018 

 
Attached: Appendix 1 Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy 
  Appendix 2 – Safeguarding Children Policy 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

v.4 
1 

 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is committed to the safeguarding of vulnerable 

people. This policy sets out our approach to ensuring that the people we work with and 
provide services to have the chance to live a life free from harm, exploitation and 
abuse, have their rights protected and are able live in an environment where they can 
realise their full potential.  

 
 Our council recognises the key role it plays within the borough, working alongside 

other agencies, to ensure the wellbeing of residents. We will be proactive in 
encouraging and supporting local public services and partner agencies to do the same 
in safeguarding adults. 

 
 Our approach to safeguarding is led from the top of the council, and this is reflected by 

the high-level membership of our corporate Safeguarding Steering Group.  The work of 
the steering group includes safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.  The group’s 
membership includes the Executive Director for Housing and Communities, the Lead 
Member for Sports and Heads of Service drawn from all areas of the council.   

 
 The Steering Group takes the strategic lead on safeguarding within the council, and is 

responsible for developing and reviewing the council’s safeguarding policies and, 
through their implementation, ensuring the council meets it’s legal and moral 
obligations.  Importantly the steering group makes sure that safeguarding is embedded 
across all areas of our organisation and that employees and elected members are 
clear about the council’s commitment and responsibility to safeguard those vulnerable 
members in our communities. 

  
  
 

 

 

 Cllr Darren Bennett      Simone Chinman Russell 
         Lead Member, Sports      Executive Director, 
         Housing & Communities  

Page 11



 

v.4 
2 

 

2. VALUES AND PRINCIPLES 

 
 The purpose of this policy is to set out the council’s approach to safeguarding adults 

and promoting their welfare.  It provides a strategic framework for the procedures 
which the council has adopted to ensure that we deliver on our commitment in a 
consistent way across the organisation. 

 
 Our approach to safeguarding adults links to our corporate priorities, which includes a 

commitment to maintain a safe and healthy community, to be achieved by  
 

 Working with partners to keep people safe  

 Helping to improve and maintain the health and wellbeing of residents 

 The council has a set of core values. Our values demonstrate what is important to us 
in our dealings with residents, businesses, partners and employees. 

2.1. Our Values 

 Integrity: We will be honest, clear and consistent about what we do 

 Transparency: We will be approachable, accountable and transparent in the way we 
communicate and conduct our business 

 Respect: We will have respect for residents, businesses, partners and 
employees 

 Fairness: We will fair in our policies and decision making, listening to the views 
and feedback we receive 

2.2. The six principles of safeguarding 
 

This policy is based on six principles, which together drive our approach to 
safeguarding. These are: 

 
1. Empowerment – presumption of person-led decisions and informed consent. 
2. Prevention – it is better to take action before harm occurs. 
3. Proportionality – proportionate and least intrusive response appropriate to the risk 

presented. 
4. Protection – support and representation for those in greatest need. 
5. Partnership – local solutions through services working with their communities, who 

have a part to play in preventing, detecting and reporting neglect and abuse. 
6. Accountability – responsibility and transparency in delivering safeguarding. 

 
 For adults at risk of abuse and neglect this means that they will: 

 

 be asked about what outcomes they want from the safeguarding process and 
these outcomes directly inform the action taken as appropriate; 

 receive simple and clear information about what abuse is, how to recognise the 
signs and where to seek help and support; 

 be assured that professionals are working in their interest and will only get 
involved when needed; 

 receive help and support to report abuse and neglect and that they can take part 
freely, as much as they want, in the safeguarding process; 

Page 12



 

v.4 
3 

 

 know and understand that professionals will work together to get the best result to 
support them; 

 understand the role of everyone supporting them. 
 

 Our council is an extended partner of the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Adults Board 
(HSAB). Our Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy has been developed in line with the 
HSAB County wide guidance, Safeguarding Adults at Risk: The multi-agency policy, 
procedure and practice for working with adults at risk of abuse and neglect in 
Hertfordshire 2017.  

 
2.3. Making safeguarding personal 
 
 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council will always aim to make safeguarding personal so 

that it is person led and outcome focused. This will be done by engaging the adult at 
risk in the decision making process to improve their quality of life, wellbeing and safety.  

 
 We provide a range of support services to adults. To ensure adults at risk are 

safeguarded, we will actively seek to make communities safer by identifying and 
responding to any signs of abuse, neglect and suspected criminal offences.  

 
 The council will also work with adults at risk of abuse and neglect to ensure they are 

aware of the support options available to them, taking care to consult with them fully 
before any action is taken. The only situation where consultation will not take place is 
where reasonable justification is evidenced to suggest that the adult may not have the 
personal capacity to make any decisions or actions in their own best interest.  

  
 We will also ensure that any support offered is carried out in partnership with relevant 

agencies and that a collective approach is taken to provide this.  
 
 The core aims of developing a culture of safeguarding adults is to prevent abuse and 

neglect wherever possible, whilst promoting an approach that focuses on improving life 
for the adults concerned. To do this, awareness must be raised so that communities, 
alongside professionals, play their part in preventing, recognising and responding to 
abuse and neglect.  

 
3. DEFINITIONS 
 
 For the purpose of this policy the following definitions have been adopted: 
 
3.1. Who is an adult at risk?  
 
 An adult at risk of abuse and neglect is any person aged 18 years or over who:  

 
- has perceived needs for care and support; 
- is experiencing or is at risk of abuse and neglect; 
- as a result of a person’s needs they are unable to protect him/herself against abuse 

or neglect, or the risk of it. 
 

3.2.  What is abuse? 
 
 The Department of Health defines abuse as “a violation of an individual’s human and 

civil rights by another person or persons”. This can be recurrent and frequent or can be 
a single incident. 

  

Page 13



 

v.4 
4 

 

 
3.3. Categories of abuse 
 
 There is no exhaustive list of what constitutes abuse.  The most commonly occurring 

types of abuse includes: 
 

 Physical abuse – including assault, hitting, slapping, pushing, kicking, misuse of 
medication, restraint or inappropriate sanctions on the person. 

 Domestic abuse – including psychological, physical, sexual, financial and 
emotional abuse.  

 Honour-based abuse - a crime or incident which has or may have been 
committed to protect or defend the honour of the family and/or community. 

 Female genital mutilation - a range of procedures which involve partial or total 
removal of the external female genitalia for non-medical reasons. 

 Forced marriage - a marriage conducted without the valid consent of one or both 
parties and where duress is a contributing factor. 

 Sexual abuse - including rape and sexual assault or sexual acts to which the 
adult at risk has not consented, or could not consent or was pressured into 
consenting, indecent exposure, sexual harassment, inappropriate looking or 
touching, sexual teasing or innuendo, sexual photography, subjection to 
pornography, witnessing sexual acts or subjected to indecent exposure. 

 Psychological/emotional abuse - including emotional abuse, threats of harm or 
abandonment, deprivation of contact, humiliation, blaming, controlling, 
intimidation, coercion, harassment, verbal abuse, cyber abuse, isolation or 
unreasonable and unjustifiable withdrawal of services or supportive networks. 

 Financial or material abuse - including theft, fraud, internet scamming, coercion 
in relation to an adult’s financial affairs or arrangements, including in connection 
with wills, property, inheritance or financial transactions, or the misuse or 
misappropriation of property, possessions or benefits. 

 Modern slavery – encompasses slavery including human trafficking, forced 
labour, debt bondage, sexual exploitation, criminal exploitation and domestic 
servitude. 

 Discriminatory abuse – including forms of harassment, personal slurs or similar 
treatment because of race, gender and gender identity, age, disability, sexual 
orientation or religion. 

 Organisational abuse - including neglect and poor care practice within an 
institution or specific care setting such as a hospital or care home, or in relation to 
care provided in one’s own home. 

 Neglect and acts of omission - including ignoring medical, emotional or physical 
care needs, failure to provide access to appropriate health, care and support or 
educational services, the withholding of the necessities of life, such as medication, 
adequate nutrition, clothing and heating. 

 Self-neglect – a wide range of behaviour neglecting to care for one’s personal 
hygiene, health or surroundings and includes behaviour such as hoarding. 

 Radicalisation – the process by which a person comes to support terrorism and 
extremist ideologies associated with terrorist groups. 

 Hate crime – a crime (or threat of harm) directed towards an individual on the 
basis of their protected characteristics including race, gender, sexual orientation, 
and disability. 

 
 Abuse and neglect take many different forms and may be identified as potential 

criminal activity. In any case abuse and neglect will not be tolerated and any 
suspected criminal activity will be reported appropriately.  

 

Page 14



 

v.4 
5 

 

4.  HOW THE LAW PROTECTS ADULTS 
 

4.1. Care Act 2014  
 

 The Care Act 2014 sets out a clear legal framework for local authorities and other 
statutory agencies on how to protect adults with care and support needs at risk of 
abuse or neglect. It encompasses the need for professionals to: prevent care needs 
becoming serious; inform and advise adults on making good decisions about their care 
and support; and also outlines the duty for professionals to cooperate with each other 
in order to protect adults. The Care Act 2014 is designed to transform adult social care 
by ensuring greater multi-agency collaboration as directed by the Hertfordshire 
Safeguarding Adults Board. This gives Hertfordshire County Council (as the local 
authority) responsibility for: 

 

 promoting individual well-being;  

 preventing needs for care and support; 

 promoting integration of care and support within health services; 

 providing information and advice; 

 promoting diversity and equality in provision of services.  
 

 As a partner of Hertfordshire County Council, Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council must 
co-operate with Hertfordshire County Council with any enquiries they make into an 
adult at risk, where Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is providing them with a service. 

 
4.2. Mental Capacity Act 2005  

 
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 provides a framework to empower and protect people 
who may lack capacity to make some decisions for themselves, or who have capacity 
and want to make preparations for a time when they may lack capacity in the future.  

 
Someone who lacks capacity, due to an illness or disability (such as a mental health 
problem, dementia or a learning disability) may have one or more of the following 
issues: 

 

 cannot understand information given to them in order to make a particular decision; 

 cannot retain that information long enough to be able to make the decision; 

 cannot use or weigh up the information to make the decision;  

 have difficulty in communicating their decision.  
 

The Mental Capacity Act 2005 defines who can take decisions, when they can take 
them and how they should go about it. This is regardless of whether it is a major 
decision such as those about personal finance, social care or medical treatment or an 
everyday decision, such as what an individual has to eat or wear. The underlying 
philosophy of the Mental Capacity Act 2005  is to ensure that those who lack capacity 
are empowered to make as many decisions for themselves as possible and that any 
decision made, or action taken, on their behalf is made in their best interests and 
protects them from harm. People may go through stages where they have capacity at 
particular points in time and then may lack capacity at other times depending on their 
circumstance. Some people may also have the capacity to make particular decisions in 
some areas of their life but not in others, for example being able to decide what to eat 
and wear but not being able to decide what medical treatment to take.  

  
  

Page 15



 

v.4 
6 

 

 
4.3. Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards 2008  

 
The Mental Capacity Act 2005 and Deprivations of Liberty Safeguards (MCA DoLS) 
will protect people who need to be cared for in a restrictive way and cannot make 
decisions about their care or treatment. MCA DoLS must be used if people need to 
have their liberty taken away in order to receive care and/or treatment that is in their 
best interests and protects them from harm. The Government are currently reviewing 
the DoLS legislation, with an update to be provided in March 2016 (need to update this 
section). 

 
5. SAFER RECRUITMENT 
 
5.1. Employing and maintaining safer staff 
 
 We are committed to safer recruitment and will take reasonable steps to ensure that 

staff working with adults are safe to do so. Posts will be appropriately assessed to 
determine their level of contact with adults at risk.  

 
 Where required we will vet potential employees using the Disclosure and Barring 

Service (DBS) to support safer recruitment decisions and prevent unsuitable people 
from working with at risk groups. There are three types of checks which can be 
conducted: 

 
- Standard check - this will check for spent and unspent convictions, cautions, 

reprimands and final warnings.  
- Enhanced DBS check - the same as the standard check plus any additional 

information held by local police which is reasonably considered relevant to the 
post being applied for.  

- Enhanced with list checks – same as the enhanced check, but includes a check of 
the DBS Barred lists.  

 
 All disclosures for unsupervised work with adults at risk, that meet the definition of 

regulated work, will be at an enhanced level. 
 
 Additionally, all individuals recruited to Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council undergo pre-

employment referencing covering a three year period. 
  
 Further information on the Recruitment Process and pre-employment checks can be 

found in the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Recruitment Policy. 
 
5.2. Training for staff and Members 
 
 Council employees will be trained appropriately for their level of contact with adults to 

be able to recognise abuse and neglect, along with how to raise concerns using the 
agreed internal reporting procedures. There are two levels of safeguarding adults at 
risk awareness training to accommodate staff with infrequent contact (level 1) and 
those staff with regular and intensive contact (level 2). In addition to this all new staff 
will receive a brief awareness session as part of the Corporate Induction designed to 
welcome new staff.  

 
 Additionally, Members will receive an appropriate level of briefing to ensure that they 

fully understand their responsibilities.  
 
  

Page 16



 

v.4 
7 

 

5.3.  Contracted services 
 
 In line with the core standards set out by the HSAB, we will ensure that in any services 

we commission, safeguarding adults’ standards are in place. We will monitor the ability 
of the contracted provider to meet these standards through the contact/compliance 
monitoring process.  This includes ensuring that: 

 
- Commissioned services know about, and adhere to, relevant safeguarding adults at 

risk guidance. 
- Senior managers of commissioned services are aware of their leadership role in 

ensuring quality of the service provided; supervision and support of staff; and 
responding to concerns about an adult at risk. 

- Service users and carers are provided with relevant safeguarding information. 
- The views of the adults at risk are taken into account on any action to be taken, with 

their consent given. 
- Full name and job title of the staff member raising the concern and making the 

record is declared. 
 
6. SHARING INFORMATION WITH OTHERS 

 
 We are committed to working with our partners to ensure information is not withheld 

unnecessarily as this may lead to abuse and neglect not being dealt with in a timely 
manner. The seven golden rules for information sharing must be considered when 
sharing information to protect adults at risk.  

 
 The seven golden rules are: 
 

1. Remember that the Data Protection Act 1998 and human rights law are not 
barriers to justified information sharing, but provide a framework to ensure that 
personal information about living individuals is shared appropriately. 

 
2. Be open and honest with the individual (and/or their family where appropriate) 

from the outset about why, what, how and with whom information will, or could 
be shared, and seek their agreement, unless it is unsafe or inappropriate to do 
so. 

 
3. Seek advice from other practitioners if you are in any doubt about sharing the 

information concerned, without disclosing the identity of the individual where 
possible. 

 
4. Share with informed consent where appropriate and, where possible, respect the 

wishes of those who do not consent to share confidential information. You may 
still share information without consent if, in your judgement, there is good reason 
to do so, such as where safety may be at risk. You will need to base your 
judgement on the facts of the case. When you are sharing or requesting 
personal information from someone, be certain of the basis upon which you are 
doing so. Where you have consent, be mindful that an individual might not 
expect information to be shared. 

 
5. Consider safety and well-being: Base your information sharing decisions on 

considerations of the safety and well-being of the individual and others who may 
be affected by their actions. 

 

Page 17



 

v.4 
8 

 

6. Necessary, proportionate, relevant, adequate, accurate, timely and secure: 
Ensure that the information you share is necessary for the purpose for which you 
are sharing it, is shared only with those individuals who need to have it, is 
accurate and up-to-date, is shared in a timely fashion, and is shared securely. 

 
7. Keep a record of your decision and the reasons for it – whether it is to share 

information or not. If you decide to share, then record what you have shared, 
with whom and for what purpose. 

 
 The Data Protection Act 1998 and General Data Protection Duty 2018 provide a 

framework to ensure that personal information about living persons is shared 
appropriately. 

 
 Consent will be shared where appropriate and the well-being of the customer will 

always be considered when deciding whether to share information. 
 
 Data sharing decisions will be based on the consideration of the safety and wellbeing 

of the person and others who may be affected by their actions. 
 
 Our data processing will be proportionate, relevant, accurate, timely and secure and 

fully compliant with all prevailing data protection regulations regarding the holding and 
sharing of information with others.  

 
7. CONSENT  
 
 When implementing this policy we will always consider whether the adult at risk is 

capable of giving informed consent in relation to the investigation and safeguarding 
plan. If they are capable, their verbal and ideally their written consent will be sought. 
Where an adult at risk with capacity has made a decision that they do not want action 
to be taken and there are no concerns with public interest (others are not placed at risk 
of harm) then their wishes will be respected The adult at risk will be given information 
and have the opportunity to consider all the risks and fully understand the likely 
consequences of that decision over the short and long term. If they still refuse any 
intervention, their wishes will be respected unless there is a: 

 

 public interest concern and not acting will put other adults or children at risk; or 

 duty of care to intervene, for example, a crime has been or may be committed. 
 

8. RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES 
 
 Safeguarding Children Policy 
 Whistle Blowing Policy 
 Training Policy 
 Recruitment Policy  
 Disciplinary Policy  
 Recruitment and Selection Policy 
 Disciplinary Procedure 
 Code of Conduct 
 Health and Safety Policy 
 Equality Policy 
 Data Protection Policy 
 Complaints Procedure 

 
  

Page 18



 

v.4 
9 

 

9. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
 An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out by the Equality and Diversity Steering 

Group on 5 January 2018.  
(Outcome to be shared with the Committee Members at the meeting) 
 

10. MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
 This policy sets out our approach up to 2020.  We will review our Safeguarding Adults 

at Risk Policy by the end of March 2020 or at such time that new legislation or codes 
of practice require us to do so. 

 
11. USEFUL RESOURCES 
 
 Linked/related legislation and policy guidance 
 

Safeguarding Adults at Risk: The multi-agency policy, procedure and practice for 
working with adults at risk of abuse and neglect in Hertfordshire 2015 
Care Act 2014 
Care Act 2014: statutory guidance for implementation  
Adult Safeguarding: Statement of Government Policy 2013 
Handling cases of forced marriage: multi-agency practice guidelines 2014 
Female genital mutilation: guidelines to protect children and women 2014 
Serious Crime Act 2015 
Human Rights Act 1998 
Equalities Act 2010: guidance 
Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 
Disability Discrimination Act 1995 
Data Protection Act 1998 
Making every contact count: A joint approach to preventing homelessness 2012 
 

  
 

Page 19

http://www.hertsdirect.org/docs/pdf/h/hcs666.pdf
http://www.hertsdirect.org/docs/pdf/h/hcs666.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-statutory-guidance-for-implementation
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/adult-safeguarding-statement-of-government-policy-10-may-2013
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/handling-cases-of-forced-marriage-multi-agency-practice-guidelines-english
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/female-genital-mutilation-guidelines
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/serious-crime-bill
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1998/42/contents
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/equality-act-2010-guidance
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/47/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1995/50/contents
https://www.gov.uk/data-protection/the-data-protection-act
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/7597/2200459.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 

v.4 
 

Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council Safeguarding Children Policy 
 
 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is committed to the safeguarding of children and young 

people. This policy sets out our approach to ensuring that the young people we work with and 
provide services to have the chance to live a life free from harm, exploitation and abuse, have 
their rights protected and are able to grow up in an environment where they can realise their full 
potential.  

 
 Our council recognises the key role it plays within the borough, working alongside other 

agencies, to ensure the wellbeing of children and young people. We will be proactive in 
encouraging and supporting local public services and partner agencies to do the same in 
safeguarding children. 

 
 Our approach to safeguarding is led from the top of the council, and this is reflected by the high-

level membership of our corporate Safeguarding Steering Group.  The work of the steering 
group includes safeguarding children and vulnerable adults.  The group’s membership includes 
the Executive Director for Housing and Communities, the Lead Member for Sports and Heads of 
Service drawn from all areas of the council.   

 
 The Steering Group takes the strategic lead on safeguarding within the council, and is 

responsible for developing and reviewing the council’s safeguarding policies and through their 
implementation, ensuring the council meets it’s legal and moral obligations.  Importantly the 
steering group makes sure that safeguarding is embedded across all areas of our organisation 
and that employees and elected members are clear about the council’s commitment and 
responsibility to safeguard those vulnerable members in our communities. 

 
         We encourage you to read this Safeguarding Children Policy so you are familiar with both this 

council’s role and responsibilities, and those of the many local partners with whom we work 
together in partnership. 

          

 Cllr Darren Bennett      Simone Chinman Russell 
         Lead Member, Sports      Executive Director, 

         Housing & Communities  

Page 21



 2 

2. VALUES AND PRINCIPLES 

 
 The purpose of this policy is to set out the council’s approach to safeguarding children and 

promoting their welfare.  It provides a strategic framework for the procedures which the council 
has adopted to ensure that we deliver on our commitment in a consistent way across the 
organisation. 

 
 Our approach to safeguarding children links to our corporate priorities, which includes a 

commitment to maintain a safe and healthy community, to be achieved by  
 

 Working with partners to keep people safe  

 Helping to improve and maintain the health and wellbeing of residents 

 The council has a set of core values. Our values demonstrate what is important to us in our 
dealings with residents, businesses, partners and employees. 

2.1. Our Values 

 Integrity: We will be honest, clear and consistent about what we do 

 Transparency: We will be approachable, accountable and transparent in the way we 
communicate and conduct our business 

 Respect: We will have respect for residents, businesses, partners and employees 

 Fairness: We will fair in our policies and decision making, listening to the views and 
feedback we receive 

 We will deliver our legal and moral obligations and act at all times within the principles of our 
corporate values. Our Safeguarding Children Policy clarifies the responsibilities of our 
employees, volunteers, contractors and elected Members, as well as the many partners we work 
with. 

 
 This is also reflected within the framework of procedures which have been developed to ensure 

a consistent and robust approach to safeguarding children. 
 
 Our procedures have been developed in line with those of the Hertfordshire Safeguarding 

Children’s Board (HSCB), of which the council is a partner.  On this basis we are responsible for 
informing Hertfordshire County Council of any concerns about a child’s wellbeing.  

 
2.2. Taking a child-centred approach 
 
 The implementation of this policy and related procedures will be based on the principle of a 

child-centred approach. 
 
 The importance of this has been highlighted in the Munro Review (2011) of the Child Protection 

system.  
 
 Every child, as each adult, has the right to be involved in the decisions which affect their lives.  
 
 To achieve this we will ensure that: 
 

Page 22



 3 

 The views of children and their families are taken into account in service planning and 
delivery.  

 

 The protection of children, and promotion of their welfare, will be central to our work, whether 
that work directly or indirectly involves children and families. 

 
3. DEFINITIONS 
  
 For the purposes of this policy the following definitions have been adopted: 
 
3.1. Safeguarding and promoting the welfare and wellbeing of children 
 

 Protecting children from maltreatment; 

 Preventing the impairment of children’s health or development; 

 Ensuring that children are growing up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe 
and effective care.  

 Enabling children to have optimum life chances and to enter adulthood. 
 
3.2. Child 
 

 A child is any person under 18 years of age.  
 
3.3. Child abuse 
 

 Child abuse is any action by another person, adult or child, that causes significant harm to a 
child.   

 
 

 Child abuse can be distinguished into four main categories: 
 

1. Physical abuse – deliberately hurting a child by causing injuries such as bruises, broken 
bones, burns or cuts.  

2. Emotional abuse – ongoing emotional maltreatment or emotional neglect of a child that can 
seriously damage a child’s emotional health and development. This also includes abuse that 
takes place online (e.g. cyberbullying). 

3. Sexual abuse – forcing or persuading a child to take part in sexual activities. This does not 
have to be in the form of physical contact and it can happen online in a virtual context. 

4. Neglect – ongoing failure to meet a child's basic needs. 
 
3.4. Additional categories of abuse 
 

There are additional areas of concern that could affect children: 
 

 Child sexual exploitation – a type of sexual abuse in which children are sexually exploited 
for money, power or status. 

 Honour based abuse – a crime or incident which has or may have been committed to 
protect or defend the honour of the family and/or community. 

 Female genital mutilation – a range of procedures which involve partial or total removal of 
the external female genitalia for non-medical reasons. 

 Forced marriage – a marriage conducted without the valid consent of one or both parties 
and where duress is a contributing factor. 

Page 23



 4 

 Domestic abuse – any incident, or pattern of incidents, of controlling, coercive and 
threatening behaviour or violence. A child may suffer from abuse not only by being physically 
abused directly, but also seeing or hearing the maltreatment of another such as a parent or 
sibling.  

 Radicalisation – the process by which a person comes to support terrorism and extremist 
ideologies associated with terrorist groups. 

 Online abuse (cyberbullying) – any type of abuse that happens on the web, whether 
through social networks, playing online games or using a mobile phone to interact with 
others. 

 Child trafficking – children are recruited, moved or transported and then exploited, forced to 
work or sold. Children are trafficked for child sexual exploitation, benefit fraud, forced 
marriage, domestic servitude, such as cooking, cleaning and childcare, forced labour in 
factories or agriculture, criminal activity such as pick pocketing, begging, transporting drugs, 
working on cannabis farms, selling pirated DVDs, and bag or shop theft.  

 Grooming – when someone builds an emotional connection with a child to gain their trust for 
purposes of sexual abuse or exploitation. 

 Harmful sexual behaviours – using sexually explicit words and phrases, inappropriate 
touching, using sexual violence or threats, full penetrative sex with other children or adults 
witnessed by the child. 

 Substance misuse and alcohol abuse – this may apply to the child directly or to other 
people in the child’s life whose behaviour is impacting upon the child. 

 Ritual abuse and spirit possession - The belief in ’possession’ and ’witchcraft’ is relatively 
widespread. It is not confined to particular countries, cultures, religions or immigrant 
communities in this country. The number of identified cases of child abuse, linked to 
accusations of ’possession’, are small, but the nature of the related child abuse can be 
particularly disturbing and the children involved can suffer damage to their physical and 
mental health, capacity to learn, ability to form relationships and self-esteem.1 

 Children with a disability - Disabled children may be especially vulnerable to abuse for a 
number of reasons.  They may be more inclined to be socially isolated, have extra 
dependency on parents and carers for daily living needs, including intimate personal care, 
have an impaired capacity to resist/avoid abuse, have limited ability to communicate with 
others when there is a problem and may not have anyone they trust to disclose their 
concerns to.  Research shows that children with a disability are especially vulnerable to 
bullying and intimidation. 2 

4. HOW THE LAW PROTECTS CHILDREN 

 
4.1. United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child (1989) 

 This is an international agreement setting out the minimum standards for protecting children’s 
rights. The Convention refers to all children up to the age of 18 years. In relation to safeguarding 
children, it states that:  

 

 the best interests of the child should be a primary consideration when action is taken 
concerning them; 

 children are to be protected from all forms of discrimination;  

 every child has the inherent right to life, survival and development; 

 children should not be punished cruelly or in a way that belittles them; 

 children have the right to be protected from all forms of abuse and neglect, and be given 
proper care by those looking after them; 

                                            
1
 HM Government, (2015), Working Together to Safeguard Children 

2
 HM Government, (2015), Working Together to Safeguard Children 

Page 24



 5 

 children who are victims of abuse are entitled to the care and treatment needed to recover 
from the effects of their mistreatment.  

 
4.2. The Children Act 1989  

 This brought together legislation on caring for and protecting children and provides the 
framework for safeguarding children and promoting their welfare. The Children Act 1989 is 
underpinned by the following principles:  

 

 Welfare principle – the child’s welfare is the paramount consideration in any decision that 
affects them  

 Parental responsibility – replaces parental rights. Parents share parental responsibility with 
the local authority for a child in care  

 Partnership – professionals and families must work together for the welfare of children  

 The child’s voice – a child’s wishes and feelings should be sought and taken into account in 
making decisions affecting them (if they are old enough to understand)  

 Family is best – a child’s own family is the best place for a child to be brought up  

 No order principle – a court order should not be made unless it is needed to improve the 
child’s life  

 Diversity issues – racial, cultural, religious and linguistic background must be taken into 
account in all decisions.  

 
 The main safeguarding provisions of the Act are:  

 

 Child protection (s47) – a local authority shall make inquiries where there is reasonable 
cause to suspect that a child or young person living in the area is suffering or likely to suffer 
significant harm. 

 Children in need (s17) – a local authority has a duty to safeguard and promote the welfare of 
children within the area who are in need – unlikely to achieve or maintain a reasonable level 
of health or development, or whose health or development is likely to be significantly or 
further impaired without the provision of services – and to promote the upbringing of such 
children by their families. 

 Inter-agency working – health, education and other public sector agencies are required to 
assist children’s social care in safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children 

 Court orders – a court can order a child to be taken into care or to be under a supervision 
order. It can also order that a child is given emergency protection or undergoes an 
assessment 

 
4.3. The Children Act 2004 

 The Act imposes a duty on all organisations that have contact with children to ensure they make 
sufficient arrangements to protect them. 

 Statutory agencies are required to safeguard and promote the welfare of children.  
 
 The Act requires every local authority to establish a Safeguarding Children Board to oversee all 

work to safeguard children.  This duty is undertaken by Hertfordshire County Council. 
 
 The Children Act 2004 places responsibilities upon Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, as a 

relevant partner to Hertfordshire County Council’s Children’s Services, to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children. The Act requires that children have a right to be safe and should 
be protected from all forms of abuse and neglect. The Act requires that Safeguarding is 
everyone’s responsibility and promotes early intervention. The Act promotes the principle that 

Page 25



 6 

children and families are best supported and protected when there is a coordinated response 
from all relevant agencies. 

 
 In line with the Children Act 2004 Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council must (in section 10) co-

operate to improve wellbeing and (in section 11) have arrangements in place to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children.  

 
 To meet the requirements of section 11 of the Children Act 2004, Welwyn Hatfield Borough 

Council should have regard to statutory guidance ‘Working Together to Safeguard Children’ (HM 
Government 2015). The Council has accepted its duty to co-operate with Hertfordshire County 
Council’s Children’s Services and it will ensure that it meets the requirements set out by the 
Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

5. OUR PRIORITIES UNDER THE PRINCIPLES OF ‘WORKING TOGETHER TO SAFEGUARD 
CHILDREN’ 

 
 HM Government: Working Together to Safeguard Children (2015) guidance covers the 

legislative requirements and expectations on individual services to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children; and sets out the following priorities which all organisations providing services 
for children, parents or families should demonstrate to fulfil their commitment to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children. Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council has agreed to be audited 
regularly on these outcomes by the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

 
 To meet these priorities we will: 
 

 Have a policy for safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children in line with guidance 
from Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children's Board. 

 

 Develop and implement recruitment and selection procedures that take account of the need 
to protect children and young people including arrangements for appropriate checks on new 
staff and volunteers. 

 

 Take all reasonable measures to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 
 

 Lead from the top through clear commitment by senior management to safeguard and 
promote children's welfare. 

 

 Put in place sound governance arrangements with a clear line of accountability within the 
organisation in relation to safeguarding issues. 

 

 Have in place recruitment and human resources management procedures which take 
account of the need to protect children and young people, including arrangements for 
appropriate checks on new staff and volunteers. 

 

 Develop and implement clear and comprehensive procedures for reporting and dealing with 
allegations of abuse against members of staff, Members and volunteers. 

 

 Put in place arrangements to ensure all staff and Members undertake and refresh appropriate 
training to equip them to carry out their safeguarding responsibilities effectively. 

 

 Put in place arrangements to work effectively with other organisations to safeguard and 
promote the welfare of children, including arrangements for sharing information. 

Page 26



 7 

 

 Promote a culture of listening to and talking with children to ensure their views on actions and 
intervention are taken into account. 

 
 Further professional guidance is available from the Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board 

Procedures Manual 

6. SAFER RECRUITMENT 

6.1. Employing and training safer employees 

 
 In line with the Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006 we will take reasonable steps to 

ensure that staff working with children and young people are safe to do so. Posts will be 
appropriately assessed to determine their level of contact with children and young people. 

 
 Where appropriate we will vet potential employees using the Disclosure and Barring Service 

(DBS) to support safer recruitment decisions and to prevent unsuitable people from working with 
at-risk groups. There are three types of checks which can be conducted: 

 

 Standard check - this will check for spent and unspent convictions, cautions, reprimands and 
final warnings.  

 Enhanced DBS check - the same as the standard check plus any additional information held 
by local police which is reasonably considered relevant to the post being applied for.  

 Enhanced with list checks – same as the enhanced check, but includes a check of the DBS 
Barred lists.  

 
 All disclosures for unsupervised work with children and young people, that meet the definition of 

regulated work, will be at an enhanced level. 
 
 Additionally, all individuals we recruit will undergo pre-employment referencing covering a three 

year period. 

6.2. Providing our employees with the right training and support  

 
 We will ensure that all employees who work with or have contact with children are appropriately 

trained. Although not all staff, volunteers, contractors or Members will work directly with children 
or have direct access to their information, they will be required to understand the responsibility 
they have in protecting children from harm.  

 
 All staff, volunteers, contractors and Members will be appropriately trained and supported to 

ensure their skills and knowledge match the level of contact they have with children through their 
work.  

 
 We will offer different levels of training, appropriate to different roles and responsibilities within 

the council and provide updates to reflect changes in legislation and government guidance. 

6.3. Behaviour standards for staff, Members, volunteers, contractors and councillors  

 
 Staff will provide the highest level of care ensuring a child’s welfare is a primary guide to their 

actions whilst maintaining professional standards of conduct with children who use our services. 
Staff, volunteers, contractors and Members should never act in such a way that could leave 
them open to allegations of abuse or inappropriate behaviour or relationships with a child. 

Page 27



 8 

 
 The standard of behaviour expected by employees it set out in the council’s Code of Conduct for 

employees and supported in the Code of Conduct for Members. 
 

7. SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN: EVERYONE’S RESPONSIBILITY 

 
7.1. The role of council employees and representatives 
 
 Every employee, volunteer, contractor or elected Member, who, during their work has any kind 

of contact (direct or indirect) with children and their families, or who have access to information 
about them, has a responsibility to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. 

 
 Government guidance requires professionals from different agencies to work together and take 

shared responsibility, each contributing their skills and expertise. 
 
 To achieve this we will:  
 

 Promote the concept that the safeguarding and welfare of children is not just the duty of 
people who work directly with children.  

 Demonstrate this at all levels of the organisation; political, strategic and operational. 

 Ensure that no act or omission on our part or that of our employees and partners puts a child 
inadvertently at risk. 

 Put in place clear and rigorous procedures to proactively safeguard and promote the welfare 
of children and support employees in fulfilling their obligations.  

 Raise awareness with the independent contractor organisations which work on our behalf.  
These organisations are required to meet our standards in protecting children, promoting their 
welfare, responding to concerns about a child or a member of staff. 

 
7.2. Ensuring a joined-up approach across the council 
 
 We will ensure that our Safeguarding Children policy is aligned with and cross referenced to 

other related council policies, including our: 
 

 Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy 

 Whistleblowing Policy 

 Recruitment and Selection Policy 

 Disciplinary Procedure 

 Code of Conduct 

 Health and Safety Policy 

 Equality Policy 

 Complaints Procedure 

 Data Protection Policy 

 Information sharing protocol 
 
7.3. How we will approach partnership working 
 
 Partnership working is a key priority to ensuring the council safeguards and promotes the 

welfare of children. As Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council is not the only agency to come into 
contact with children and families, we will ensure that staff work in partnership with other 
agencies, such as police, health, education and children’s social care services. 

  

Page 28



 9 

8. KEEPING, ACCESSING AND SHARING CHILDREN’S INFORMATION SAFELY 

 
 Effective information sharing underpins integrated working and is a vital element of both early 

intervention and safeguarding.3 
 
 We will comply with current legislation at all times when processing information about children.  

This includes the Data Protection Act 1998 and the new General Data Protection Regulations 
which come into force in May 2018.   

 
9. EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  
 
 An Equality Impact Assessment was carried out by the Equality and Diversity Steering Group on 

5 January 2018.  
(Outcome to be shared with the Committee Members at the meeting) 
 

10. MONITORING AND REVIEW 
 
 This policy sets out our approach up to 2020.  We will review our Safeguarding Children Policy 

by the end of March 2020 or at such time that new legislation or codes of practice require us to 
do so. 

 
11.  USEFUL RESOURCES 
 
 Linked/related legislation and policy guidance 
 

HM Government Working Together to Safeguard Children (2015)  
Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board  
Safeguarding Vulnerable Groups Act 2006  
Children Act 1989  
Children Act 2004  
Children and Young Persons Act 2008 
Children and Families Act 2014  

 
12. RELATED COUNCIL POLICIES 
 

 Data Protection Policy 
 Health and Safety Policy 
 Equality and Diversity Policy 
 

                                            
3
 HM Government, (2015), Working Together to Safeguard Children 

Page 29

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/working-together-to-safeguard-children--2
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/childrens-social-care/child-protection/hertfordshire-safeguarding-children-board/hertfordshire-safeguarding-children-board.aspx
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/47/contents
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/children-act-1989-care-planning-placement-and-case-review
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2004/31/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2008/23/contents
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/6/contents/enacted


This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

Part I 
Main author: Matthew Rayner 
Executive Member: Roger Trigg 
All Wards 

 
WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SOCIAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 17 JANUARY 2018 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES’ 

COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS ANNUAL REPORT 2017 

1 Executive Summary 

1.1 District Councils have a mandatory duty to act as a “responsible authority” on its 
local Community Safety Partnership (CSP) to plan and deliver measures to 
tackle crime, anti-social behaviour (ASB), substance misuse, to reduce offending 
and promote assurances to the public whilst working together with other statutory 
and non-statutory organisations.  

1.2 The Welwyn Hatfield CSP over the past twelve months has had a number of 
changes and challenges. These include a significant rise in youth related ASB as 
well as other crime stats, the partnership has a new chair and a new Safer 
Neighbourhood Team Inspector and Chief Inspector. The partnership is also 
working under a new system around funding which has seen the withdrawal of 
the regular funding that was once made available by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner (PCC).  

1.3 The CSP action plan has been shared publicly to enable those that the 
partnership is set up to help see what is being delivered. 

2 Recommendation 

2.1 That the Committee note the report of the Community Safety Partnership’s 
successful work in 2017. 

2.2 That the committee note that while crime overall has risen,  overall the risk of 
crime locally remains low, however the Partnership still works to continue to both 
reduce crime and the affect crime has on residents of the borough. 

2.3 That the committee note the support from partners including the PCC in assisting 
in the delivery of the partnership’s action plan whilst understanding and 
appreciating the changes to funding distribution introduced by the PCC for 
2017/18 onwards.  

Implications 

3 Financial Implications 

3.1 There are no financial implications directly related to the content of this report.  

4 Link to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 The content of this report is linked to the council’s corporate priority to ‘Maintain a 
safe and healthy community’, however it is also linked to ‘Protect and enhance 

Page 31

Agenda Item 9



2 

 

the environment’ and to ‘engage with our communities and provide value for 
money’ 

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 (as amended by subsequent Acts), 
district councils have a duty to plan jointly with other named responsible 
authorities to tackle the incidence of, and fear of, crime, anti-social behaviour and 
the misuse of drugs. This complements the council’s duty under the same Act to 
consider the implications for crime and disorder arising from its operations, and 
to account of those implications in any decisions it takes. National guidance 
requires that the Executive Member formally represents the council on the 
strategic body. 

5.2 Under the Police and Justice Act 2006 and the Local Government and Public 
Involvement in Public Health Act 2007, district councils have a duty to scrutinise 
the work of the local CSP through a nominated committee, which for WHBC is 
the Social Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

6 Climate Change Implications 

6.1 There are no climate change implications directly relating to the content of this 
report.  

7 Risk Management Implications 

7.1 The recognised risk that a partner might disengage from joint work is reduced in 
the case of the CSP because each responsible authority has a statutory duty to 
take part. Partners recognise the value of the CSP, and the main threat to 
partners’ involvement arises from major legislative or organisational changes. 
The most significant change has been the County Community Safety Unit re-
structure and staffing changes which has seen the change in working relations 
between Welwyn Hatfield CSP and its County equivalent. It is also noted that 
there is a risk around the working relationship with the National Probation Service 
and the Community Rehabilitation Company due to the overall resourcing issues 
they face locally and nationally.  

7.2 The CSP’s priorities and programmes are well aligned with those of the Police 
and Crime Commissioner, although the CSP rightly retains its autonomy and 
legal accountability.  

7.3 The PCC has introduced a competitive bidding process for funding to replace the 
previous annual grant that was made available to all Hertfordshire CSPs. The 
priorities for funding are linked to new initiatives and projects. The previous grant 
was used to pay for a number of activities which provide public reassurance and 
were aimed at crime prevention. The funds available to support this activity going 
forward have reduced. To mitigate this the council has made a small budget 
available in 2018/19 to support such initiatives. However generally this activity 
will be reliant on CSP partners contributing funds directly. 

8 Explanation 

The composition of the CSP can be found in Appendix 1 which also highlights the 
variety of subgroups that form the CSP. 

Page 32



3 

 

Crime Statistics  

8.1  Current trends with regards to crime within the borough in 2017 (Please note 
figures are from Year to Date (01/04/2017-02/01/2018)) compared to those 
during a similar time frame in 2016.  

 Burglary Dwelling ….Increase 166 to 236, increase of 42.2% (54% 
positive outcome rate, highest across the county) 

(figures for dwelling burglary from April 17 to Nov 17 only) 

 Theft from person – Reduction  from 118 to 113, a decrease of 4.2% 

 Shoplifting – Reduction from 808 to 661, a decrease of -18.2% 

 All Crime – Increase of 683 offences, a rise of 10.9% 

 Burglary Residential non dwelling and Commercial – 178 offences to date 

8.1.1 Burglary classification has changed meaning comparison data is not available for 
‘Burglary other’ as this now incorporates business and commercial and non-
dwelling (garages/outbuildings etc.); highest increase in crimes include sexual 
offences, risen by 82 offences. Last year 118 reported crimes up this year to 200, 
seeing a 69% increase (as a result of more confidence in reporting incidents to 
police) and robbery.  Robbery has seen an increase of 43 offences to date from 
last year’s 51 to 93 reported offences seeing an increase of 82%. This is partly 
due to the increase in a known individual visiting the borough to conduct criminal 
behaviour.  

8.1.2 Proactive work around our prolific offenders (PPO) has prevented several 
burglary offences. In the week prior to one of the borough’s PPOs being arrested 
there was a high number of burglaries, however the individual was actively 
sought by the police and subsequently burglary levels dropped significantly.  

8.2 Public order and harassment offences Stats 

 Harassment – Increase from 292 offences to 392, an increase of 34.2% 

 Public Fear, Alarm or Distress – Increase from 406 offences to 431, an 
increase of 6.2% 

 Violence Against the Person – Increase from 1725 to 2072, an increase of 
20.1% 

 Criminal Damage – Increase of 808 offences to 858, an increase of 6.2% 

Youth ASB Action taken by Police and Council 

8.2.1 Youth ASB continues to be an issue particularly in Welwyn Garden City where an 
operation has been running for the past month in response to concern from 
residents and incidents of violence. Continued work with the council has seen 
numerous youths and their families visited by officers from the Safer 
Neighbourhood Team (SNT) and the council’s ASB team issuing warning letters 
and progress to Anti Social Behaviour Contracts and Criminal Behaviour Orders.  

8.2.2 In response, Police Operation Brillo consisted of the following: 

Page 33



4 

 

 Late turn intervention teams ring fenced from daily business and dedicated to 
high visibility public order patrols in designated areas on Friday and Saturday 
nights throughout most of December.  

 Public Order foot patrols 15:00 hours – 22:00 hours Saturdays and Sundays for 
last 2 weekends in WGC Town Centre, Woodhall and Peartree/ Woodhall. 

 No incidents of serious ASB or disorder with increased positive response from 
local community. 

 The teams have collated a list of approximately 90 local youths identified as 
being present in hotspot locations and at hotspot times. These individuals and 
their carers are being contacted and relevant follow up actions are in progress – 
such as home visits and enforcement/prevention tools such as Anti-Social 
Behaviour Contracts.  

 
8.2.3 The Council and SNT are liaising and working in partnership with the WGC 

Business Improvement District and local businesses to help tackle any ASB 
within or in the vicinity of local businesses of the town centre. 

Operation HADE  

8.3 Back in October 2016 there was a significant incident in the centre of Welwyn 
Garden City which resulted in 11 young people assaulting two members of the 
public. Operation HADE was set up to understand the reasons why the incident 
took place, find those responsible and prosecute them.  

8.3.1 In December 2017 sentencing took place and all eleven individuals were 
convicted with the most prolific offending receiving 3 years in custody. This case 
and the sentencing of these young people has been communicated widely to 
hopefully act as a deterrent to other young people.  

8.4 The Partnership was successful in a £19,000 funding bid to the PCC Office which 
has provided some support in order to deliver a gap analysis of youth provision in 
the borough. The funding will also provide the partnership appropriate funds to 
deliver some workshops in schools around the dangers of being involved in 
organised crime as well as providing youth leaders with training around the signs 
of youths being involved in gangs and gang related culture.  

8.5 Motor vehicle related crime stats: 

 Theft From Vehicle – Increase from 328 offences to 402, an increase of 
22.6%  

 Theft Of Vehicles- Increase from 83 offences to 94, and increase of 7.5% 

8.5.1 Some of our most prolific offenders are theft from motor vehicle offenders. Crime 
prevention initiatives and swift identification of suspects has proved beneficial. 
The South East is seeing an increase in theft of tools from vans, Welwyn Garden 
City suffers in particular from this crime type. Tool marking events have taken 
place and regular crime prevention messages advertised.  

Page 34



5 

 

8.6 Drug and substance abuse stats: 

 Drug Possession – Increase from 216 offences to 257, an increase of 19% 

 Drug Trafficking – Decrease from 50 reported offences to 47, a reduction of  
6.0% 

8.6.1 This has been one of the main focuses of the constabulary over the last few 
months based on the issues around youth ASB, violent crime and theft. There 
has been an increase in London based drug dealers using the counties to 
expand their drugs business and the police have cracked down severely on this 
activity. Joint work with the council has resulted in closing two properties used for 
this purpose and there have been  several arrests of well-known dealers and 
seized drugs in upwards of £35,000. 

Community Safety Priorities  

8.7 In order to align with the timeframe for bidding for PCC funds, the Responsible 
Authorities Group (RAG) put an Interim Plan in place until September 2017 and a 
new Annual Plan from October 2017 to September 2018. 

8.8 A new plan was agreed by RAG in October 2017 which sets out the key 
objectives of the partnership over the next 12 months.  

8.9 The priorities are based on local knowledge and data and aim to focus on 
different strands relating to Community Safety which would be taken forward by 
the officers best placed locally to ensure effective change and management of 
those areas. They are 

1. Keep Down Crime, especially burglary at home 

This priority area is led by the Herts Constabulary, Inspector Sophia Adams.  

2. Prevent Antisocial Behaviour  

This priority area is led by the Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, Kerry Clare. 

3. Reduce the likelihood of drugs and alcohol misuse and its impact to the 
community  

This priority is led by Chair of the Joint Agency Group (WHBC, Zoe Keyte)  

4. Protect Vulnerable People 

This priority is led by Rad Bristow, Herts Fire and Rescue Service and 
Victoria Robinson East & North Herts Clinical Commissioning Group. 

5. Support People enduring or escaping Domestic Abuse, Intimidation and 
Harassment. 

This priority is led by Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council, Community Safety 
Coordinator, Zoe Keyte.  

8.10 2017 saw some great projects and programmes delivered across the CSP and  
several of these were managed and delivered by the Council: 

Page 35



6 

 

8.10.1 The Annual Crew Crucial event continues to offer to educate and equip all Year 
Six students within the borough for the challenging transition from primary to 
secondary education. The 2017 event was funded by the University of 
Hertfordshire, without this support the event would not have been delivered. The 
Council leads on the planning of the event, the day to day coordination of the 
different workshops and the logistics ensuring that each school is fully briefed 
before attending and is given where possible a time slot best suited for them. The 
Council engages with partners to ensure appropriate delivery of each workshop.  

8.10.2 The Borough’s Community Information Days sees very specific areas of the 
borough targeted. In 2017 two CID days have been completed the 1st was in 
Welwyn Village in March. The purpose of this event was to provide residents the 
opportunity to speak with the variety of partners who were there and provide 
some reassurance to the public. The second event was in Hatfield Town Centre 
in October. The major findings of this were made available as part of the wider 
Public Space Protection Order consultation that took place in Hatfield through 
October and November. The partnership is currently looking at the delivery of 
another event in the Woodhall area in the New Year to provide reassurance to 
the public and work with businesses to understand issues and concerns.    

8.10.3 The Council’s public spaces CCTV contract/ service level agreement with St 
Albans and Videcom was retendered in 2017.As a result of a competitive 
tendering process. A 5year contract (with 2 year additional option) was awarded 
to Videcom.  

8.10.4 Safer Together events took on a whole new challenge in 2017, with the delivery 
of the first ever Safer Together Week. The 6 day-long event took place in a 
vacant unit in the Howard Centre in WGC during the last week of July. The event 
was a huge success with the partnership engaging with around 200 residents per 
day. Thanks to the Howard Centre who provided the partnership with a shop for 
free throughout the week. The event was such a success, providing there is 
space, it is likely to be delivered again in 2018. The second Safer Together event 
took place at Gracemead House in Hatfield on the 7 December. Whilst numbers 
were significantly lower than those that attended WGC event, those that did 
attend provided positive feedback. We will be reviewing what is delivered in 
Hatfield and when in order to maximise exposure and opportunities.  

8.10.5 Bike Security five separate events throughout the year were run to engage with 
commuters who cycle in and out of the town centres and leave their bikes for 
long periods of time on bike racks. The campaigns were about promoting better 
bike security in terms of registering the bike on the police system and increasing 
awareness of what a good locking mechanism is. Secondly the campaign was 
about promoting bike safety including increasing cyclist’s awareness to be more 
visual on the roads.  

Other CSP items to note 

8.11 Other significant events and projects which the partnership has been a part of 
through 2017 include the following: 

8.11.1 The Council delivered Hate Crime training to key staff, in preparation for 
setting up two 3rd Party Hate Crime Reporting Centres; one in Welwyn Garden 
City at Campus East Offices and one in Hatfield at the Housing Office. These will 
launch before the end of March 2018. 

Page 36



7 

 

8.11.2 The Council partnered up with Hertsmere and St Albans district Councils to 
deliver a tri-district Domestic Abuse conference. The event is highly regarded 
across the county and receives extremely positive feedback, in 2017 over 200 
people attend the event. 

8.11.3 The partnership continues to promote ‘keep safe’ messages by attending 
different events across the year including the large events like Christmas Lights, 
WGC Cycling race (promoting bike security) and BIG Summer events as well as 
small events such as fire service open days and village fates. 

8.11.4 The Council assisted in coordinating the borough’s Community Youth 
Champions Day again. The event which was held at WGC Fire station saw a 
small group of young people from different secondary schools in the borough 
received a training/presentations around healthy relationships, after which they 
spend that afternoon putting together their own presentation which was then 
used back in their schools for them to deliver to their peers.  

8.11.5  As well as partners projects and events such as  

a) Student Drop in Surgeries and Joint House Visits   
b) Prince’s Trust – Team Project   
c) Delivered WRAP (Prevent) Training 
d) Hoarding Project     
e) Operation Balsam     
f) Local Litter Collections  
g) Youth Magazine     

 
9 Equality and Diversity 

9.1 I confirm that an Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out in 
connection with this progress report, but the CSP assess equalities implications 
of projects as they are developed, and in considering bids for support. Much of its 
work is driven by a commitment to protect the most vulnerable. Its priorities 
continue to include domestic abuse and “hate crimes” against persons who might 
be victimised based on their age, ethnicity, sex, sexuality or disability. As such, 
the work of the CSP has a positive effect on persons with protected 
characteristics under the relevant equality duties.  

Name of author Matthew Rayner (01707) 357174 
Date January 2018 
Title Community Partnership Manager  

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 - 

Part I 
Item No: 10 
Main author: Kerry Clare 
Executive Member: Roger Trigg 
Wards: Hatfield Central and Hatfield Villages 
 
 

WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
SOCIAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE – 17 JANUARY 2018 
REPORT OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (HOUSING AND COMMUNITIES) 
 
PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER – HATFIELD TOWN CENTRE 
 
1 Executive Summary 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform on the outcome of the public 
consultation on proposals to implement a Public Space Protection Order 
(PSPO) to tackle particular types of antisocial behaviour (ASB) in ‘hot spot’ 
areas.  

1.2 The recommendation relates to the implementation of a PSPO, which will 
replace the already existing Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) in 
Hatfield.  

1.3 This report recommends the introduction of a zoned PSPO as set out in 
Appendix A and seeks approval of the draft Order set out in Appendix B 

2 Recommendation(s)  

2.1 That Members acknowledge the formal consultation responses received on 
the proposed PSPO for Hatfield Town Centre.  

2.2 That Members note the results of the consultation undertaken and make a 
recommendation to Cabinet/Full Council to consider this proposal and makes 
a recommendation to agree to the implementation of a zoned PSPO for 
Welwyn Hatfield, as recommended by the local Community Safety 
Partnership Joint Action Group (JAG), to cover the areas of Hatfield Town 
Centre. 

 
2.3 That Members make a recommendation to Cabinet/Full Council to agree to 

discharge the current PSPO (automatically created by the legislation from the 
current DPPO). 

3  Explanation 

3.1 In October 2014 the Secretary of State enacted new powers according to the 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (“the Act”) relevant to 
tackling ASB. These new powers make changes to some existing legislation 
and were part of a Government commitment to put victims at the centre of 
approaches to tackling ASB. 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 10



- 2 - 

3.2 The aims of the Act are as follows:  
 for local agencies to focus on the needs of victims  
 to support people and communities in establishing what is and what is not 

acceptable, and support them to hold local agencies to account 
 to ensure that professionals have the powers they need to tackle problems  
 to focus on long term solutions.  

 
3.3 One of the provisions within the Act relates to PSPOs (Ch 2, Pt 4, ss59-75).  

A PSPO is intended to deal with behaviours and problems that are considered 
to be detrimental to the local community’s quality of life.  The orders are 
meant to be flexible and can be applied to a broad range of issues (not just 
alcohol related), with local authorities having the ability to design and 
implement their own prohibitions or requirements. These conditions centre on 
the impact on quality of life, persistence and prevalence of the ASB and 
whether the impact constitutes the behaviour as unreasonable.   

 
3.4 Local authorities have the power to make PSPOs if satisfied on reasonable 

grounds that two conditions are met:  
 

1. a) activities carried on in a public place within the Authority’s area have 
had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of those in the locality, or b) it 
is likely that activities will be carried on in a public place within that area 
and that they will have such an effect. 
 

2. That the effect or likely effect of the activities— 
a) is, or is likely to be, of a persistent or continuing nature; 
b) is, or is likely to be, such as to make the activities unreasonable; and 
c) justifies the restrictions imposed by the notice.  

 
3.5 A PSPO is an order that identifies the public place to which it applies (“the 

restricted area” within which the impact has or is likely to occur) and can make 
requirements, or prohibitions, or both within that area. This means that the 
local authority can require people to do specific things in a particular area or 
not to do specific things in a particular area provided that the prohibitions or 
requirements imposed are reasonable. The local authority can grant the Part I 
prohibitions / requirements in order to prevent or reduce the detrimental 
impact from continuing, occurring or recurring.  

 
3.6 The PSPO can be made to apply to specific people within an area, or to 

everybody within that area. It can also apply at all times, or within specified 
times and equally to all circumstances, or specific circumstances.  

 
3.7 A failure to comply with either a prohibition or requirement of the order is an 

offence and carries criminal sanctions. Upon summary conviction (offences 
heard within the Magistrates Court) defendants can face a fine not exceeding 
level three on the standard scale (currently £1000). Breaches of the order can 
also be discharged by use of a fixed penalty notice (FPN).  

 
 

Page 40



- 3 - 

3.8 It is important to recognise that FPNs are not a fine but are an alternative to 
prosecution whereby an individual accepts payment of a sum of money to 
discharge their liability for conviction.  Failure to pay a FPN may result in the 
case being progressed to Court. 

 
3.9 In cases where an individual is convicted the maximum fine is a level 2 fine 

(max £500) for alcohol consumption or a level 3 fine (max £1000) for other 
breaches. 

 
3.10 In deciding if the local authority should make a PSPO the local authority 

must:- 
a)  have particular regard for the rights of freedom of expression and 

freedom of assembly set out in articles 10 and 11 of the European 
Convention on Human Rights (“ECHR”); 

b) carry out the necessary consultation; 
c) carry out the necessary notification; and 
d) carry out the necessary publicity. 

 
3.11 Human Rights; Article 10 of the ECHR relates to freedom of expression.  

Article 11 of the ECHR relates to freedom of assembly and association.  A 
PSPO may interfere with the rights granted under Articles 10-11 of the ECHR. 
Careful consideration needs to be given so that prohibitions and requirements 
under a PSPO do not unnecessarily interfere with what would otherwise be 
legitimate under the law.  Local authorities must show that they have tried to 
use less restrictive methods to address the issues under the PSPO. In 
essence it is a balancing exercise between the competing interests of the 
individual, other individuals and the community at large. 

 
3.12 Consultation; the necessary consultation means consulting with the following:- 

 chief police officer of police, and the local policing body for the local 
area that includes the restricted area 

 land owners or occupiers within the affected area 
 any community representatives that the local authority feels 

appropriate 
 The local authority may also consult with Members of Parliament 

however this is not a requirement within section 72 of the Act. 
 
3.13  Notification; the necessary notification means notifying the following 

authorities of the proposed order, extension, variation or discharge:- 
 the parish council or community council (if any) for the area that 

includes the restricted area 
 in the case of a public spaces protection order made or to be made by 

a district council in England, the county council (if any) for the area that 
includes the restricted area 
 

3.14 Publicity; the necessary publicity means:- 
 In the case of a proposed order or variation, publishing the text of it; 
 In the case of a proposed extension or discharge, publishing the 

proposal 
 

Page 41



- 4 - 

3.15 The Act is not overly descriptive about the necessary process required for 
application of a PSPO. It has therefore been necessary to design a process 
that can be considered to be appropriate and suitably robust. 

 
3.16 Support for the PSPO has been sought from the local Community Safety 

Partnership (CSP); local residents and businesses of Hatfield Town Centre at 
the Community Information Day (CID) held on 18 July 2016; business owners 
via the Town Team/Forum meetings and local councillors and the Portfolio 
Holder for Governance, Community Safety, Police and Crime Commissioner 
(PCC) and Corporate Property.  

 
3.17 The PSPO can apply for a maximum of three years, upon which a process of 

review and consultation must be repeated to ascertain if the issues are still 
occurring and that the order is having the required effect. Thereafter it can be 
extended for a further three years. It can be extended more than once for 
further periods of three years.  

 
3.187 Although initiated by the local authority, guidance has been sought from 

members of the CSP, in order to consider the most effective ways to utilise 
the new powers and address current ASB issues. Through the JAG and other 
local engagement such as the CID, the following ASB issues were identified 
as the most problematic to tackle through alternative means: 
 ASB in public places influenced by consumption of alcohol 
 ASB in public places caused by begging activity 
 Persistent rough sleeping (after failing to engage with support) 
 Urinating and defecating in public 

 
3.19 The behaviours listed are recommended on the basis that Hatfield Town 

Centre has a long standing issue with street drinking, rough sleeping, begging 
associated anti-social behaviour; with the people involved in such activity, 
urinating or defecating in public spaces. These specific behaviours cause 
harassment, alarm and distress to members of the public, but are particularly 
difficult to deal with through other legal channels due to the burden of 
evidence required to pursue as a criminal act.  In addition local residents who 
are affected by the behaviour are often unwilling to act as witnesses.  

 
3.20 This proposal has been developed to provide opportunities to impact on the 

issues detailed above through enforcement (ultimately backed by support and 
interventions). The recommendation is to seek a PSPO for targeted areas of 
the town.  It is recommended that JAG reviews the PSPO on a regular basis 
in order to make provision for a varied order and further zoned areas if 
required, perhaps due to displacement of the issues.  

 
 A further report will be presented to Members to consider the impact and 

effectiveness of the PSPO once they have been in effect for 12 months  

3.21 It is proposed that the PSPO include the following prohibitions: Person(s) 
within this area will not:  

 
 Consume alcohol in a public place 

Page 42



- 5 - 

 Be in possession of an open vessel(s) of alcohol in a public place 
 Approach another person either verbally or through action in order to beg 

from the other person 
 Loiter at or within ten metres of any pay machine (including banks, 

supermarkets and car parks) unless waiting legitimately to use the 
machine for the purpose it is designed for 

 Sit on the ground in a public place, street, highway or passage in a 
manner that may be perceived that you are inviting people to give you 
money 

 Urinate or defecate in a public place 
 Sleep in any public place which is or includes: 
 Open to the air 
 Within a vehicle for a sustained period 
 Within a car park 
 A non-fixed structure including a caravan or tent without the prior 

permission of the owner or occupier of the land. 
 

3.22 Statutory Guidance of the Use of the Ant-Social Behaviour Powers under the 
Act has recently been updated to provide clarification on the use of PSPOs to 
target people who are homeless and/or sleeping rough.  This guidance has 
been considered and balanced with the responses received from the 
consultation.  These responses show a clear link between respondent’s 
feelings of intimidation and lack of safety and those sleeping rough in the 
proposed zone.  There is also significant mention of the impact that this has 
on the perception of others particularly the elderly and young.  

 
3.23 To mitigate this the PSPO Procedure Guide is clear that the purpose of the 

PSPO is to offer support and advice to those identified as sleeping rough with 
enforcement action to be considered only if this support is not accepted.  The 
council has introduced a new initiative ‘Housing First’ to reduce the number of 
rough sleepers in Welwyn Hatfield. 
 
A key aspect of this initiative has allowed the commissioning of two Resolve 
charity workers to deliver 25 hours per week of dedicated outreach services 
on the streets, signposting anyone sleeping rough to vital support services. 

 
Another aspect of this initiative the work that Citizens Advice Welwyn Hatfield 
has been commissioned to do on behalf of the council to advise people and 
oversee more complex needs in ongoing cases. 
 
The council are working with a homeless charity to house people with more 
complex needs, and help address these problems whilst they are living in a 
safe, warm, dry environment. 

 
3.24 A prohibition in a public spaces protection order on consuming alcohol does 

not apply to:- 
a) premises (other than council-operated licensed premises) authorised by a 

premises licence to be used for the supply of alcohol; 
b) premises authorised by a club premises certificate to be used by the club 

for the supply of alcohol; 

Page 43



- 6 - 

c) a place within the curtilage of premises within paragraph (a) or (b) 
d) premises which by virtue of Part 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 may be at the 

relevant time be used for the supply of alcohol or which, by virtue of that 
Part, could have been so used within the 30 minutes before that time; 

e) a place where facilities or activities relating to the sale or consumption of 
alcohol are at the relevant time permitted by virtue of a permission granted 
undersection115E of the Highways Act 1980 

 
A prohibition in a public spaces protection order on consuming alcohol does 
not apply to council-operated licensed premises:- 
a) when the premises are being used for the supply of alcohol, or 
b) within 30 minutes after the end of a period during which the premises have 

been used for the supply of alcohol. 
 

For the purposes of the Act, premises are “council-operated licensed 
premises” if they are authorised by a premises licence to be used for the 
supply of alcohol and- 
a) the licence held by a local authority in whose area the premises (or part of 

the premises) are situated, or 
b) the licence is held by another person but the premises are occupied by a 

local authority or are managed by or on behalf of a local authority 
 

Furthermore an offence will only be committed once an individual does not 
cease drinking or surrender a container with alcohol in, when challenged by 
the Police or an authorised person. The purpose of the Order is to tackle anti-
social behaviour and when there is no threat of anti-social behaviour there will 
be no need to challenge an individual. 

 
3.25 It is not intended that the PSPO will replace existing legislation that address 

issues such as encampments or control of alcohol.  
 
3.26 These prohibitions represent specific behaviours, exhibited by individuals and 

groups of people who either live within Welwyn Hatfield, or commute to the 
town to undertake criminal activity. The PSPO will be utilised to prevent and 
disrupt their antisocial behaviour. This is deemed to be a reasonable 
approach based on the specified objectives within Section 59(5) of the Act 

 
3.27 It is felt that a PSPO would provide officers with an opportunity to record 

breaches more effectively, which in turn will provide greater evidence for the 
courts. The Crown Prosecution Service (CPS) is more willing to issue Criminal 
Behaviour Orders (CBO) when a PSPO has been breached by offenders, as 
this demonstrates habitual ASB.  

 
3.28 The justification for this PSPO is based on a similar premise to that of the 

original DPPO, in terms of alcohol consumption in public and the associated 
ASB. It is felt that the opportunity to initiate a PSPO should be maximised, in 
order to provide agencies with the additional chance to address and tackle the 
significant issue of street begging and associated ASB.  

 

Page 44



- 7 - 

3.29 In relation to enforcement of these orders there are two fundamental 
differences to that of our abilities under DPPOs:  
 police community support officers (PCSO) can enforce, if sanctioned by 

the Chief Constable (under s69 of the Act) 
 an authorised person, being a person authorised by the local authority 

under section 69 of the Act, can issue a fixed penalty notice  
 
3.30 The PSPO can be enforced by authorised council officers, police officers and 

PCSOs.  Implementation and enforcement of the PSPO will be included in the 
CSP action plan and will primarily be enforced by police officers and PCSOs 
without the need for additional resources.  The Order allows for officers to use 
the powers where they witness someone in breach of the prohibitions within 
the specified zones.  Subject to the approval to introduce the order, a protocol 
will be agreed with the police regarding enforcement.  A draft protocol has 
been produced – Appendix C 

 
3.31 Only council officers with legal accreditation to issue FPNs are authorised to 

enforce the PSPO.  It should be noted that this will not be a reactive service 
by Council officers.  Warnings and Orders could be issued if the breach is 
witnessed whilst officers are carrying out their normal day to day duties. 

 
3.32 The Order allows for the possibility of joint (council and police) operations to 

target known offenders causing ASB within the zoned areas.  
 
3.33 Enforcement will be made through various means:  

 discretionary warning; or  
 fixed penalty notices payable to the Council (maximum of £100); or  
 prosecution through the courts for persistent offenders (liable to a fine of 

up to £1000 upon summary conviction). 
 
3.34 In 2008 Council created a Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) for Hatfield 

Town Centre.  In October 2017 this DPPO automatically transferred to a 
PSPO under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act. The Council 
has the option to allow that event to take effect, however this is not 
recommend due to enforcement problems which exist relating to the existing 
DPPO and the additional powers of a PSPO as outlined above. 

 
3.35 The Act also make changes to some of the existing legislation and the Council 

is required, within the period of three years from the implementation of the Act 
(i.e. by October 2017), to reconsider its Designated Public Place Order 
(DPPO) and either withdraw or replace it with a new Public Spaces Protection 
Order (PSPO). As there is evidence of ongoing anti-social behaviour with 
street drinking, begging and associated behaviour in the DPPO area, it is wise 
to replace the current DPPO at this stage with a new PSPO which covers 
previously behaviours as well as new identified issues affecting the local 
community.  

 
3.36 The Anti-Social Behaviour Crime & Policing Act 2014 requires that local 

authorities carry out public consultation on any proposed PSPO.  A full 

Page 45



- 8 - 

programme of public consultation began on 16 October 2017 and concluded 
on 24 November 2017. 

 
3.37 The consultation sought to obtain public view on the restricted activities in the 

proposed order.  The consultation sought to obtain public view on the location 
of the proposed order.  The area consulted on included Hatfield Town Centre 
and surrounding streets that are currently subject to a designated public 
protection order. 

 
3.38 Consultation methods used included: 

 Consultation documents sent to residents and businesses/organisations in 
proposed area 

 Local partners were emailed inviting them to respond to the PSPO 
Consultation 

 Launch WHBC website pages about PSPO 
 Consultation documents sent to local schools 
 Consultation documentation available at events in Hatfield Town Centre 
 Use of web-based survey software – Survey Monkey 

 
In addition the consultation sought to obtain the opinions from  
 Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership Partners 
 Herts County Council 
 Police and Crime Commissioner’s Officer 
 Hatfield Town Centre Forum 
 WHBC Councillors 
 Hatfield Town Centre Councillors 

 
3.39 Consultation Comments 
 

Two hundred and five consultation forms were completed and returned either 
by Survey Monkey or paper copies.  All paper copies were inputted onto 
Survey Monkey to allow for detailed analysis of the results.  

 
98.00% of responses were received from residents, business owners and 
those working in Hatfield.  The responses were mostly split equally between 
male and female with the largest age group represented being 45-54 yrs 
(25%). 

 
The detailed report on the questionnaire responses and the full comment list 
is attached as Appendix D.   

 
Question 1 - The PSPO area will cover the areas highlighted in the 
information leaflet or in the FAQ sheet.  What is your view of the proposed 
control zone? 

  
What is your view of the proposed control zone 
About Right Too Small Too Large 
56.50% (113) 24.50% (49) 3.50% (7) 

 

Page 46



- 9 - 

15.50% (31) of responses provided additional comments:- 
 
5 responses made reference to considering drug dealing as part of the PSPO 
2 responses made reference to issues with cyclists in the proposed zone 
1 response asked the council to providing a homeless or wet shelter. 

 
Question 2 - Are there any areas which adjoin the proposed area in Hatfield 
where you feel we should consider implementing this PSPO? 

 
Are there any areas which adjoin the proposed area in Hatfield where you 
feel we should consider implementing this PSPO? 
Yes No Unsure 
14.95% (29) 26.80% (52) 29.90% (58) 

 
28.35% (55) of responses suggested a number of areas in Hatfield where a 
PSPO should be implemented.  The following areas were most requested:- 

 
Birchwood Shops inc. Co-Op Store 10 
Aldi        6 
Hill Top       6 

 
Other significant areas suggested were all subways surrounding Hatfield 
Town Centre (6) and the Alban Way (4). 

 
Question3 - Do you consider any of the following to be a problem in the 
proposed PSPO area? 

 
 Do you consider these to be a problem? 
Proposed 
Prohibitions 

Yes No Unsure 

Street Drinking 91.41% (181) 6.06% (12) 2.53% (5) 
Begging 79.17% (152) 11.46% (22) 9.38% (18)  
Rough Sleepers 63.64% (119) 14.97% (28) 21.39% (40)  
Public Urination 
and Defecation 

75.66% (143) 11.11% (21) 13.23% (25) 

 
Of the 199 responses to this question, 154 provided additional comments.  
The following table provides some an example of these comments included in 
the full consultation document attached as Appendix D 

 
Proposed 
Probibition 

 

Street 
Drinking 

Groups of drinkers hanging around Market Place can be 
visually threatening and a barriers to where we wish to go. 
 
There are nearly always men, and sometimes a few women, 
drinking alcohol in Hatfield Town Centre, including daylight 
hours and mornings. They are in Market Place, but also often 
in White Lion Square and the area leading from the square to 
Asda.  Various ages. They are sometimes swearing loudly as 

Page 47



- 10 - 

they talk to each other.  Their presence is rather intimidating, 
even though they are not actively aggressive to the public, and 
their presence definitely does not make the town centre seem 
attractive and welcoming. I avoid looking at them or attracting 
their attention in any way  
 
They stand in my office door way drinking and swearing when 
it rains. 
 
As I work in C W Carpets 19a Town Centre, the drinkers that 
congregate around and in the alley adjacent to Bet Fred / Dog 
Kennel Lane are a particular issue, on numerous occasions I 
have had customers to the shop complaining of feeling 
threatened by their presence, which has led to them 
postponing their visit to the shop or phoning me to ask me to 
accompany them to the shop from elsewhere in the town 
centre. On many occasions when I’ve asked them to desist and 
move away I’ve been met with a barrage of abuse, or at very 
least belligerence. 
   
I have witnessed drunk fights in the market square at 3pm in 
the afternoon when school children are walking through. 

Begging When customers sit outside they quickly come beg for money 
and fags. No one sit's outside anymore due to them (losing 
trade). 
 
Known drug users in Market Place. 
 
Some get aggressive, insult other people if they don’t give 
them money. 
 
Aggressive beggars by Asda and town centre shops.  Can be 
intimidating particularly for young and old. 
 
You know struggle to get from one end of Asda to the other 
without being begged, and although I feel bad for those in 
need, it is very uncomfortable and intimidating. The town needs 
more that a lick of paint and a few new shops.  It needs a new 
atmosphere and until the drinkers, loiterers and beggars are 
removed from the area nobody will want to spend time there. 

Rough 
Sleepers 

The sleep behind the bins in Dog Kennel Lane car park. 
Use our rear courtyard as a toilet and sleeping place, we now 
bolt rear yard but they still climb over. 
 
I am approached regularly by those facing homelessness and 
welcome that there will be more of a focus on outreach and 
support for these people. 
 
A lot of people sleep rough behind Boots, There are homeless 
people wandering around drunk. 

Page 48



- 11 - 

 
I know have been a problem in Hatfield town centre, especially 
as they leave evidence of public defecation (I have been told 
this by a shop manager) and other mess (e.g. in the car-park 
near the library). 
 
We have found evidence of rough sleeping outside the library 
when we have arrived at work (items left behind). 

Public 
Urination 
and 
Defecation 

Horrified with a group of males openly urinating in front of me. 
They urinate everywhere, wherever they feel like it. I witness it 
every day. 
 
We used to leave the gate open behind our shop for the 
dustman and there would be human faeces. 
 
Public urination is absolutely unacceptable  
 
From personal experience of confronting them whilst in the act 
on numerous occasions both Dog Kennel Lane car park, and 
the alley adjacent to Bet Fred, are frequently used as a public 
toilet.    It has been well documented on local social media 
sites and through conversations I’ve had with people that the 
behaviours listed above are putting people off visiting Hatfield 
Town Centre. 

 
Question 4 - How often do you feel that the problem behaviour has occurred? 

 
 How often do you feel that the problem behaviour has occurred? 
Proposed 
Prohibitio
ns 

Daily Once a 
week 

Twice 
a week

Three 
times 
a week

Four 
times a 
week 

Week-
ends 

Less 
than 
once a 
week 

Street 
Drinking 

83.24% 
(154) 

1.62% 
(3) 

2.16% 
(4) 

5.41% 
(10) 

3.78% 
(7) 

1.62% 
(3) 

2.16% 
(4) 

Begging 57.06% 
(97) 

11.18
% (19) 

10% 
(17) 

4.71% 
(8) 

4.71% 
(8) 

1.18% 
(2) 

14.71
%(25) 

Rough 
Sleepers 

44.52% 
(65) 

10.27
% (15) 

7.53% 
(11) 

5.48% 
(8) 

5.48% 
(8) 

0.68% 
(1) 

28.08
% (41) 

Public 
Urination 
& 
Defecatio
n 

61.04% 
(94) 

6.49% 
(10) 

2.60% 
(4) 

5.84% 
(9) 

5.84% 
(9) 

4.55% 
(7) 

13.64
%(21) 

 
  

Page 49



- 12 - 

Question 5 - What time does the problem occur? 
 

 What time does the problem occur? 
Propos
ed 
Prohibi
tions 

All Day 
 

Evenin
g Only 
 

6am  – 
9am 
 

9am  – 
12 
noon 

12 
noon – 
3pm 

3pm – 
6pm 
 

Random
 

Street 
Drinkin
g 

67.03% 
(124) 

7.57% 
(14) 

1.62% 
(3) 

0.54% 
(1) 

1.62% 
(3) 

1.62% 
(3) 

20.00% 
(37) 

Beggin
g 

53.05% 
(87%) 

4.88% 
(8) 

0.00% 
(0) 

2.44% 
(4) 

1.22% 
(2) 

0.61% 
(1) 

37.80% 
(62) 

Rough 
Sleepe
rs 

18.57% 
(26) 

33.57
% (47) 

0.71% 
(1) 

0.71% 
(1) 

0.00 % 
(0) 

0.71% 
(1) 

45.71% 
(64) 

Public 
Urinati
on & 
Defeca
tion 

42.48% 
(65) 

14.38
% (22) 

0.65% 
(1) 

0.00% 
(0) 

0.65% 
(1) 

0.00% 
(0) 

41.83% 
(64) 

 
Question 6 - Do you consider the behaviour have an impact on you and or 
the local community in the PSPO control zone? 

 
 Do you consider the behaviour have an impact on you 

and or the local community in the PSPO control zone? 
Proposed 
Prohibitions 

Yes No Unsure 

Street Drinking 89.18% (173) 5.67% (11) 5.15% (10) 
Begging 78.29% (137) 8.57% (15) 13.14% (23) 
Rough Sleepers 56.80% (96) 16.57% (28) 26.63% (45) 
Public Urination 
and Defecation 

84.97% (147) 8.67% (15) 6.36% (11) 

 
Of the 194 responses to this question, 148 provided additional comments.  
The most common concerns raised were as follows (full details of these and 
other comments are included in the consultation document attached as 
Appendix D): 
 
30 responses stated that the behaviour puts people off visiting Hatfield Town 
Centre 
27 responses stated that they were intimidated by the behaviour witnessed 
24 responses expressed concern for young people/children who witnessed 
the behaviour 
20 responses expressed concern for their safety 

  

Page 50



- 13 - 

Question 7 - Do you think a PSPO would help address the impact/problem? 
 

 Do you think a PSPO would help address the 
impact/problem? 

Proposed 
Prohibitions 

Yes No Unsure 

Street Drinking 78.07% (148) 6.42% (12) 15.51% (29) 
Begging 67.06% (114) 9.41% (16) 23.53% (40) 
Rough Sleepers 57.14% (92) 13.66% (22) 29.19% (47) 
Public Urination 
and Defecation 

70.12% (115) 7.93% (13) 21.95% (36) 

 
Of the 187 responses to the question, 114 provided additional comments.  26 
responses made specific reference that the proposed PSPO needs to be 
enforced and there were requests for more of a presence from Police 
Community Support Officers.  There was strong support for providing 
additional advice and assistance to those who are likely to be disrupted by the 
PSPO. 

 
Question 8 – How safe do you feel in the proposed PSPO area during the 
following times? 

 
 How safe do you feel in the proposed PSPO area during 

the following times? 
 Unsafe Relatively 

Unsafe 
Relatively 
Safe 

Safe N/A 

In the town 
centre during 
daylight 
hours? 

13.13% 
(26) 

20.20% 
(40) 

45.96% 
(91) 

19.70% 
(39) 

1.01% (2)

Elsewhere on 
the proposed 
control zone 
during daylight 
hours 

10.71% 
(21) 

24.49% 
(48) 

45.41% 
(89) 

17.86% 
(35) 

1.53% (3)

In the town 
centre in the 
dark 

57.36% 
(113) 

21.32% 
(42) 

10.66% 
(21) 

7.11% 
(14) 

3.55% (7)

Elsewhere on 
the proposed 
control zone in 
the dark 

49.74% 
(97) 

28.72% 
(56) 

12.31% 
(24) 

5.64% 
(11) 

3.59% (7)

 
Responses indicate that the drinking (27) and drug use (10) are the main 
concern.  There were also mention of poor lighting (7) which makes local 
residents feel unsafe. 
 
These responses show that the behaviour that the proposed PSPO aims to 
prohibit does have a significant impact on members of the public and is a 
problem in the town centre area included on the map attached to the PSPO. 

Page 51



- 14 - 

 
The following table summarises the high level responses expressed as  
percentages of the total response. 

 
 Do you consider these to be a problem? 
Proposed 
Probibition 

Yes No Unsure 

Street Drinking 91.41% 6.06% 2.53% 
Begging 79.17% 11.46% 9.38% 
Rough Sleepers 63.64% 14.97% 21.39% 
Public Urination 
and Defecation 

75.66% 11.11% 13.23% 

 
4 Financial Implication(s) 

4.1 Enforcement costs under this order will be met by existing police and council 
staff.  The Anti-Social Behaviour Team will undertake all administration 
functions with regards to this and will use its existing legal budget in relation to 
any enforcement action required. This is supported by the PSPO Procedure 
Guide which will be finalised, subject to implementation of the Order. 

4.2 Any supplementary enforcement or back office work will form a part of the role 
of the police and Council’s ASB officers.  

4.3 Should the PSPO be approved, this must be published in accordance with the 
regulations made by the Secretary of State and there will be some costs 
associated with publicising of the order, stationery (FPN booklets) and 
signage.  These costs can be met within existing budgets held by the 
Community Safety Partnership. 

4.4 Income from FPNs is expected to be small and could be used to cover some 
associated costs of implementing the proposal.  

4.5 Home Office Guidance states that the council is liable for all court action 
undertaken by way of prosecution against the PSPO.  The council has an 
existing procedure for dealing with the use of FPNs.  Any FPN issued as a 
result of the proposed PSPO will be dealt with in line with this procedure, 
however it is not anticipated that there will be a large volume of Notices 
issued. 

5 Legal Implications 

5.1 A PSPO can be challenged by a person who lives or regularly works in the 
restricted area or visits that area under section 66(2) of the Act within six weeks 
beginning on the date when the PSPO is made or varied on the following 
grounds:- 

1. That the local authority did not have power to make the order or 
variation, or to include particular prohibitions or requirements imposed 
by the order (or by the order as varied); 

Page 52



- 15 - 

2. That a requirement under Chapter 2 of Part 4 of the Act was not 
complied with in relation to the order or the variation. 

5.2 In addition, a challenge may be made under section 67(3) as a defence to a 
charge that a PSPO has been breached (on the basis that the local authority 
did not have the power to include a particular prohibition or requirement in a 
PSPO). 

5.3 It is not intended that this Order will replace existing legislation that address 
issues such as unauthorised encampments (i.e. gypsy and traveller 
encampments as opposed to a rough sleeper occupying a car or tent) or 
control of alcohol as there is existing legislation in place to respond to this 
such as Licensing Act 2003, Public Health Act 1936 and Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990. 

6 Risk Management Implications 

6.1 Legal challenge could present a financial and reputational risk to the council 
and wider CSP. The legislation states that “interested persons” may challenge 
the validity of the order within a period of six weeks. The High Court has the 
power to quash, amend or uphold the order.  This risk has been mitigated by 
a comprehensive consultation process, which included approaches to 
interested groups such as Liberty.  All views have been considered and are 
included in this report.  

 
6.2 The penalty for breaches of this order relate to fines (FPNs), and there is a 

risk that this may lead to non-payment. However, the suite of new powers 
available allows officers to utilise a wide range of measures for those 
identified as persistently breaching the order, for example:  

 
 discretionary warnings 
 Community Protection Notices (CPN) 
 an Antisocial Behaviour Injunction (ASBI), which carries tougher sanctions 
 a Criminal Behaviour Order (CBO) 

 
Therefore the use of FPNS will be rare and only used in appropriate 
circumstances taking into account the perpetrators ability to pay and 
additional specialist needs identified 

 
The proposed recommendations are in accordance with the Act.  

 
6.3 If the process to introduce a PSPO is not followed correctly this could lead to 

a legal challenge, which will mean the council could face legal costs and 
reputational damage. This has been mitigated by demonstrating a clear 
understanding of the legislative scope through a comprehensive consultation 
process and subject to approval a targeted and specific PSPO.  

 
6.4 There is a risk that expectations will be raised by the PSPO which agencies 

cannot meet, or that the order may not resolve the issues.  This has been 
mitigated by clear communication during the consultation.  The council has a 

Page 53



- 16 - 

very strong partnership through the joint action group and key partners 
involved in enforcement were party to the initial proposals.  There will also be 
a protocol for enforcement to support the PSPO as well as promotion of the 
PSPO via public engagement events. 

 
6.5 Implementation of a zoned order could lead to displacement. The most likely 

area of displacement is towards Welwyn Hatfield parks and open green 
spaces.   This will be mitigated by the oversight of the JAG.  The PSPO has 
been reviewed by this group, and can be varied as set out in Paragraph 3.25. 

 
6.6 As this Order requires the implementation of new legislation, it could be 

construed negatively by local media due to a lack of understanding. The CSP 
has mitigated this by producing a communications plan to run in tandem with 
the consultation process, thereby pre-empting and influencing the media’s 
stance on implementation of the PSPO.  

 
6.7 The order will be formally reviewed by the JAG six months after implementation, 

and annually thereafter in order to mitigate the prevalence of any of the 
associated risks. 

6.8 Not taking action presents a reputational risk as businesses and residents have 
been complaining about these issues for some time and consider the police 
and the council to be passive. 

7 Security & Terrorism Implication(s) 

7.1 There are no known security and terrorism implications associated with this 
recommendation 

8 Procurement Implication(s) 

8.1 There are no procurement implications associated with this recommendation. 

9 Climate Change Implication(s) 

9.1 There are no climate change implications associated with this 
recommendation. 

10  Link to Corporate Priorities 

10.1 The subject of this report is linked to the Council’s Corporate Priorities: 
 Maintain a safe and healthy community  
 Protect and enhance the environment  
 Meet the borough's housing needs  
 Help build a strong local economy  

 
10.2 In addition the PSPO will enhance the community safety partnership’s ability 

to tackle ASB through a targeted but flexible approach; and help to deliver its 
objectives of: 

 Prevent Antisocial Behaviour  

Page 54



- 17 - 

 Reduce the damage caused to neighbourhoods by drugs and alcohol 
misuse 

 
11 Equality and Diversity 
 
11.1 An Equality Impact Assessment was completed and no negative impact was 

identified on any of the protected groups under Equalities legislation. 

11.2 The completed assessment is attached as Appendix E 

  
Name of author Kerry Clare 
Title   Anti-Social Behaviour and Customer Engagement Manager 
Date   08 January 2018 
 
BACKGROUND PAPERS  
Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014  
Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014: Reform of antisocial behaviour 
powers - statutory guidance for frontline professionals  
Public and open spaces information note  
Drunken behaviour in public places information note  
The Antisocial Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (Publication of Public Spaces 
Protection Orders) Regulations 2014 (Statutory Instruments)  
 
Glossary of Terms  
ASB Anti-social behaviour 
ASBI Anti-Social Behaviour Injunction 
CBO Criminal Behaviour Order 
CID Community Information Day 
CPN Community Protection Notice 
CPS Crown Prosecution Service 
CSP Community Safety Partnership 
DPPO Designation Public Protection Order 
ECHR European Convention on Human Rights 
FAQ Frequently Asked Questions 
FPN Fixed Penalty Notice 
JAG Joint Action Group 
PCC Police and Crime Commissioner  
PCSO Police Community Support Officer 
PSPO Public Space Protection Order 

 
  

Page 55



- 18 - 

 
 Appendix A – Proposed PSPO zone 

 

Proposed PSPO 
zone.docx  
 Appendix B – Draft PSPO 

 
 

 
 Appendix C – PSPO Procedure Guide 

 

DRAFT Public Space 
Protection Order proc

 
 Appendix D – PSPO Consultation Data Charts & Results 

PSPO Data charts
  

PSPO Consultati
R lt l  

 
 Appendix E – Equality Impact Assessment 

 

EIA PSPO.docx

 

Draft PSPO 
Order.docx

Page 56



Proposed Public Space Protection Zone 

 

 

Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



WELWYN HATFIELD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ANTI-SOCIAL BEAHVIOUR, CRIME AND POLICING ACT 2014 
 

PART 4, SECTION 59 
 

PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 
 
Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council (the Council) in exercise of the power under 
section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 (the Act) being 
satisfied that the conditions set out in section 59 of the Act have been met makes the 
following order: 
 

1. The Order applies of the public areas shown delineated by the red shading of 
the plan annexed to this Order (the Restricted Area): 
 
Person(s) within this area will not: 
 

a) Consume alcohol in a public place 
b) Be in possession of an open vessel(s) of alcohol in a public place 
c) Seek or accept monies from any member of the public in any public place, 

street, highway or passage(unless a registered charity) 
d) Loiter at or within ten metres of any pay machine (including banks, 

supermarkets and car parks) unless waiting legitimately to use the machine 
for the purpose it is designed for 

e) Sit on the ground in a public place, street, highway or passage in a manner 
that may be perceived that you are inviting people to give you money 

f) Urinate or defecate in a public place 
g) Sleep in any public place which is or includes: 
 Open to the air 
 Within a vehicle 
 Within a car park 
 A non-fixed structure including a caravan or tent without the prior 

permission of the owner or occupier of the land. 
 

2. Any person who without reasonable excuse fails to comply with the 
requirements of the Order commits an offence and shall be liable, on 
summary conviction to a fine not exceeding level 3 on the standard scale. 
 

3. This Order shall come into force on……………………………and remain in 
place for a period of ……………years. 
 

Dated: 
 
Signed: 
  

Page 59



SCHEDULE 
 

 
 

CHALLENGING THE VALIDITY OF ORDERS 
 
An interested person may apply to the High court to question the validity of: 

a) This Order, or 
b) A future variation of this Order. 

 
“Interested person” means an individual who lives in the restricted area or who 
regularly works in or visits that area. 
 
An appeal against the Order or a future variation of this Order may be made to the 
High Court within six weeks from the date on which the order or variation is made, on 
the grounds that: 
 

a) Welwyn Hatfield Borough Council did not have the power to make the order or 
variation, or to include particular prohibitions or requirements imposed by the 
order (or by the order as varied); 

b) A requirement under Chapter 2 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014 was not complied with in relation to the order or variation. 

Page 60



DRAFT PSPO Procedure Guide 
Kerry Clare 
August 2017 

Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership 
Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) –DRAFT Enforcement Protocol and Procedural Guide 
 
Statement 
 
Section 59 of the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced new powers for local 
authorities to create Public Space Protection Orders (PSPO) to tackle crime and disorder and create safer 
communities. 
 
This protocol is an agreement between the partners of the Community Safety Partnership (CSP) to ensure 
that enforcement of the new PSPO is proportionate, efficient and co-ordinated.  The legislation does not 
describe a set process for enforcement, so this document outlines the process considered most appropriate 
for Welwyn Hatfield. 
 
By signing this protocol partners confirm their commitment to the process and procedures described.   
 
This protocol supports Welwyn Hatfield Community Safety Partnership’s priority to prevent anti-social 
behaviour, reduce the damage caused to neighbourhoods by drugs and alcohol misuse and protect 
vulnerable people. 
 
Introduction 
 
A Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) is one of a number of tools and powers introduced by the Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 and are used to address a range of anti-social behaviours in 
particular areas to which they apply. 
 
On [date to be included], agreement was given by Welwyn Hatfield Council (WHBC to replace the existing 
Designated Public Space Protection Order (DPPO) in Hatfield Town Centre with a zoned PSPO. 
 
The exact boundaries for these zones can be viewed on the maps and supplementary affected streets in 
Appendix A. 
 
The PSPO will commence on [date to be included] once appropriate signage has been put in place and the 
relevant staff have been briefed and trained.  From this date, the behaviours in the PSPO will be prohibited 
in certain areas of Welwyn Hatfield.  The PSPO states the following:- 
 
Person(s) within this area will not: 

 Consume alcohol in a public place 
 Be in possession of an open vessel(s) of alcohol in a public place 
 Seek or accept monies from any member of the public in any public place, street, highway or 

passage(unless a registered charity) 
 Loiter at or within ten metres of any pay machine (including banks, supermarkets and car parks) 

unless waiting legitimately to use the machine for the purpose it is designed for 
 Sit on the ground in a public place, street, highway or passage in a manner that may be perceived 

that you are inviting people to give you money 
 Urinate or defecate in a public place 
 Sleep in any public place which is or includes: 
 Open to the air 
 Within a vehicle 
 Within a car park 
 A non-fixed structure including a caravan or tent 
Without the prior permission of the owner or occupier of the land. 

 
The PSPO can be enforced by accredited council officers, police officers and police community support 
officers (PCSO) once satisfied that there are sufficient grounds for enforcement. It should be noted that  
this will not be a reactive service by Council officers.  Warnings and Orders could be issued if the  
breach is witnessed whilst officers are carrying out their normal day to day duties. 

Page 61



DRAFT PSPO Procedure Guide 
Kerry Clare 
August 2017 

 
Failure to comply with either a prohibition or requirement of the order is an offence and carries criminal 
sanctions.  Breaches of the order will be discharged by use of a Fixed Penalty Notice (FPN).  The cost of 
the FPN will be set at £75, reduced to £50 if paid for within 13 days.  For persistent breaches, defendants 
can face a fine upon summary conviction (offences heard within the Magistrates Court) not exceeding level 
three of the standard scale (currently £1000). 
 
The PSPO will apply for a maximum of three years, upon which a process of reviews and consultation must 
be repeated to ascertain if the issues are still occurring and that the order is having the required impact of 
the reduction of anti-social behaviour.  The PSPO can be extended for a further three years if evidence 
supports the necessity. 
 
Publicity 
 
Council officers will organise and implement publicity of the PSPO, in order to increase public awareness.   
 
The order will be available to view on both the council and Police websites and online URL links will be 
posted via relevant social media.  WHBC will prepare maps of the PSPO zones outlining streets and 
boundaries, supplemented by a list of streets affected by the PSPO. 
 
WHBC will create and display signage both inside and on the boundaries of the PSPO zones.  This will 
clearly state the prohibitions under the Order and associated penalties of the PSPO is breached. 
 
The signage will displace the logos of the CSP, WHBC and Hertfordshire Constabulary.  Subject to written 
consent, contact details of local support services including CGL and Resolve will also be displayed, in order 
to signpost vulnerable individuals towards local recovery services. 
 
WHBC will design and print a leaflet containing information about the PSPO and contact details of support 
services.  
 

Text for PSPO 
leaflet.docx  

 
Enforcement 
 
The PSPO will be enforced by accredited council officers, police officers and PCSO’s.  Only council officers 
with legal accreditation to issue FPN’s are authorised to enforce the PSOP.  A list of accredited council 
officers can be found in Appendix B.  It should be noted that this will not be a reactive service by Council 
officers.  Warnings and Orders will be issued if the breach is witnessed whilst officers are carrying out their 
normal day to day duties. 
 
Implementation and enforcement of the PSPO is included in the CSP action plan for 2016/17 and will 
primarily be enforced by police officers and PCSOs without the need for additional resources.  The Order 
allows for officers to use the powers where they witness someone in breach of the prohibitions within the 
specified zones. 
 
Council officers will also be able to enforce the PSPO where they witness someone in breach of the 
prohibitions within the specified zones.  It may be necessary, from time to time, for the Police to provide 
assistance if there is a heightened element of risk to a Council officer’s personal safety, or the possibility of 
a breach of the peace occurring.  In these circumstances, officers should approach at their own discretion 
and should request police assistance if necessary.  Officers should not approach any intimidating or 
potentially threatening situation without police assistance. 
 
Training 
 

Page 62



DRAFT PSPO Procedure Guide 
Kerry Clare 
August 2017 

Police and council officers are required to undergo specialised training before the PSPO is implemented.  
This training will be provided by Hertfordshire Constabulary through the Community Safety Accreditation 
Scheme (SAS).  Accredited staff will be granted powers to issue FPNs to anybody that they witness in 
breach of the PSPO and will benefit from additional protection under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014. 
 
Enforcement Procedure 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 does not specify a particular process for 
enforcement of PSPOs; therefore, the CSP have agreed some general procedures for officers approaching 
persons believed to be in breach of the PSPO. 
 
Due to the distinct nature of the various prohibitions, it is important that anti-social behaviour under the 
PSPO is dealt with on the individual circumstances of each case.  Where necessary, officers should take 
the opportunity to signpost vulnerable people in breach of the PSPO (e.g. homeless or substance 
dependant) towards help services relevant to their circumstances.  Officers will also be supplied with 
leaflets containing information on local help services that can be offered to vulnerable individuals who may 
be affected by the PSPO. 
 
Procedures have been created for the prohibitions categories under the PSPO. 
 

1. Begging related breaches (Figure1) 
2. Alcohol related breaches (Figure 2) 
3. Urinating/Defecating breaches (Figure 3) 

 
The procedures are intended as general guidelines to ensure consistency between WHBC and police staff.  
Accredited officers should use these guidelines with discretion and diplomacy, and regard should be given 
to individual circumstances. 
 
Any verbal or written report received by WHBC’s Customer Service Centre from members of the public 
regarding a breach of the PSPO should be immediately referred to the non-emergency police number (101) 
or to the emergency number (999) where there is immediate or imminent danger.  Council officers will not 
respond to such reports from the public unless there is an available officer near the scene who is able to 
deal with the incident.  Any calls received by the Customer Service Centre regarding a breach of the PSPO 
should be logged through the standard Council procedure. 
 
All calls to the Police regarding a breach of the PSPO should be recorded and callers should be provided 
with a police reference number.  Any reports of a breach will be used by the police and other relevant CSP 
partners to build intelligence on specific individuals, incidents and locations.  Any incidents or locations of 
importance or concern should be raised at the local Joint Agency Group (JAG) Part I meeting.  Any 
individual of concern of significance should be raised that Anti-Social Behaviour Forum. 
 
I confirm that I have considered the PSPO Enforcement Protocol with regard to all relevant 
considerations and authorise commitment to the process and procedures described. 
 
Signed: 
 
Position:  

 
Name 
 
Date: 

 
Signed: 
 
Position:  

 
Name 
 
Date: 

 

Figure 1 

Page 63



DRAFT PSPO Procedure Guide 
Kerry Clare 
August 2017 

Has the subject breached 
any of the PSPO 

prohibitions relating to 
begging

Question the subject to 
determine their personal 
circumstances and their 
reason for breaching the 

PSPO

The subject is not in 
breach of the PSPO

Is the subject homeless?

Refer them to the Council via 
the Rough Sleepers Protocol 

and provide them with an 
information leaflet with advice 

on homelessness

Issue a Fixed 
Penalty Notice and 

an information 
leaflet

Any further breaches of the PSPO by the same 
subject should be dealt with by a FPN.  Alternatively 
officers may choose to deal with the repeat offender 

by way of a Community Protection Notice (CPN) 
where deemed to be appropriate e.g. for persistent 
offenders or those who are unable to meet the cost 

of a FPN

If the subject is caught 
breaching the PSPO a second 

time, the relevant officer 
should contact the Housing 

Options Team at the Council 
and other relevant services to 

see if the subject has or is 
engaging

Has the subject engaged with 
relevant services

Record details of 
the subject and 

issue a final 
warning

Yes

Yes

No

Yes No

No

Begging Related Breaches

ALL ACTIONS TAKEN SHOULD BE RECORDED ON SAFETYNET

These procedures are only intended as general guidelines to ensure consistency between 
officers.  Accredited officers should use these guidelines with discretion and regard should be 

given to individual circumstances.
 

   

Page 64



DRAFT PSPO Procedure Guide 
Kerry Clare 
August 2017 

Figure 2 

 
   

Page 65



DRAFT PSPO Procedure Guide 
Kerry Clare 
August 2017 

Figure 3 

Has the subject 
breached any of the 
PSPO prohibitions 

relating to urinating or 
defecating?

The subject is no 
in breach of the 

PSPO

Is the subject 
homeless?

Refer them to Council via 
the Rough Sleepers Protocol 

or other relevant help 
services and provide them 

with a advice leaflet

Has the subject 
exposed themselves 

to the public?

Yes

NoNo

Yes

Urinating/Defecating Related 
Breaches

ALL ACTIONS TAKEN SHOULD BE RECORDED ON SAFETYNET

These procedures are only intended as general guidelines to ensure consistency between 
officers.  Accredited officers should use these guidelines with discretion and regard should be 

given to individual circumstances.

If the subject is caught 
breaching the PSPO a second 

time, the relevant officer 
should contact the Housing 

Options Team at the Council 
and other relevant services to 

see if the subject has or is 
engaging

Has the subject engaged with 
relevant services

Record details of 
the subject and 

issue a final 
warning

Issue a Fixed 
Penalty Notice and 

an information 
leaflet

The behaviour may 
be a criminal 
offence under 

Section 4A and 5 
of the Public Order 

Action 1986 or 
Section Offences 
Act 2003.  Record 

the subject’s 
personal details 
and contact the 

Police.

Any further breaches of the PSPO by the 
same subject should be dealt with by a 

FPN.  Alternatively officers may choose to 
deal with the repeat offender by way of a 

Community Protection Notice (CPN) 
where deemed to be appropriate e.g. for 

persistent offenders or those who are 
unable to meet the cost of a FPN

Yes

No

No
Yes

 

Page 66



56.50% 113

24.50% 49

3.50% 7

15.50% 31

Q1 The PSPO area will cover the areas highlighted in the information
leaflet or in the FAQ sheet. Do you think the proposed control zone area

is?
Answered: 200 Skipped: 5

TOTAL 200

About right

Too small

Too large

Please provide
additional...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

About right

Too small

Too large

Please provide additional information to support your comments.

1 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 67



14.95% 29

26.80% 52

29.90% 58

28.35% 55

Q2 Are there any areas which adjoin the proposed PSPO area in Hatfield
where you feel we should consider implementing this PSPO?

Answered: 194 Skipped: 11

TOTAL 194

Yes

No

Unsure

If yes please
provide deta...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Unsure

If yes please provide details of street(s) or area and your reasons why they should be considered.

2 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 68



Q3 Do you consider any of the following to be a problem in the proposed
PSPO area?

Answered: 199 Skipped: 6

91.41%
181

6.06%
12

2.53%
5

 
198

79.17%
152

11.46%
22

9.38%
18

 
192

63.64%
119

14.97%
28

21.39%
40

 
187

75.66%
143

11.11%
21

13.23%
25

 
189

Yes No Unsure

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public
urination or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 YES NO UNSURE TOTAL

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public urination or defecation

3 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 69



Q4 If you have answered YES to any of the above how often do you feel
this problem behaviour has occurred?

Answered: 187 Skipped: 18

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

4 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 70



83.24%
154

1.62%
3

2.16%
4

5.41%
10

3.78%
7

1.62%
3

2.16%
4

 
185

57.06%
97

11.18%
19

10.00%
17

4.71%
8

1.18%
2

1.18%
2

14.71%
25

 
170

44.52%
65

10.27%
15

7.53%
11

5.48%
8

3.42%
5

0.68%
1

28.08%
41

 
146

61.04%
94

6.49%
10

2.60%
4

5.84%
9

5.84%
9

4.55%
7

13.64%
21

 
154

Daily Once a week Twice a week Three times a week

Four times a week Weekend only Less than once a week

Public
urination or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 DAILY ONCE A
WEEK

TWICE A
WEEK

THREE TIMES
A WEEK

FOUR TIMES
A WEEK

WEEKEND
ONLY

LESS THAN
ONCE A WEEK

TOTAL

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public urination or
defecation

5 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 71



Q5 With regards to the above, please give an indication of the times of
day the problem behaviour(s) happen.

Answered: 187 Skipped: 18

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

6 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 72



67.03%
124

7.57%
14

1.62%
3

0.54%
1

1.62%
3

1.62%
3

20.00%
37

 
185

53.05%
87

4.88%
8

0.00%
0

2.44%
4

1.22%
2

0.61%
1

37.80%
62

 
164

18.57%
26

33.57%
47

0.71%
1

0.71%
1

0.00%
0

0.71%
1

45.71%
64

 
140

42.48%
65

14.38%
22

0.65%
1

0.00%
0

0.65%
1

0.00%
0

41.83%
64

 
153

All day Evening only 6am-9am 9am-12noon 12noon-3pm

3pm-6pm Random Times

Public
urination or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 ALL
DAY

EVENING
ONLY

6AM-
9AM

9AM-
12NOON

12NOON-
3PM

3PM-
6PM

RANDOM
TIMES

TOTAL

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public urination or
defecation

7 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 73



Q6 Do you consider any of the following to have an impact on you and/or
the local community in the proposed control zone? (please consider the

environment, local businesses, safety of residents and visitors to the
town centre).If answering YES to any of the questions below, please

provide further details.
Answered: 195 Skipped: 10

89.18%
173

5.67%
11

5.15%
10

 
194

78.29%
137

8.57%
15

13.14%
23

 
175

Yes No Unsure

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public
urination or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 YES NO UNSURE TOTAL

Street drinking

Begging

8 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 74



56.80%
96

16.57%
28

26.63%
45

 
169

84.97%
147

8.67%
15

6.36%
11

 
173

Rough sleepers

Public urination or defecation

9 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 75



Q7 If you answered yes to either of the questions above, do you think a
PSPO would help address the impact/problem? Please provide further

details to explain your answer.
Answered: 188 Skipped: 17

78.07%
146

6.42%
12

15.51%
29

 
187

67.06%
114

9.41%
16

23.53%
40

 
170

57.14%
92

13.66%
22

29.19%
47

 
161

Yes No Unsure

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public
urination or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 YES NO UNSURE TOTAL

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

10 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 76



70.12%
115

7.93%
13

21.95%
36

 
164

Public urination or defecation

11 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 77



Q8 How safe do you feel in the proposed PSPO area during the following
times?

Answered: 198 Skipped: 7

In the town
centre durin...

Elsewhere in
the proposed...

In the town
centre in th...

Elsewhere in
the proposed...

12 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 78



13.13%
26

20.20%
40

45.96%
91

19.70%
39

1.01%
2

 
198

10.71%
21

24.49%
48

45.41%
89

17.86%
35

1.53%
3

 
196

57.36%
113

21.32%
42

10.66%
21

7.11%
14

3.55%
7

 
197

49.74%
97

28.72%
56

12.31%
24

5.64%
11

3.59%
7

 
195

Unsafe Relatively unsafe Relatively safe Safe N/A

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 UNSAFE RELATIVELY
UNSAFE

RELATIVELY
SAFE

SAFE N/A TOTAL

In the town centre during daylight hours

Elsewhere in the proposed control zone during
daylight hours

In the town centre in the dark

Elsewhere in the proposed control zone in the dark

13 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 79



Q9 If you have answered unsafe or relatively unsafe to any of the above
please can you provide further details to explain further in terms of where

(specific location) and when (weekday, time) you feel this way.
Answered: 134 Skipped: 71

14 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 80



Q10 Again if you answered unsafe or relatively unsafe to question 8
please explain further why you felt and/or feel unsafe or relatively unsafe

in that place.
Answered: 103 Skipped: 102

15 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 81



Q11 How long would you like to see the proposed PSPO be put in place
for? Please note that a PSPO cannot be implemented for longer than 3

years without review.
Answered: 193 Skipped: 12

8.29%
16

6.74%
13

84.97%
164

 
193

One Two Three

Number of years

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 ONE TWO THREE TOTAL

Number of years

16 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 82



Q12 Do you have any further comments or alternative measures that
could be used to deal with the following:

Answered: 178 Skipped: 27

45.93%
79

49.42%
85

4.65%
8

 
172

36.97%
61

60.61%
100

2.42%
4

 
165

36.11%
52

60.42%
87

3.47%
5

 
144

41.94%
65

55.48%
86

2.58%
4

 
155

Yes No Please provide further comment

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public
urination or...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

 YES NO PLEASE PROVIDE FURTHER COMMENT TOTAL

Street drinking

Begging

Rough sleepers

Public urination or defecation

17 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 83



Q13 If you have any specific comments or other items that you feel are
important to highlight with regards to the proposed implementation of this
PSPO please make them below. It is important to highlight that in order

for any PSPO to be legally binding and enforceable the council must
evidence that activities that have taken place have had a detrimental

effect on the quality of life of local people, or it is likely that activities will
take place and they will have a detrimental effect on the quality of life

Answered: 86 Skipped: 119

18 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 84



88.50% 177

12.00% 24

15.00% 30

0.50% 1

0.50% 1

1.00% 2

Q14 Are you?
Answered: 200 Skipped: 5

Total Respondents: 200  

Resident in
the borough

Business in
the borough

Worker in the
borough

Visitor in the
borough

Other

Other (please
specify)

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Resident in the borough

Business in the borough

Worker in the borough

Visitor in the borough

Other

Other (please specify)

19 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 85



47.45% 93

52.55% 103

0.00% 0

Q15 Gender
Answered: 196 Skipped: 9

TOTAL 196

Male

Female

Transgender

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Male

Female

Transgender

20 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 86



0.00% 0

5.10% 10

19.39% 38

18.37% 36

25.00% 49

9.69% 19

14.29% 28

6.63% 13

1.53% 3

0.00% 0

Q16 What is your age group?
Answered: 196 Skipped: 9

TOTAL 196

Under 18

18-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

85-94

94+

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Under 18

18-24

25-34

35-44

45-54

55-64

65-74

75-84

85-94

94+

21 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 87



Q17 How would you define your ethnicity?
Answered: 199 Skipped: 6

White

British

Irish

Gypsy or Irish
Traveller

Any other
White...

Mixed

White and
Black Caribbean

White and
Black African

White and Asian

Any other
mixed...

Asian or Asian
British

Indian

Pakistani

Bangladesh

Chinese

Any other
Asian...

Black or Black
British

African

Caribbean

22 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 88



36.68% 73

44.22% 88

3.02% 6

0.00% 0

3.52% 7

0.50% 1

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

2.01% 4

0.50% 1

0.00% 0

3.02% 6

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

1.51% 3

1.01% 2

0.50% 1

2.01% 4

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.00% 0

0.50% 1

0.00% 0

Any other
black...

Other Ethnic
Group

Arab

Any other
ethnic...

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

White

British

Irish

Gypsy or Irish Traveller

Any other White background

Mixed

White and Black Caribbean

White and Black African

White and Asian

Any other mixed background

Asian or Asian British

Indian

Pakistani

Bangladesh

Chinese

Any other Asian background

Black or Black British

African

Caribbean

Any other black background

Other Ethnic Group

Arab

Any other ethnic background

23 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 89



1.01% 2

TOTAL 199

Prefer not to say

24 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 90



12.63% 25

83.84% 166

3.54% 7

Q18 Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
Answered: 198 Skipped: 7

TOTAL 198

Yes

No

Prefer not to
say

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Yes

No

Prefer not to say

25 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 91



Q19 What is your residential or business postcode?
Answered: 184 Skipped: 21

26 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 92



92.39% 85

31.52% 29

81.52% 75

0.00% 0

77.17% 71

0.00% 0

72.83% 67

0.00% 0

66.30% 61

0.00% 0

Q20 Contact details- completing this section is optional
Answered: 92 Skipped: 113

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Name

Company

Address

Address 2

City/Town

State/Province

ZIP/Postal Code

Country

Email Address

Phone Number

27 / 27

PSPO Consultation SurveyMonkey

Page 93



This page is intentionally left blank



Q1. The PSPO area will cover the areas highlighted in the information leaflet or in the FAQ sheet. Do you think the proposed control zone area is?  Please p
About right- The chosen area is perfect because it completely covers Hatfield Town Centre where the biggest problem is. 
About right- The area is comprehensive but appears to exclude the footpath between Old French Horn Lane and there Recreation Ground, an area used as access 
for drug dealing and public urination. The PSPO excludes drug dealing, with the recreation ground used for this purpose after dark and reported on countless 
occasions.   It is a convenient stop off between Hatfield Town Centre and Old Town pubs and Station for those caught shop. 
All public footpaths leading from the control area should also be given consideration as sadly public urination and alcohol consumption is not so carefully confined. 
For example the paths leading from The Common to Stockbreach Road. 
ASB  is all over Hatfield and Welwyn Garden City. 
concern living in Hollier Court are the park to the rear of Hollier court and the town centre
For me, living in the town centre I feel this area is the most effected by ASB
Hill Top,  All children parks around Hatifled
public resources that would be better suited to help individuals with a homeless shelter or as mentioned on the we are Hatfield site a wet shelter which has been 
proven to work
I would like to see this extended to the area around Green Lanes where people sit drinking and loitering on the bench close to the Premier shop.
If this were to be as efficient as the current regulations covering "cycling on pavements" then you might as well stop now and save time, effort and money.
It covers the whole of Hatfield Town Centre. 
memorial. Far too many  instances of antisocial behaviour and drug use by non residents in the park. I personally have reported this 4 times in recent weeks as well 
as my wife.
It would help to keep Hatfield cleaned. 
area with their bikes or make ugly comments.
Should be the whole town centre 
passed, Littering, cycling on pavements & dog fouling BUT ARE NOT fully implemented. Every time I shop in the town centre, twice weekly, I am in danger of being 
knocked down by one or more cyclists.    
Stores/shops that sell drink are target areas
The Alban Way also has problems with antisocial drinking and loitering issues.
The proposal control zone area being good because most people buying drinks from the town centre and drop the empty broken bottles on the floors as well as the 
empty cans all around the town centre surroundings including the shop fronts.
There is anti social behaviour in other areas of the town centre including the subways that isn’t being tackled. Including heavy drinking and drug use. 
Too Small - Extend the control zone to include Beaconsfield road and endymion road as drinkers/drug takers sometimes congregate there.
Too Small - half a mile from town centre
Too small - problems spilling out into the footpaths from the footbridge over links road. the footpath has often drinkers among the trees on this footpath.
Too Small - Should be extended to all lemsford Rd
Too Small : The density of HMO rented to students should also be taken into consideration. We have a few student property near (+1/4 mile surrounding)AL100DW 
and they create nuisance on saturday and sunday.

P
age 95



Too small- Problems in most areas of Hatfield. 
Too small. People would just move to e.g. the cycle path 
WE DO NOT TAKE PART AS IT DOES NOT BOTHER US AS WE ARE JEHOVAH'S WITNESSES. PLEASE TAKE US OFF MAILING LIST
We feel that this should cover the whole of Hatfield as there is a problem with people with drink and drugs around the ALD1 area too.
Would need to cover garden village shops and shops near galleria also near Aldi’s 

P
age 96



Q2. Are there any areas which adjoinh the proposed PSPO area in Hatfield where you feel we should consider implementing theis PSPO? If yes please 
provide details of street(s) or area and your reasons why they should be considered.
+(1/4th mile) around AL100DW
Alban Way and cycle path areas near to Yesco Hatfield 
Alban Way to Ground lane , there are frequent groups of men standing and drinking 
Alban Way, from Ground Lane to Lemsford Road, also the park that Backs onto Alban Way Off Wellfield Road, there are always drinkers, drug takers in this park
private property car park to urinate and drink. 
Any park open space close to the town centre & all exits from subways 
Area opposite Manor Parade shops.  Particularly the footway that leads from Manor Parade, alongside the allotments, to the footbridge over the A1(M).  This area is 
hidden by trees, and is frequently used by early morning drinkers coming off night shifts on the nearby business park.    Early morning passers-by, which can include 
children, find the presence of drinkers somewhat unsettling.  Furthermore, the area fill up quickly with abandoned empty beer cans and vodka bottles.  
Around birchwood coop as always drinking and begging for money around there
As above in Q1,  Drinking den on the ffotpath up from French homelane going towards endymion road.  Drup paraphonalia found on Beaconsfield road
As above reason and street
As above the subways by the swimming pool and the library 
As mentioned previously all public footpaths leading from the proposed area for example the footpaths from The Common to Stockbreach Road.
Birchwood shops and by the Co-Op. 
Children Parks  All Underpasses  Town Centre  Hilltop  
Cycle path. Open area around Park House Court. The park on Briar's Lane. Areas around the Galleria.
Estates behind and infront of Asda, specifically the subway connecting the towns. I regularly pass beggars and was threatened by one on the atm of asda
Every where here are drinkers and drug takers should be tackled 
deter them enough.
Garden village and all other shop areas in Hatfield birch wood and hilltop 
Hatfield Town Centre (Asda), near Galleria too as that street behind the Swim Centre is too dirty. 
Hatfield Town Centre.
Hilltop area speeding
include entire park behind cranbourne rd, endymion rd and school lane.
Market place I run a youth session and the young people are always getting approached by them which is a safeguarding matter 
More often in Market Place the back side and the front side.
Old French Horn Lane
the garages.  Near & opposite the recycling bins on the common. Gangs of people drinking.  Drunk people urinating in public places.  Drug peddlars & people 
dumping rubbish in flats on the common.
Should cover all of Goldings Crescent as this path is used frequently to walk between the train station and town centre. 
should include the woods and footpath between Onslow St, Audreys and Oak view school.

P
age 97



Skate park   Birchwood
Small park on the park meadow estate, opposite the train station behind the memorial. 
South Hatfield
St Albans Road East is not included and it is pitch dark after midnight as all street lights go off. 
St Albans Road West, from swimming poop to Galleria. 
Stores like Co-operative , stores on birchwood
Subway
Subways children's park areas 
The access footpath from Old French Horn into the recreation ground also accessed off St Albans Road East. 
The area around hill top/ briars lane and the shopping ares near aldi
The pedestrian walkway and bridge from the town centre leading to Old Rectory Drive should also be included as the issues mentioned in the publication also have 
an impact here, particularly due to drinking and the rubbish caused. The safety of pedestrians would also be increased in this area where it is secluded.
The place around the old market place
The small park in Park Meadow estate that gives access to the estate if you are walking from the train station often has people using the climbing frame for shelter to 
do drugs. I have reported this to the police on a number of occasions.
There has for some while now been a significant increase in minor vandalism in and around the surrounding streets to the south of Queensway 
Town centre
Town centre needs more
Town centre park house birchwood 
Town subways need to be policed 
Train station   Underpasses leading up to centre
We feel that this should cover the whole of Hatfield as there is a problem with people with drink and drugs around the ALD1 area too.
WE LIVE IN SHELTERED ACCOMMODATION (PRIVATE) AS MY HUSBAND IS PARTIALLY BLIND DEAF AND HAD A STROKE
Wellfield Road: the memorial gardens, the GP surgery where a religious group of people who are anti abortion have a presence to target pregnant women. The play 
park off Wellfield  Road and the green open space where drug users , drinkers and rough sleepers congregate
Woods avenue   Birchwood
Yes, the area outside the betting shop in Crawford Road, Birchwood.

P
age 98



Q3. Do you contsider any of the following to be a problems in the proposed PSPO area?  If YES, please provide specific details, (including, where 
possible, location, type of behaviours and characteristics of those involved i.e. gender, ethnicity, rough age etc.)
Public urination or defecation- Absolutely horrified with a group of males in St Albans Road East playing area who openly urinated infront of me. 
A lot of people seem to urinate on and around the entrance to Hollier Court, French Horn Lane. Unable to use subway around the rounabouts  
Alcohol consumption in public areas  
Always beggars or people with blankets hanging around asda and the town.     People drinking in the old market square,  I'm too scared to walk that way now. 
Around the old market place in town
leaving rubbish and cans , often urinating or defecating in public view. Drug dealing and using is rife. All ages. Drinkers appear to be Eastern European and often 
early in morning have high vis jackets on and appear to be on way home from night work? 
Awful to go to town centre, feel not safe and intimidated
Have heard reports but not seen first hand
Begging: Male
Begging: Occasional begging but not seen any issues  Rough Sleepers: Unaware of any issues  Public urination and defecation: Not personally witnessed it
Between the library and the Pizza House it stinks   also subways around bus-stops at Market area Weeds Avenue 
Drinkers always in market place
drinking - Square by Queensway main sqoad  Always some people, usually male but some females. noisy and arguments  Subway st luke church  Begging - Asda 
and boots  Rough sleepers - Arcade   PU or D - Subway by the memorial hall - Bad smell
Drinking and begging back of Asda through to the town     Begging often aggressive     Evidence of street drinking always left - looks horrid
also be seen begging at times too. The problems of public urination and litter is a by product of this behaviour. The walkway linking old rectory drive and the town 
centre has lots of issues due to this. The benches in the old market square also have this a lot of the time. It puts people off walking through particularly with younger 
children.
drinking....market square, garages at st peters close, bench on st albans road east    begging.... town centre, market square    urination....market square, garages at 
st peters close, bench on st albans road east    begging.... town centre, market square  
Drinking/ public urination often takes place in the subways under roundabouts. 
and arguing in the disabled toilet opposite queensway house     And boy racers in asda car park using it as a stunt and race track at night     Eastern Europe Ons 
drinking outside the library and sleeping behind boots 
Drug use. Youngsters aged 17-21. Mainly male but there haven been large groups of females too.
Drunken lady in the bushes next to seating area in the old market place. She was videod excramating in daylight.
During the night time, the area around the town square can be full of drunk people & fights. This is normally white men in their twenties upwards. As a woman who 
lives in the square it can be very intimidating to come home particularly at night and on certain days ie fridays.
Dellfield Road. 
East Europeans seem to be drinking in our squares
Eastern European drinkers often in the town centre. Beggars often outside ASDA.

P
age 99



cycle route. They are mostly men with a few girls and are mostly eastern european.   There are also beggers and drug users in the town centre and else where in the 
town.
around Aldi too    
Hatfield town centre, Queensway, old market place, Asda.  Males, British, Eastern European, 20 -60 years. Openly drinking, drugs, begging, urinating, littering.
communal gardens. 
people from entering,walking through or shopping in areas close to this behaviour.  I have also associated street urination in Cranborne Road early in the morning by 
a middle aged man clearly enebriated who was roughly dressed.  
I have seen Public urination in the town in broad daylight
I have to say that I have never seen any of the above ASB in the proposed area.
known as Lee asking people for money in the town centre and my son (21) was approached by a scruffy looking couple, possibly in their 30s/40s asking for money for 
a drink.  He is, fortunately, able to stand up for himself.  
intimidating to walk through the town centre because of the loitering and drinking that goes on. It is not a relaxing or leisurely atmosphere, people cannot enjoy their 
time in town because of it. Especially those with children.    You now struggle to get from one end of asda to the other without being begged. and although i do feel 
bad for those in need, it is very uncomfortable and intimidating.    The town needs more than a lick of paint and a few new shops.    it needs a new atmosphere and 
until the drinkers, loiterers and beggers are removed from the area, nobody will want to spend time there, no matter how much money you spend.    To make sure it is 
a success however, there needs to be regular patrols or PCSOs that will actually enforce the order.  Otherwise it will be a waste of time if there is no consequence.    
I know other pople have issues with beggars but they dont bother me, if they did i would notify the police 
rang by rough sleepers asking to be let into the building.    There is also an issue with very loud buskers playing for too long (sometimes broken up with evangelical 
preaching)
I rarely go into the town centre as I’m often scared of drinkers and or anti social individuals approaching my children and I. Groups of drinkers often sit near the town 
inn area and can look intimidating when I’m on my own 
I see street drinking in the old marketplace most days, can make me feel uneasy when leaving work at night. Variety of ages, genders and ethnicity.    We have found 
evidence of rough sleeping outside library when we have arrived at work on a couple of occasions (items left behind).    I have not observed public urination but have 
smelt it.    I have noticed begging while in the town center, usually men, variety of ages and ethnicity.  
If it is not enforced then things will just carry on by all who do it now.
In and around Birchwood area near both sets of shops
Mainly I think it is foreigners, not sure of ethnicity, young middle aged, seem to meet up.     Back of our shop and car park      This is a regular and disgusting problem 
we have reported many times - also dogs!!  plus spitting/ cigarette ends/ litter especially in arcade 
Male and female's are drinking at the corner next to the palmer shop and starting to shout and beg for money
flats in Birchwood area 
Mostly town centre area. but also in the PSP.  All genders, ethnicity and most age groups but few elderly.
My neighbour a heroine / crack addict begs pretends to be homeless when she has a flat and has lived above me in BC Garden village for 13 years 
Next to the town inn pub 

P
age 100



Not only could I give a description I could name half of them. They are congregated by the town inn usually drinking strong lager, acting awfully and using heroin and 
other illicit drugs. They’re English however I have seen polish PCL workers drinking heavily early in the morning in subways too. 
On the bench outside the library and in the square opposite the Polish shop.
Only today i have seen a video of someome using the bushes of hatfield as a toilet
People drinking and taking drugs constantly in the old market square and in the under pass from the old Parker square to queens way! Oh and now on the benches in 
lion square!     People uribate all round the areas mentioned above 
Persistent street drinking in town centre. Particularly noticed during Wednesday market day in vicinity of Specsavers. Apparently they began at 7 in the morning. I 
have reported it to police who came and removed them but after a few weeks they return. They were all white local people over the age of 30.
of urination on a daily basis
Public urination or defecation: park off of French Horn Lane often used. Quite disgusting.
Routinely see begging (i.e. Whitney) in the town area along with drinking, enforcement action seldom seems to be taken. 
town centre  and town centre  RS - Town centre, near ASDA, Bushes around aero  PU or D - St peters close, swimming pool, queens way, all under round about 
pavements and benches, Cavendish Way asda, town centre, car park behind town centre
SD - groups of drinkers in area in front of shops which used to have the market stalls  B - used to be more  
SD - Market place and town centre  B - Market place, town centre and subways  RS - ASDA and Boots  PU or D - Market place and Service carpark behind shops
proposed PSPO area.  PU or D - As above
SD - small groups  B - outside polish shop, boots   RS - Old railway to st albans now closed
SD - uncorfortable/ intimidation - groups of people drinking - avoid steps or slops to subways to avoid  B - Prominent  RS - in park behind Holliers court in tents - 
cardboard boxes - rubbish - excrement, cans and bottles
Skating Park in Hatfield Centre by the Queensway House  All the underpasses   Children Parks 
keep warm.
South exit from Hat East recreation ground
hazard to the public.  
corridors of the milnet place, upstairs infront of the shops and also around CxW carpets alley way arena.  PU or D - Most found behind CxW carpets and behind 
Marflett place, 
shop     
Street Drinking - On the common car park by the tree, which is opposite to recycling bins.  Begging - By ASDA. In front of supermarket. Asking for money & Getting 
drunk  Walkway from common to stock breach close.
back 
Street Drinking- Around the Town Centre and under the sub-ways its getting that I don't feel safe walking around any more.   Begging - Around town centre don't mind 
if it's for food but not for alcohol or drink  Rough Sleeping - I do feel sorry for them but some Really don't do themselves any favours.  Public Urination- Normally in the 
tunnels in the sub-ways they really don't care doing it in front of anyone I.E children / elderly.     

P
age 101



encountered aggression or poor language from them.  Begging in the town centre from some of the younger individuals can be rather pushy and I feel horrible for not 
wanting to give money. The genuine rough sleepers seem grateful for drinks/ food/ toiletries etc.   Public urination etc is absolutely unacceptable and I see little 
reason for this to happen, other pure laziness and lack of moral.
money and fags. No one sit's outside anymore due to them (losing trade).     Rough sleepers- Dog Kennel Lane car park, behind the bins they sleep.    Public 
urination or defecation- They urinate everywhere, where ever they feel like it. I witness it every day. 
Polish people.     I have encountered begging at the entrance of Asda and the exit of the Galleria (at McDonalds) by what appear to be British young male people.     
There have been incidents with people setting up tents and sleeping in the park next to St Lukes church and inside the cemetery - not sure about the characteristics 
of those involved.     
Street drinking in front of Eurosupermarket store in town center and in front of the romanian shop in white lion square.
money!    Rough sleepers- This is a Government problem for not giving the right support in mental health and open borders so people come here with no money to 
support themselves.    Public urination or defecation- All of the above can lead to this. 
Street drinking- In Market Place they stand in my office door drinking and swearing when it rains. Polish speaking I think, 30/40 years old.     Begging- Youngsters 
known drug users in Market Place.    Rough sleepers- Use our rear courtyard as a toilet and sleeping place. We now bolt rear yard by they still climb over.    Public 
urination or defecation- Use our rear courtyard as a toilet and sleeping place. We now bolt rear yard by they still climb over.
Street drinking- In the morning there are a group of Eastern European men drinking in the skate park and also the underpass by Hatfield Swim Centre.    Begging- 
Behind the shops in the car park behind Scope etc.     Rough sleepers- Behind Boots.     Public urination or defecation- Behind CW Carpets and in the alleyway down 
the side of the shops and our the front of Scope. We used to leave the gate open behind our shop for the dustmen and there would be Human faeces. 
Street drinking- In the night time they are smoking noise speaking loud and having drinks  Public urination- Where i'm living directly under my stairs near the front 
Street drinking- man drinking in Hatfield Town Centre.    Begging- In Hatfield Town Centre.
Street drinking- Market Place in Hatfield. Near Library. Men and ladies of white, black ethnicity. Mostly white.    Begging- An English lady begging for pounds around 
the Newsagent shop near leisure swimming centre.    Rough sleepers- Various white males sitting around Asda or main street in Hatfield Town Centre.  
60s scruffy  Rough sleepers - in my bin cupboard men and women about age 35 while not sure  Public urination- Yes white men on the steps near my flat about age 
30
be visually threatening to the elderly and a barrier to where they wish to go.     Begging- Only encountered around The Arcade and Asda but threatening to the elderly 
if it sometimes becomes aggressive.     Rough sleepers- Occasionally encountered in the Recreation Ground between St Albans Road East and Old French Horn 
Lane and can be a turf issue between drug dealers and sleepers.    Public urination or defecation- Encountered in the footpath off Old French Horn Lane, access into 
the recreation ground and in the underpass from the Hatfield Town Centre for those caught short between Hatfield Town Centre and Old Town pubs and Station. 
Street drinking- People using drugs on the street.     Public urination or defecation- Many times people urinate on my building. 
subways smell of urine. 
they don't give them money. more likely to happen with youngsters begging     Rough Sleepers- WE should provide more shelters for the homeless  Public Urination- 
Subways, corners in town centre, usually caused by men who drink in town. 
green Lane/ Alban Way area.   Public urination- Hatfield Station, Queensway & Cavendish, Appears to be mostly due to drunks leaving the station late at night, all 
ages 

P
age 102



Street drinking:  There is some street drinking but generally in small groups who dont cause any disturbances    Rough sleepers:  However, I am really in this area at 
night    Public urination or defecation:  Not that I've seen
sad people have to beg in today's society. It is mainly male.     Rough sleepers: Yes i understand it is happening in our town. But i believe the combined churches are 
trying to establish a night shelter for the winter     Public urination or defecation: Yes this is a huge problem in Hatfield, especially in the underpasses of the town. I 
would say it is possibly a male problem. Would public toilets solve the problem.
Street drinking: All genders, ethnicity, ages, generally town centre, subway etc. Broken bottles, cans left around as well as bottles. Shouting etc.     Begging: Town 
centre, males of middle-age or youngsters    Rough sleepers: Subways rear town centre, clothing left around and food and drink containers    Public urination or 
defecation: Mainly in subways, near town centre. Evidence often, but i have not actually witnessed these offences taking place. I do not go out at night
Street drinking: All PSPO area white males    Begging: Males sat outside shops 30-70  
Street drinking: Always leave bottles and cans. Threw inside my garden    Begging: Asking for £1 or 20p    Rough Sleepers: In the park near my house    Public 
urination or defecation: They piss over my wooden gate
Street drinking: Behind galley croft, around bin area, and around where cars are parked polish, Romanian, men sometimes women and English.       Public urination 
or defecation: As above in laction urinating and human faeces inside and outside bin area. 
Street drinking: Bus park off the common 5 men possibly eastern European between 20-40    Begging: Town centre near Barclays bank. Female British 18-22    
Public urination or defecation: No idea who on communal stair case at little mead Hatfield 4 times
They create litter (often dirty) and use the area as a toilet    Public urination or defecation: Dog kennel lane car park - behind boots and store 21 they defecate in our 
bins and outside our fire escapes.
Street Drinking: Drunk people always shouting, Make dirty area, they're noisy.  Begging: Always wants money for alcohol  Public urination or defecation: The lady 
always make urination in corner between TV sims shop and curou point.
Street drinking: Eastern Europeans specifically, all ethnicities that are a nuisance too.    Begging: Main offenders have recently been dealt with    Rough Sleepers: 
None known    Public urination and defecation: No details but a frequent issue, especially in the subways.
Urination: Behind store21 and boots
Street drinking: Groups of men and women visibly drinking and roaming around. They are intimidating and unpleasant    Begging: Aggressive begger's by asda and 
town centre shops    Public urination: Once in White Lion Square 
Street Drinking: Groups of people sitting on the wall and hanging around near the town inn pub  Begging: Experienced this several times  Rough Sleepers: Have 
experienced males sleeping in between the shops in kennel wood lane  Public Urination: witnesses next to Queensway health Clinic
Street Drinking: Hatfield Market Place is particularly bad pretty much throughout the day. Both male and female; mixed ages. I have witnessed aggressive behaviour    
Begging: Throughout the town centre. Male and female. 20 upwards    Rough sleepers: Rear of Boot and store twenty one. Male, not English age 30-50.More than 
one person.    Public urination and defecation: Close to the public toilets in the town centre. At the rear of retail properties in dog kennel lane
Street Drinking: I regularly notice people who drink at old market area. I am not sure now but previously lot public toilets in front of Queensway house was always 
locked   7 someone used to knock the door and come out a little while.    Begging: 1. By Asda where the side of ATM allocated. Also boots. Especially in the evening. 
2. A girl asked to help her as she was or is homeless at St Albans Road East. A white British male aged between 25-35 & a white British female aged 20-25.
Street Drinking: in eth market place in the town centre  Begging:   Rough Sleepers:   Public Urination: Subways
Street Drinking: In the grounds of Holliers Court residents 60+    Public Urination & Defecation: The enterance of Holliers Court, Mixed 25+

P
age 103



Although not many - one was found to be sleeping during the day outside smarties school-ware which scared a few customers.  Public Urination & Defecation: Near 
alley at Bet Fred and Robinhood Way
in stairwells of my flat
Street drinking: Local males around 20-40s Polish / Romanian outside European shop on high street    Begging: Male 50's sits with suitcase outside Boots.     Public 
urination or defecation: Same people drinking in streets
There are also homeless people wandering around drunk.    Begging: every day I get asked for money in the town centre, normally by young adults    Rough sleepers: 
A lot of people sleep rough behind Boots in the town centre    Public urination or defecation: I have caught a number of homeless or drunks urinating in the alley way 
between town centre and the dog kennel lane car park
Street drinking: Male and females congregate unashamedly in various locations beneath trees, on benches or walls to meet up and drink/take drugs.  Begging: Not 
experienced it but heard of others that do  Rough Sleepers: In doorways  Public urination or defecation: Around the back near the common carpark   
Street drinking: Male, eastern European, 40-50 years old. Shout abuse or sexual harassment to my ex-girlfriend.    Begging: Asda cash points and fuel pumps. Male, 
British 30-40 years old. Aggressive. Gives some sort of excuse why he needs the money  
same area as above (English speaking adult males)    Rough Sleepers: In the past (over 1 year ago) rough sleepers getting in to communal area of my block of flats 
(opposite boots)  
Male Homeless
defecation: Particularly eastern European men who see fit to break into our back yard which is PRIVATE and catching them "mid-flow" against our walls & doors. 
Also, catching the dirty gits taking a dump right where our stock is delivered, because they are too bloody lazy and disgusting to walk around the corner to the public 
toilet.     
as above
Street drinking: Market place next to the bus stop  Begging: Town Centre youngsters mainly  Rough Sleepers: Town centre, close to boots and asda  Public Urination 
or defecation: at the back of boots (car park)
Street drinking: Market place, town centre - mixed gender, ethnicity and age    Begging: Across town centre    Rough sleepers: Around the town centre (behind boots)   
Public Urination or defecation: Around the town centre
Street drinking: Mid age drink drugs    Begging: mid age    Rough sleepers: Shop door ways, mid age
area at the last streetlight, linger and leave rubbish when they leave.     Begging: 1 knocking on house front doors asking for money, water etc. during a breakdown 
(car) Men 20/30s foreign. 2. French Horn Lane, 11am -11:30am, sundays; middle aged men approaching lone female to closely trying to engage.     Public urination 
or defecation: 1. Old French Horn Lane, this area is not overloaded by streetlight. When streetlights turned off at night, they hang around, have defecated / urinated 
on driveways/public highways. 2. Men regularly stop off to urinate in this street, in full view of passers by, at top of footpath where it meets french horn lane. 
Street drinking: Outside Euro supermarket, big groups of polish men 30s-50s always after 6  Begging: Along the side of ASDA and near ASDA's cash machines. 
affairs.    Begging: Can be intimidating particularly for young and the old.    Rough sleepers: I am approached regularly by those facing homelessness and welcome 
that there will be more of a focus on outreach and support for these people.    Public urination or defecation: Would suspect that excessive consumption of alcohol is 
a contributing factor

P
age 104



at night by mainly drunk males arguing and fighting. This happens almost a weekly basis. My girlfriend is afraid to walk through the town at night as she has been 
hassled many times by Eastern European men in groups drinking in the street.    Begging: Theres always people begging in the town centre outside ASDA's and 
boots pharmacy were even had people being aggressive whilst begging.     Rough sleepers: I have seen people sleeping rough in the town centre all over and we 
have even had people sleeping in the communal areas in my block of flats on several occasions.    Public urination or defecation: This happens on a regular basis 
through out the town and especially at the back of the shops. I have seen this myself when looking out from my balcony.
be trouble but its disconcerting for a female walking alone & they appear to be 30-40's possibly eastern European.    Begging: I have seen beggars near asda - i don't 
mind if they don't pressure people or sit under the cash machines. I have frequently given an old man a sandwich there. I have been approached by a couple who 
look distorted and possibly on drugs. On my way to and from the train station - this is very unpleasant.    Rough Sleepers: Sometimes see few men sleeping on the 
benches in the garden area near St Lukes Church. It sad they have to sleep there. It doesn't cool good & not good for others but where can they go.    Public 
Urination or defecation: I think there has been some defecation occuring in the underpasses. Generally these areas are horrible and don't feel safe for anyone to use 
male approx 40
Street drinking: The park between Hollier Court and Countess Ann School, and the town centre next to the town inn. They appear to be mainly polish.    Rough 
Sleepers: The park between Hollier Court and Countess Ann School, mainly foreign.     Public urination or defecation: In the same park it's disgusting     
night drunks, worse at weekends
they are not intrusive or a problem    
Manor area
drugs, were begging money. An old man near boots in town centre is begging money he has luggage were is written i am homeless.     Public urination and 
defecation: Near cemetery town center always people were urinating there, and consuming alcohol.
subways
Street drinking: Town centre, skate park, subway between link drive / town centre    Begging: Near asda library / town centre. Drunken man (50?) asking for money for 
food. Young woman (20). Aggressive asking for money.    Public urination or defecation: Town centre near polish shop. Men.
Street Drinking: Twice a week  Begging:   Rough Sleepers:   Public Urination: 
Street drinking: Where market used to be held / by the Town Inn - Number of individuals drinking on benches.     Public urination or defecation: Car park area, 
alleyway (leading to halifax) on 2 occassions seen - male, age unknown 2 spaces behind halifax have had faeces. 
Street drinking: White Lion sq, loud aggressive male, eastern European, ordered female who came back from market place with 2 cans. Ages 20-60    Begging: 
Outside asda, boots, store 21, natwest bank. Also path through asda cark park ages 40-65 Male.
Street Drinking: White men ages 15-45    Begging: At 10:30pm on Friday 29th September was approached by a woman aged late 20's early 30s (Near Asda)    
Rough Sleepers: NEAR Asda mostly saw one man sleeping rough
Court as a public convenience
Subways are used as toilets + bushes
The park on St Albans road east always has drunks urinating in fthe not of children!
incidents of rough sleeping (teenagers to middle aged). Also drug use (teenagers to  young adults).   Train station: drinking alcohol and some begging.   Although 
some groups of people drinking alcohol appear to be of Eastern European origin, the problems I encounter are caused mainly by British teenagers and British young 
adults. 

P
age 105



White Lion Square, outside the shops on the Market Place balcony and the in alleyway adjacent to Bet Fred. Both groups are mostly male although not exclusively 
and late 20s - early 40s.  As I work in XXX Town Centre, the drinkers that congregate around and in the alley adjacent to Bet Fred / Dog Kennel Lane are a particular 
issue, on numerous occasions I have had customers to the shop complaining of feeling threatened by their presence, which has led to them postponing their visit to 
the shop or phoning me to ask me to accompany them to the shop from elsewhere in the town centre. On many occasions when i've asked them to desist and move 
away i've been met with a barrage of abuse, or at very least belligerence.    From personal experience of confronting them whilst in the act on numerous occasions 
both Dog Kennel Lane car park, and the alley adjacent to Bet Fred, are frequently used as a public toilet.    It has been well documented on local social media sites 
and through conversations i've had with people that the behaviours listed above are putting people off visiting Hatfield Town Centre.
alcohol and do this in this area   Some anti social behaviour has become excessive in birchwood lately but it comes from a home that the tenants shouldn't be 
occupying 
The town centre, skate park, Queensway, Goldings, Asda and outside palmers is constantly occupied with the same faces or drug users, yes the lot who spend day in 
day out in the town centre!  Homeless people (man outside Asda  and young girl with dog also sits outside Asda! Oh and WD! 
street which we have witnessed on a number of occasions, they also relieve their bowels at the back of shop on a regular basis.  Constant begging for money or 
cigarettes 
harmless. Street drinking isn't ever the problem since they are enjoying their own company rather than affecting anyone else's. However those that smoke in these 
areas and trade drugs are quite unsettling.    beggars here are very intimidating, and sometimes threatening. I was almost forced to take money out of the atm, so the 
woman could conveniently take my card.    my estate (feather dell) occasionally gets loiterers that block people's paths or argue very loudly which is very unsettling - 
they tend to be rough age/unemployed or not english    
Place, but also often in White Lion Square and the area leading from the square to Asda.  Various ages. They are sometimes swearing loudly as they talk to each 
other.  Their presence is rather intimidating,even though they are not actively aggressive to the public, and their presence definitely does not make the town centre 
seem attractive and welcoming. I avoid looking at them or attracting their attention in any way.    I have seen public urination in another area of Hatfield (my own 
street) and I know that public defecation has been seen in Downs Lane. I thought this was an offence in any case, without a PSPO area.     Rough sleepers I know 
have been a problem in Hatfield town centre, especially as they leave evidence of public defecation (I have been told this by a shop manager) and other mess (e.g. in 
There are some drunk people screaming in the Street and empty alcohol bottles and cans found in the street.      I have found once occasion a drunk person slept 
outside my garden entrance (Goldings Crescent)     Always found some male doing so near the bushes
There is always drinkers in the town centre in the old market square. They're like everyday from 9-5 as if it's their day job. Whitney is constantly begging all over 
Hatfield and causes a lot of trouble if you refuse her money.
threatening, although I am not aware of any actual physical assaults.  Above all, the resulting litter problem is horrendous.    The worst location is by the small 
electrical sub-station alongside the footway that leads from the northern edge of Manor Parade shops, alongside the allotments, to the footbridge over the A1(M).    
This has been reported to the police on previous occasions.
Town both males and females drug uses and drinkers always bothering the young people in Hatfield coming from school 
Town Centre
Town Centre  Town Centre   Help should be available not a prosuption 
Town centre beside the Town Inn pub (footfall area). Along roadside.    Main town centre near Simmons.        

P
age 106



Town centre, always the same faces drinking in the market square or outside the off lisense, or where the fountain used to be. Never really aggressive but can still be 
intimidating for people, especially with children. They're the ones urinating and defacating down the alley by C W Carpets as well. Some Eastern Europeans, some 
English folks. The English people tend to be the more aggressive ones, as well as being the ones who tend to beg. 
Town Centre, particularly the d market place area where groups gather & consume alcohol. Some of these groups use the adjoining bushes as toilets.   Also the 
subways around the town centre that are used by groups of drinkers. I never use these now but regularly see groups of drinkers when driving on the roundabouts 
Town inn public house seen many times urinating in public   Drugs being sold in old market   Drinking by new market tell a police man there not bothering 
Wee in the underpass by st Luke's church
White Lion Sq, and in Market Sq - where there are benches!!   Mixed gender  Mainly white ethnicity  Age approx: twenties and upwards to fifties (hard to say really!!)

P
age 107



environment, local businesses, safety of residents and visitors to the town centre).If answering YES to any of the questions below, please provide further 
details.
All of the above affect everyone in the local community. It makes our town look dirty. Drinking in public isn't nice and I hate taking my children past the drinkers. W 
who always begs and is well known to the police is terrifying not only for me and my kids but for everyone she approaches. She's often out cold on the floor around 
Hatfield after drinking or being on drugs. When the drinkers need to use the toilet they pee wherever they are. It's disgusting 
All of the above affects health, cleanliness and perception of public safety.
All: Very intimidating for people when walking past. Can put people off visiting the town
Around and along the subways - groups of youngsters 
As a family we avoid the town centre so my children do not have to see these things 
As a female I can feel venerable travelling from my place of work to the public car park, through the old market place where people are drinking.    All of these 
behaviors do not set a pleasant, welcoming tone to Hatfield - creates a bad impression and does not encourage people to visit    You do not feel 100% safe while 
walking around the town center, particularly outside of business hours - honestly if i did not work here I would not come here.
effect on businesses ability to trade effectively. That people feel in any way threatened by the behaviour of people engaging in the above is totally unacceptable.  
Street drinkers are often the first thing people encounter when entering the town, hardly a good first impression. Subways and alleys /walkways smelling of urine 
again are hardly welcoming. 
Begging - makes me feel unsafe, especially when with my 3 young children    Beer cans all over - bad for the environment, looks awful    I avoid the town when 
possible due to it being a bad environment for my children. 
Both ticked just shouldn't be happening as it is at present. Now if there was a pub, with an allocated area for drinking, that would be fine and feel more acceptable. 
But not random groups of people around town.  Not using the toilet is plain nasty
Can be embarrassing for our customer and intimidating we  have to witness many fights/ shouting    Begging - still happening   Rough sleeping - Usually out of sight    
Public urination- Massive problem in and behind Arcade / Human / dogs
if it occurs should not be tolerated 
walk through town as you never know what you’re going to come across. If adults feel this way I dread to feel how the younger community feel about this. The town 
centre is in desperate need of a overhaul and whilst Works have started new businesses and customers are going to be reluctant to be part of it when we face this 
day in day out! 
Don’t like to go into market square because of these people 
Don't wish to shop in town due to this problem. Not nice for shoppers, young children,  the elderly and business owners.
Early mornings in the subway groups drinking- begging random times
feel intimidated when asked for money
Feel unsafe walking through town with many drinkers especially early morning late evening en route to station 
For the reasons stated above previously.
Frightened to pass the drinking groups and sleep distrurbed 
Hatfield town centre and the surrounding parks have been ruined by street drinking for years. Creating a PSPO is long overdue. 
Hen these groups of men drinking it is very intimidating for a woman to walk past on their own. 

P
age 108



I am reluctant to visit the town centre at any time of day because of the drinking, begging and smell from urination.
I avoid the town  centre 
I bought a flat in the town centre as I thought it would be a nice safe space to live with my kids but to be honest it was the biggest mistake of my life. The anti-social 
behaviour has made the last 3 years hell for me and my family. 
I do not bring visitors to my home in Hatfield because of the number of street drinkers in the town square. They are loud, and can be abusive to the public. I also try to 
avoid visiting the Asda in Hatfield at night due to constant accosting by beggers.
I don't like going into town with my children as you don't know what your going to see. People urinating staggering around and shouting abuse 
I dread going into the town centre and only go if I absolutely have to.  I'm quite a confident person but feel intimidated by the behaviour and actions of the people who 
do this.  I don't think it should be confined to just the above issues either.  Can you do something about all the dogs let loose to roam the streets too!
periods of time in the town.
my child to hear, a few times I’ve had people ask me for money and when I’ve said I haven’t got any I’ve got verbally abused and when I see people rough sleeping 
it’s quite upsetting to see I know they can’t help it but there should be a place for them to go where they don’t have to be cold or urinate in the street. I hate having to 
cross by the lights at the town in as the people who drink tend to congregate around the benches and it can be quite intimidating 
Intimidating, makes you want to avoid the town centre
intimidating going round that party of the town! 
It has made the town an unattractive place to visit.
It makes the town centre unappealing and not a place to go. 
It makes the town undesirable to visit
It makes the town unsafe: they fight, beg and steal from local shops. I grew up in this town and it’s worse than ever.
It tarnishes the town and gives it a bad name. It's also very intimidating to walk through town when people are high on drugs or drunk.
It will only be a positive move.      Hatfield is very behind with this kind of thing. Everywhere else this is commonplace; no street dribking, begging etc.    Lots of other 
local towns also have smoking orders now, Hatfield still doesn't even have a drinking one. It is long overdue.
Its intimidating and frightening. people in the areas just outside the proposed zone will likely see an increase of this behavior nearer their homes.
It's not nice for residents to have to put up with this.
Its not very nice to see and smell especially with young children about 
It's repulsive and I feel totally unsafe walking into and around town especially with my young children.
It's scary to walk past these people. I understand they need help and are in a terrible situation but some can be verbally aggressive and some sound aggressive when 
they aren't actually being so. I used to buy food for a man who quietly sat by Boots but others scare me.
I've seen people street drinking, but I haven't seen them interfering with other people.
Just doesn't look good bad for business and young people think it's acceptable to use drugs and drink in town 
lets down the tone of the town centre and wouldn't be tolerated in WGC!
centre regularly
Makes hatfield an unwelcome place to vist and shop
makes people not want to visit

P
age 109



My children shouldn’t be seeing any of the above. Homelessness is a different matter, they can’t help being homeless (well some can’t)
me from walking around
None really. The people who do it just abuse you. Language they use highly offensive
People feel it is not a nice place to be. Makes place feel rundown
People will not want to visit hatfield town centre as they feel intimidated
Public drinking and urination are a risk to the safety and health of my children and mean they can't even touch walls in town for fear they've been urinated on.   Also, 
chain businesses will never be attracted to opening new stores in some of the empty units in the area as they will have increased security concerns
Public urination and defecation: Its no a wonderful picture of the city
Public urination or defecation: In our car park & alley way we have to be careful as someone is using this area as a toilet. 
Puts people off entering the town. Puts businesses off opening in the town    
Putting clients off visiting Market Place. Families avoid Hatfield Town Centre. 
rs - the after sleep health results
Safety of residents 
Scared to go into town by myself or with my small children. I would spend more tome/money in town if I knew it was policed 
Sd - Between mothers and children - near to school - town centre  B - drunk asking for money   RS - Not alright more help required  PU or D - Help required
SD - I am 83 and avoid places where drinkers are as they make me nervous. litter  B - Is embarrassing to everyone, puts people off coming to shop - lets image down  
RS - as above  PU or D - Totally unacceptable - Subways so useful but unable as eyesore
SD - Intimidating behaviour from individuals   B - Unsightly  PU & D - Unsigtly and smelly
SD - litter - cans and bottles  B - mentally distressed  RS - people need help 
SD - Safety for visitors to town centres and shop keepers  B - safety in town centre and users of ATM's at asda and banks
Seeing street drinkers rough sleepers   Beggars makes me scared to do use the town centre 
Street drinkers give the area a down at heel appearance.   They probably have a detrimental effect on trade.  Not a good example for young children to see.  They 
frequently argue amongst themselves which becomes threatening to others.  
myself, what about my family?!  Begging - Uneasy for shoppers & Odour.  Public urination or defecation - Very bad impression for people. Unsafe for kids to walk or 
play around. And smells. Highly unhygenic.
Street Drinking - I've seen one man sometimes in front of the community Police they was not interested   Begging- They get aggressive if they don't get what they 
want   Public urinating - it totally wrong especially in front of children.
cause an issue for me. 
Street Drinking - We or our visitors we don't admit this type of behaviour  Public Urination - No-body likes the smell of pls all the germes 
considering taking an alternative route.     Begging- Can seem aggressive to the elderly who would be easier to intimidate into making a donation.    Rough sleepers- 
The only rough sleepers encountered during the day are those sleeping off their drink habit in Hatfield Town Centre, the evening sleepers are confined to areas like 
the recreation ground where this space is used by the drug dealers.    Public urination or defecation- This pollutes the environment and is prevalent in the footpath 
entrances to the recreation ground. Mainly in the evenings but has been observed during the day. This area has passing school children and elderly pedestrians. 

P
age 110



Street drinking and beggers are sometimes threatening - accosting people walking through, sometimes in an aggressive manner (not always in English with no 
understanding that people cannot understand them)
Street drinking- behaving badly. 
Street drinking- has strong impact to residents's life. we don't feel safe going to town we don't go to town affect local businesses   Begging- again makes people feel 
uncomfortable hence they try to avoide going into town. reduce local business activities. Urination- unhealthy 
Rough sleepers- Often their behavior is inappropriate.   Public urination- Upstairs balcony of the shops and discreetly in the bushes off Wright Estate ( where bushes 
are allocated at the front)       
there is one particular person who can get quite nasty.     Rough sleepers- Only that the bedding could attract the rats.     Public urination or defecation- unhygienic 
and smells. 
Street drinking- may stop some people coming into Hatfield Town Centre.    Begging- It's your choice if you want to give.    Rough sleepers- 2017 it's a Government 
problem.    Public urination or defecation- The smell. 
Street drinking- people won't want to come to Hatfield Town Centre. Bad language when drunk. 
Street drinking- Rowdyness. Doesn't feel safe passing where they are.    Begging- You feel bad for not giving, can affect your moods the wrong way. 
problem.     
Street drinking, begging and public urination etc. act as a deterrent to visiting the town for pleasure, exercise, shopping or general leisure purposes. This affects the 
vital opportunities for daily trade for local businesses which is vital to keep the town alive and thriving and reduce the need for unnecessary car travel to out of town 
facilities. These activities also discourage parents and carers from walking to shops as they are intimidated by anti social behaviour. 
Hatfield, are also, a danger, to pedestrians. Entrances where Vehicles come in, should be closed, and vehicles made to use the service, Roads. to deliver/pick up as 
they should do. On Market days an access, road could be open for market Traders, and closed when they have parked there vehicles in the car park. Re opened 
again at 4pm.
Street Drinking: A lot of residents are to afraid to fill out forms
get off the bus.
Street drinking: Adds to "men down" look and feel off the town centre  
above, plus would you like strangers sleeping at bottom of your garden    Public urination & Defecation: It's disgusting, it could spread disease. Some children 
sometimes in the summer are not always with there parents so there is a risk of indecent exposure.    
presence in the town. The litter left behind defects from the aesthetics of the area.     Rough sleepers: A town which does not provide safe spaces for people who find 
themselves living on the streets both day and night is shamed.    Public urination or defecation: Increasingly men are feeling tree to urinate in full view of passersby, 
with little or no regard for decency or property. This has now widened to individuals increased defecation surely, street police are required to arrest. The resulting 
mess and smell adds to the reluctance to  use the town.
spreading of virus
Street drinking: Bottles & Cans. Condom & Nappies in hedge.    Begging: Knocking on doors.    Rough Sleepers: The Park - Hat east recreation ground, can be 
disturbing to come across them.    Public urination or defecation: Morning noon & night particularly in french horn lane access / exit to and from park.
Street Drinking: Customers with children find it difficult  Begging: Customers are put off  Rough Sleepers: Does not give good impression on the town to new 
customers into town  Public Urination & Defecation: There are public toilets

P
age 111



Street drinking: Danger to residents possibly & doesn't look good to visitors    Begging: I felt harassed by my experience with this beggar woman & do not feel 
completely safe as a result.     Rough sleepers: Makes local area look unappealing as a result.  
street drinking: Does not tend itself to be a very pleasant environment.    Begging: Can be intimidating    Public urination and defecation: Not very pleasant to witness. 
Many young people in the town centre at various times of the day who should not have to witness such anti-social behaviour    
Street drinking: Drags town centre down. depressing avoid shopping in town centre now. Go to St Albans or out of town supermarkets. 
urination or defecation: As above & Heath issues    
mattresses, cardboard boxes, food supplies.     Public urination or defecation: They we have been forced the padlock out bins but this means Violia (our bin collector) 
often misses a collection.
put people coming to town    Rough sleepers: The filth they leave around has an impact    Public urination or defecation: The people that do this sort of thing dont 
care if they are seen. This stops women and young children visiting the town centre
Street drinking: have impact on the environment, local business and safety of residents and visitors to the town centre. Constitutes to public nuisance.    Public 
urination or defecation: Takes place sometimes behind building within the town centre, Towns Inn, Etc.  
Street Drinking: I feel intimidated walking through the town centre  Begging: It's often the same people and they make me feel uneasy  Rough Sleepers: rough 
sleepers everyday  Public Urination: most weeks someone has urinated in the stairwell
Street drinking: I'm feeling not safety when I work in this area  Begging: I'm really afraid when the drunken people want money  Rough Sleeper: Looks horrible when 
someone sleeping in the bench   Public urination and defecation: Looks horrible and smelly. 
Street drinking: Impacts the public because the drinkers become rude and abusive.    Begging: Again... when you ignore them or say no, they can become violent    
Rough sleepers: Never had any issue with rough sleepers      Public urination or defecation: MAJOR IMPACT- especially seeing as they defecating where our FOOD 
deliveries come in. We are also afraid of putting rubbish in our bins as we always catch them weeing /dumping or having sex!! as witnessed by a member of our staff!!
Street drinking: It encourages Anti-Social Behaviour, there is no consideration for the community.    Begging: It can be intimidating.    Public urination or defecation: its 
unsanitary, unappealing and can be seen. Again eastern Europeans seem to think its normal / acceptable.
Street drinking: It is very difficult for us elderly people to feel safe walking around the area, particularly going shopping    Public urination or defecation: It is awful that 
the streets smell, we cant use the subways. The entrance to Hollier Court is badly affected
Street drinking: It stops older people wanting to be in the town centre after dark    Public urination or defecation: Same as street drinking
urination or defecation: As above
Street drinking: Large groups of people drinking / taking drugs together is not a good look for visitors to our town. Also young people at skate park vulnerable to drug 
pushers at skate park.    Begging: Very off putting to have someone aggressively begging for money.    Public urination or defecation: Obvious reason
Street drinking: Lots of food rubbish and cans left all over the place    Begging: Puts people off coming to Hatfield
Street drinking: Night time, scared to meet people drinking in the street    Begging: Asking for money to buy lighters, why not go to work.    Public urination or 
defecation: Need to respect the public not nice to urinate outsidee
for the environment.    Begging: Same as for street drinking    Rough sleepers: Same as above      Public urination or defecation: Same as other categories, but 
particularly regarding the environment, it must be a public health hazard. 
Street Drinking: not good for the environment  Begging:   Rough Sleepers:   Public Urination: Very bad smell around the subways
Street drinking: not pleasant environment to visit or shop    Begging: Drags area down

P
age 112



Street drinking: Old age pensioners feel very vulnerable    Rough sleepers: Very untidy for town
Street drinking: People too scared to walk through town centre as they feel intimidated by the groups of people  Begging: Some can come across as aggressive, 
people don't wan to stay in town centre as soon as it gets back
Street Drinking: people under the influence of alcohol with dependacy issues act anti-social, cause harassment, distress to others, nuisance noise, fight...  Public 
urination or defecation: it's very bad for businesses (dirt wont attract customers)  
Street drinking: Puts people off shopping, makes people feel unsafe and not appropriate for children.  Begging: Same as for street drinking.  Rough sleepers: I'm 
more worried for their welfare but it's still upsetting to see.  Public urination: Totally unacceptable behaviour 
Street drinking: Rowdy behaviors, threatening, intimidating - causing anxiety and fear.    Begging: people reluctant to use the area for leisure, shopping, business    
Rough Sleepers: severe anxiety at the invasion of home living space uninvited and unwanted.
see, health risks.
alone in the dark.    Begging: No - for the old people who need help and dont pressure people. Yes - Couple who have approached me a few times, could possibly be 
seen as threatening also give one impression that the money would go on drugs, alcohol etc.     Rough sleepers: Rough sleepers - Don't look good for the area and 
it's often worse for them. I feel more sorry than worried about them    Public urination or defecation - Urination in the underpasses is horrible. Greatly discugsting and 
smelly in these areas.  
Street drinking: These people gather in clusters, it's very intimidating and not right young children and young people to witness     Begging: It's mainly in the town 
centre an asda car park.      Rough sleepers: It happens in the parks    Public urination or defecation: It happens mainly in the underpasses.
Street drinking: They make you feel nervous when you walk by them  Begging: as above  Public urination and defecation: It smells when you walk pass it
Street drinking: They sit outside of my shop and make customers and staff frightened and unsafe
Street drinking: Town centre and next to my shopwear swimming pool  Begging: as above  Public urination: Next to Pizza Hut
the Town Centre    Rough sleepers: The elderly are sometimes prohibited fro using the benches    Public urination or defecation: An environmental health concern as 
well as a duty for individuals to help take care of our town centre
Was aggressive.     Rough sleepers: I have no personal experiences of this    Public urination or defecation: One the first occasion my neighbour cleared this. We 
contacted the council to remove
Street Drinking-Puts Customers of going to the town Center and loo so bad for business and town + Subway Ave bad   Begging- Puts customers off going to town 
centre     Public urination- Ever day not good what-soever
Subways that residents are scared to use and cross roads instead. People approaching you in the town day and night asking for money.    Would a young woman 
walk through the town centre, footpaths to Hatfield Station, the Alban Way alone at dusk or night time, I don’t think so.
The footway is used by people on their way to work, shopping, or to the station.  this can include mothers with young children.
discard their bottles and cans, sometimes smashing the bottles. Other dog walkers and I always try to pick up the litter, but there is always more. There is probably a 
link between the urinating and the drinking. On one occasion, I called 999 because a British young man unzipped himself in front of my young daughter and myself, 
exposing himself.  We have to keep our dogs away from certain parts of the park where people are accustomed to defecating.  This is a valuable green space which 
should give people pleasure, but it is literally trashed by a disrespectful minority.  
these people are left to ruin our town 

P
age 113



perceptions of it, especially online. For what we're getting, makes the rent seem very high too; it's not necessarily worth the money for the footfall we get. The Town 
centre has such great potential, these problems being fixed would greatly improve the general feeling of discontent people have with the state of it and the local 
authorities ability to manage the Town centre in general.
These give Hatfield a bad name for being unpleasant and unsafe. 
they drink and shout almost every evening and it is disturbing especially if you have children.  annoyed by beggers asking for a quid.
This behaviour deters visitors to the town,vulnerable people feel intimidated, the view of the Police is tainted by their perceived inaction. 
This is an issue that needs to be stopped sooner rather than later, my partner and my son don't feel safe walking around after dark, there are groups in the alley near 
were we live, they do say things to my partner and some have even urinated in the alley whilst she is walking past to go home/ to ASDA 
woman i feel unsafe in this area especially at night. If there was a way to stop this from happening around Asda and town centre especially at night, i would be very 
grateful.
We have been reluctant to visit hatfield town center after 5:30pm because of the nuisance caused by street drinking and rough sleeps.  It pathetic and dont feel safe - 
if PSPO is enforced than it would be of some relief to us normal community people with childrens
Who wants to see this? (No one) plus it is intimidating and a health issue and not a good environment for anyone to see or experience. Would like to think so
and beggers, they constantly urinate and they don't hide it, their private parts are clearly on show and they don't care. They come in our shop begging for money, they 
constantly shop lift in the charity shop next door. 
YEs, all impact visitors to the town and they will stop coming back  
very unattractive.
You just need to walk around and see it from 06:30am 

P
age 114



Q 7. If you answered yes to either of the questions above, do you think a PSPO would help address the impact/problem?  Please provide further comment
A PSPO would help, but the issue is more deep rooted than this. These people require help.
After the scheme manager leaves at 5pm
All should be fined or arrested
Any police presence is a good thing to re assure the residents and business community and a PSPO would need to be administered to be affected
Any PSPO would need to be properly enforced
Anything has to be better than what we have now as long as it is enforced correctly and not half hearted    
As long as it is actually patrolled and enforced. 
As long as it's enforced
As well as cycling and offensive behaviour. But it must all be handled and not just ignored by the authorities. I see people riding bikes under the no cycling signs. I am 
a British cycling official and a life long bike rider, before someone says I am anti cycling.  
penalty notices  
But only on the areas of the PSPO
Depends if it is enforced. 
depends on what the pspo methods
Done previously 
it will just move the problem about
Fine  Imprissonment  Ban from area  Police should be visible all day in and around the town 
Hopefully it will stop it, it'd certainly act as a deterrent and actually provide the authorities with powers to deal with the situation. It will of course only make a difference 
IF it's ACTUALLY enforced and IF the manpower is made available to enforce it. 
Hopefully they would take notice of the order
I can see that it would give the police etc more powers and something to enforce, however I think it will be a large job to discourage the behavior and put a stop to it. If 
there is no one present to enforce it, I can see the behavior continuing.
I do think it would help, but in fairness we have reported things to the police and pcso's in the town, but the majority of the time they say if they didn't see the offence 
themselves, there isn't much they can do, so I hope this new order would make a difference to that
I don't think an order would help as it's illegal to beg but people still do it. They get arrested for doing something wrong then get let out to do the same. It's also illegal 
to cycle through the town but people still do so whilst I have to move out of their way.
the area!!!
I have previously emailed the Town Council, the Police, our local  Councillor and the Neighbourhood Watch Team to ask if the park could be included in a police 
patrol to dissuade people from antisocial behaviour. So yes please to the PSPO. 
I would expect transgressors to be dealt with by the law. Done often enough the message will get through.
If enforced
if it was counselled and stopped I would feel safer  they need help and not make our neighbourhood an uncomfortable and unhealthy place to live
If measures were put in place to deal with the issue things may change for the better. Currently if left I fear the problem will increase as the town increases in capacity.

P
age 115



If not enforced it will be a pointless exercise.
I's a health hazard to community and threat to the community or and intimidating attacked by a group - especially girls women. 
It certainly is a step toward the right direction but it depends on how it would be implemented. 
It will only work if it’s consistent and inforced properly 
It would hopefully discourage the people who spend long periods of time drinking.
It would only be police for a couple of weeks 
It's only going to work with someone to police it.  People ride bikes through the town centre all the time because they know there's no one to stop them.  Unfortunately 
I don't think anything is going to be resolved without a permanent presence.
I've answered yes because I hold hope but unless it's consistent it will not work
might clean the place up. ASBOs might be useful
More able to impose fines and move people on.
Most certainly
need regular authority presence. no alcohol notices on trees all around the area. no one patrols the area
disorderly in public, urinating or defecating in a public place is already catered for in law as is littering but is not policed very well, if at all, hence the state of the town 
centre currently  
Not an issue near shop    
Not enough police to enforce    
Not if it's not enforced 
Nothing will stop them - Need PCSO's patrolling all the time for it to stop!
would like an extension 
of course
Only if enforced  If rough sleepers are moved on
ONLY if it is enforced on a regular basis.
Only if it’s enforced the police are rarely in the area and when they are they see to be content to talk to them rather then moving them on 
Only if it’s enforced.
Only if they carried out duties 
Only if this enforced correctly 
Outlawing these behaviours and clamping down on drug use would appease the residents of park meadow.
Pcos patrol the area but they continue to offend
Pcso's dont do much, these people wont listen to them, the pcsos will talk to them and move them on - this will move to surrounding areas - more needs to be done.   
I would still be unlikely to go to the town centre for fear of meeting them on the way

P
age 116



lunch-time drink on a bench).     I think police  already have the power to stop public urination and defecation.     Rough sleepers need somewhere to go and stay. 
They need hostels and housing. They need social workers to help them.  If they are moved from the town centre they will probably move to another area of Hatfield. 
But a PSPO might stop the problem of public defecation by rough sleepers in Hatfield town centre.    I am concerned that a PSPO in Hatfield Town Centre will move 
the problems on to another public area of Hatfield, where there are shops selling alcohol and places to sit, such as High View/Hilltop. Could that be a PSPO as well?
Provides the ability to enforce dispersal of Street drinkers
Providing there are enough enforcement officers to have it work
Put a ban in town needs cleaning up young people feel frighten walking through town 
Regularly see Police and PCSO with offenders around Hatfield but nothing ever changes or improves! If something is put it place then it must be enforced!!!
picture of the person for evidence purposes
Safety of residents and visitors local image       Hygiene of problem image of town
SD - improve the safety and fear factor of visitors  B - Safety and fear factor
Sd - Penalty straight away  B - Help required  RS - Help required  PU or D - Penalty straight away
SD - Prohibit in town and subways  PU or D - Disinfect the subway regularly 
Seems like exactly what is needed, full steam ahead!
Some extra support maybe for the beggers/rough sleepers, but I know that Hatfield is quite good at this compared to other areas anyway.
Street Begging-Yes if there was any Council got taken away  Public urination - We need PCSO's in Town 
Street drinking - drinks can be confiscated. The rest is related to poverty, there should also be other provisions made to help the homeless.
people.
Street Drinking - Hopefully plus there wont be so many discarded cans everywhere, I've never see so many rats in our town they seem to be increasing over the 
years.  Begging - Hopefully it would be nice not to be scared to say so.  Public urination - Kids are not safe this going on.
occasionally & does not cause me an issue.  Public Urination- Providing it can be monitored and enforced effectively the community would be much cleaner and feel 
safe because of it.     
Street drinking- Doesn't matter how much they try the problem is still there.    Begging- I don't think the authorities doing enough to stop these problems. 
Street drinking- I am positive they might stop congregating.     Begging- Hopefully will stop they know its illegal and there might be consequences if she continues. 
themselves in need of a safe place to sleep. Moving them on only changes the location, it does not solve the problem.    Public urination or defecation- Only if Policed 
effectively. A comprehensive, monitored CCTV installation covering Hatfield and WGC with permanent and temporary cameras would identify perpetrators and act as 
a deterrent. Publication in the local press of those caught could also be effective and identify persistent offenders to the local inhabitants who wish for a clean place to 
live. This type of installation would also be effective on all public offences. 
Street drinking- remove seating area from Market Place asap.    Begging- The problem won't go away.  
Street Drinking -They should check more often   Public urination- Someone should check the Town Centre more often like I said before  
Street drinking Unsure - Thought it was already in operation so cant say how would you manage if not here to see it     Begging- As Above    Rough sleeping - Is in 
operation, so I'm somewhat unsure only see remnants of bedding    Public urination or defecation - Not managed  
Street drinking- zero tolerance on drinking in Hatfield Town Centre.
Street drinking: As it should make the drinkers move on

P
age 117



Street drinking: Doubtful    Begging: Door & illegal sales    Rough Sleepers: Fund them a hostel    Public urination or defecation: There are supposed to be fines for 
this but how do you catch them - CAMERA needed.
above
Street drinking: If they are given the authority to stop, people that are doing    Rough Sleepers: Ask yourself why are they rough sleeping
Street Drinking: if you can stop street drinking  Begging: if you can stop begging  Rough Sleepers: as above  Public Urination: as above  
Street drinking: It may help, however if these people come from around i'm not sure if they realize such polices exist. I would hope it cold be used for the more 
threatening situations    Begging: The older ones I have observed are nonthreatening. Where do they go? I'd hope the more suspicious beggars would be deterred 
but they approach when no-one else is around and getting dark.     Rough sleepers: In an ideal world this wouldn't happen, it looks bad but how does it get resolved. 
These people often need help not punishment    Public urination or defecation: If it's noted there's a policy it may help but who's going to stop them or catch them. 
Street drinking: It will help stop hanging around in the street.    Public urination or defecation: Same as above
Street drinking: Its not safe for the general public    Begging: I thought begging was illegal    Rough sleepers: I often wonder if these people are actually homeless, as 
a mix of that and sleeping off drinking to excess    Public urination or defecation: It's a disgusting habit, and totally unhygienic. 
we have a clean up before you implement.
Street drinking: Police presence is required to relocate groups and direct to an appropriate space    Rough Sleepers: Added security paid for by residents in the shape 
of more secure locks on communal entrances resolved this issue
Rough Sleepers: Will direct rough sleepers to the night shelter  Public Urination and defecation: Will stop the disgusting, hazardous action and make people think 
about what they are doing!  
Street Drinking: Public meetings  Begging:   Rough Sleepers:   Public Urination: Public meetings
Street Drinking: So long as it is properly enforced  Begging: Possibly cut down on drug dealing  Public urination or defecation: So long as it is properly enforced
Street drinking: We can only hope    Begging: Give them help to get off streets
Street drinking: Would make TC a better place to shop and eat in  
Street drinking: Yes also stopping shops from selling single cans. Would be a safer environment, and a more pleasant one
PSPO    Begging: I have not seen this in action in the town centre yet. A PSPO would hopefully discourage this practice from growing.     Rough sleepers: Whilst 
mistaking relocating the problem, it those enforcing the PSPO could hand out leaflets / advice on organisations locally who could offer support this may help the 
individuals as well as moving them from the town.    Public urination or defecation: Yes, such individuals need to suffer consequences for such unacceptable 
behaviour. Being shamed through the court system will hopefully remind them this is not the place to relieve themselves  
Street drinking-A group committed to solving this problem will of course help to prevent these problems  Begging - See above  Public urination- paint walss floors with 
hydrophobic paint so when person urinates it splashes back on them   
Support as well as Ban.  IE alcoholics / unemployed     Rough sleepers - Help is more important 
Surely there presents who stop them or move the problem on (but to where?)
The police need to deal with these issues 
The PSPO will help to address issues on the spot and avoid the need for protracted contact and discussion by allowing immediate enforcement.
The public toilets are unwelcoming, and you do not stop rough sleeping by slapping a threat of a fine on it.
They could move them on

P
age 118



They have cameras in the town centre and this doesn't seem to make any difference at all, i dont believe anyone is even monitoring them 
This will no doubt depend on how the area is monitored and the way it is policed. 
We need the town and surrounding areas patrolled on a regular basis, the town needs to be made uncomfortably for drinkers and beggers
Well it can't  be any worse
When they let them carry on then it doesn't help. If the PSPO will remove the alcohol and person from the area then yes it wl help
With the tunnel, sitting places in the town centre, tunnels within the town centre    
Yes - most of the people causing issues aren't criminals or doing anything major. The PSPO will make it so it's more hassle than it's worth to cause the issues.
Yes but only if enforced
Yes it would be good however it has to be enforced with prosecutions.

P
age 119



Q9. If you have answered unsafe or relatively unsafe to any of the above please can you provide further details to explain further in terms of where 
(specific location) and when (weekday, time) you feel this way.
9am to late evening around the town
A lot of the drinkers become very vocal when drunk which is scary as I don't know what they're capable of 
Access to late night shopping involving walking through Hatfield Town Centre would only be considered if accompanies. Crossing the recreation ground between St 
Albans Road East and Old French Horn Lane any time after dusk or using the pedestrian underpasses is not recommended. 
Afraid - drunks - drugs - loud noises, swearing, smashed bottles 
All day everyday 
All times and places in and around the town centre.
Anytime town centre 
come across as trouble makers.  
As an older person I would not want to walk on my own.  
as groups of men drink in the footpath it can be intimidating.
As soon as its dark i feel Hatfield in all areas is a no go place
As the parking was changed in the town centre many of us now have to park in link drive which is dark by the time we finish work. Last week there was two mugings 
in the carpark in broad daylight, so no we don't feel safe. The car park is poorly lit at night also
Back of Asda and the whole of the shopping area I feel unsafe 
Because it is full of anti social behaviour. People are regularly attacked and/or intimidated 
Been attacked twice and harassed 5 times by youth and adults who drinking using drugs under passes in Hatfield town centre 
Been threatened 
Being watched, targeted and angrily approached by beggers
By the banks near Boots 
weekends.
Car park on the common, walkway from the common to asda
Daytime more people about, would think twice about going to TC at night time
Dont feel happy in daylight. Would no go into TC after dark as drinkers are always about in the proposed control zone
Drinks around shouting and horrible dogs too
Drunk people   Persons who use drugs  Makes me feel unsafe
issue
makes you uncomfortable. 
Every time I have to walk through the graffiti daubed and urine stinking subways or past the drinkers in the town centre, subway rest areas, and surrounding parks, I 
feel unsafe. I try not to go there with my children. Hatfield is a complete shit hole and nobody seems to care.  
Everyday in town centre from about 6pm outside the euromarket - intimidating as i have to walk to bus stop by myself. Lots of shouting, weed smoking, etc
Everyday or week after dark on high street

P
age 120



Feel intimated after dark
Feel unsafe for the young people in Hatfield and for when my partner walks through the town 
this going on???
Frenchhorn lane by memorial hall - trees and bungalows are, when going to ASDA - Subways 2pm onwards mainly 3pm
From time to time.
groups of people drinking in Market place in the mornings and evenings
hatfield town centre  parkhouse court
Hatfield Town Centre does not feel safe to walk about in during darkness. Personally I avoid walking anywhere in Hatfield on my own during darkness. Areas such as 
alleyways, footpaths, and bridges feel rather unsafe in daylight, and totally unsafe in the dark. I never use subways at any time, as they feel unsafe. 
Have been approached by beggers / inebriated men during the day and don't feel relaxed around the town these days.
I always feel very intimidated whenever going pass people who are drinking on the street no matter what time day/ night especially with my children. the sub ways are 
always covered with broken bottles and stinks of wine.  
I am the manager of an outlet that closes at 10:00pm and to come out of work at that time and have drunks hanging around is not nice. Also during the day I have to 
deal with these people trying to come into my place of work. Plus i have to go to the everyday with these people hanging about
I do not feel comfortable walking throught the subways or town centre area at night.
I dont go into town in the dark because i would not feel safe
I feel intimidated and do not want conflict from the groups of drunk or people taking drugs 
I feel safe as I walk my three dogs: 
both shouting in their language. 
I have felt this during the week in the evening, particularly around Bishops Rise 
scary
I would never consider visiting the town centre during the hours of darkness. I would not feel safe.
I would never go to the town centre or park during the evening, or from dusk during the winter.   I have to travel via the station, but do not feel safe from dusk coming 
over the bridge or going through the passageway to Endymion Road from Beaconsfield Road.
I would not go to the town centre in the dark
I wouldn't feel safe anywhere in Hatfield in the dark
I wouldn't use the town centre (apart from Asda) or the surrounding areas at any time after dark. 
If groups of men drinking then they are intimidating at any time 
walk from the station is dark now (In the winter) this is where i've been approached by beggars. Some areas are secluded and not well lit. I walk briskly but don't feel 
safe. 
In any subway areas, in the town centre after highstreet hours, just dont feel safe in this town after dark. 
in dark places
In subways and the train station

P
age 121



Old French Horn Lane after dark, any day of the week.  Walking to and from old hatfield through the underpasses and from the railway station through beacons field 
road and Endymion Road. any day of the week.
takeaways and town center
In the middle of the town center I feel unsafe after dark as people hang around drinking, there is no lights and everything is shut down. 
Intimidating behaviour
i's quite unfair of me to say, unsure as I try to leave before dark, but only because after dark I feel unsafe in this area. 
even put her Simmons cake wrapper in the bin outside Barclays because 5 Eastern European men were drunk and using the bin as a beer can table. Absolutely 
ridicukous. This was 3pm in the afternoon. im sick to the back teeth of feeling uncomfortable in my own town centre. something seriously needs to be done. Not to 
mention the times I have been in the Hatfield Nail Spa watching a drunken fight break out at lunchtime or in the afternoon on the market square. Or the screaming 
and hollering on White Lion Square. Or the beggers you have to step around when walking past Asda. please please do something!!!!!!!!!!!!!
It seems to be in the town centre mostly where they all crowd. It happens everyday, all day and it is a bit uncomfortable to walk about Hatfield with your guard up 
incase they approach you. Some can get very nasty in their approach.
Just moving around after dark worries me
approached more, from people asking for money, and cigarettes. Every time I walk through the town Centre, after 10pm I feel un safe. Just waiting for some one to 
come up, and bash me on the head.
Like I said, where I'm leaving on the stairs near my flat I have  no lights, nearby donge them, so I'm not feeling so safe. 
Living in the town with drinkers and homeless hanging around happens all the time. Normally after 7pm
Lots of drugs pushing. Lots of unsavory characters around the pub
Mainly around the market place / town inn covered parade of shops
Market Place after dark esp on Fridays, Sat and Sun. The bridge over the railway tracks going towards the town centre.
Market Place they bother customers for money, change, fags and if you tell them to stop they abuse, start fighting, swearing and threatening. 
Market square 
Muggings and public drunkenness 
My concern is how alcohol affects some people, and especially men. I've seen them leering at the young girls and fear for their safety if alone
My staff often have to walk across the town square to get to the link car park. In winter, in the dark they are fearful and feel unsafe.
Need to speak to someone - Not answer limited questions!!
Night time at the town centre - see people walking around others sitting
proactive
Not good for anyone in town plus no lights don't help
out in the evening due to dog  shouting, gangs and uneasiness  
Partly the Town Centre at night most days of the week We need  more lighting
their dogs who run wild irresponsibly or even witness yet another of alcohol/ drug fuelled arguments! Using the subways which are meant to be safer than the roads 
above are awful with Eastern Europeans drinking and Intimidating people.

P
age 122



People drinking and begging are a bad mix and won’t leave you alone. At night this is threatening behaviour and makes hatfield unsafe. During daylight hours with 
other people around the behaviour is very irritating and causes many problems.
People drinking in subway by Hatfield Pool at 6 am in the morning! Market Place constant issues day and night. Alban Way day and night drinking and loitering.
People hanging around drinking in the town
People loitering in the town. Shouting, dealing drugs without any car or worry that they will be caught because there are no police. Cars being broken into
People may towards betanioral and verbal abuse from the drunk people and street sleepers 
Random times of drinkers in the town or subways 
Seeing drinking and rowing of drunks around the out skirts of the town , walking through the town they stager about with drinks in hand , scared my grandson ( 7 )
Skate park subway, especially evening and early morning, poundlands, asda car park past evening is especially unsettling with the amount of people playing music 
and hanging in their cars, and those that block public paths. 
Sometimes in the morning and late evenings, some group of men and young people home around in the tunnel drinking alcohol. This makes any passerby feeling 
unsafe. Most importantly this sens wrong information to children and young people
Spring and summer time in eth evenings when groups of residents set up their chairs and commence drinking.
St Albans Road East Park
Subway around shopping Centre - as an individual I would never attempt to go that way in the evening nor during the day.
sometimes be more hazardous)
users and very vey agressive! Being hurled abuse out is becoming a regular thing which again is not nice in anyway especially with when walking with my young son! 
This occurs all day every day     The drinkers and drug takers again are there most of the day every day again it’s dangerous on so many levels firstly it’s dangeous 
becaus was if there behaviour and also dangerous because of all the crap they leave be hind 
The common street, close Cunou Point and pallmers shop (all days)
The town centre in the morning and after 5pm, its roughly the same around the whole area.
me!
The town centre, the underpasses - get rid of them  The area around aldi - lots of drinkers around there   Young people are also a concern
The town square is not safe for a woman buy herself at night. I have been accosted by drunk men whilst walking to my home. 
There are areas, like the passageway between Dellfield Road and Queensway
Toilets at back of queens way outside the library the old market area 
Town centre and walkways into the town centre at nights.
Town Centre at weekends, and at night. Pleased i own a dog. 
Town Centre very unsafe. To many people drinking, smoking, very loud and in crouds & dogs not on the leads.
Town centre when you cross near town inn
Town Centre, mostly around the Town centre I'm and Pizza GoGo area. during the week at daytime not as unsettling as at night, nor at the weekend 
Towncenter - especially near white lion square and end of the towncenter    there are many anti-social element in the underroad walk ways sometimes
shops begin to shut around 4-6pm is when the same thing happens. I've actually had them come into my shop on the Arcade to ask me for money and scream at me 
when I don't give them any.

P
age 123



Underpasses and alleys
Underpasses leading into town (by swimming pool and st Luke's church)  Daytime 
Market Place. 
Waling to the car park (Link Drive) in the dark after 5:30pm (weekdays) last winter the lights were not on in the car park until late winter
antisocial behavior happening in link drive car park.    Just walking through the town center i always ensure my bag is fully zipped and i do not have items in my 
pockets. Other town centres i would have items in my pockets/use my smart phone.
Walking from my store through Market Place to the car park (Link Drive) I feel a bit threatened as there is quite a lot of drunks there. 
We just do not go out after dark
intimidating.
Weekdays from 8.30am to 6.30pm human fear factor when unknown people came to ask or beg in uncivilised manner
When having to cross the town center or one of the underground passages especially after sunset. By the way, these zones do not allow bicycles, but many people 
ignore this completely. I have nearly had two accidents in the last couple of months and the cyclist did not even apologise. 
When you walk past the drinkers/druggies. Can be anytime 
Where: - between market square and asda between station and Wellfield Road roundabout    When: - approx 7pm- 12 Midnight 
White Lion Sq, Market Place and any alleyways.Any evenings.
Whole area after dark due to reduction in number of people around
Will not go into town center or Asda for shopping after dark. I also avoid alleys etc during daylight.
will not go out without getting a taxi
With street lights off at night you cant walk home from any venue on your own even in daytime as you are always stopped with drinkers and beggers asking for money
Would not be happy to use subways or other areas within town centre during evening
you feel intimidated, its not a nice place to be in the day let alone the evening of night
You never know who's loitering about so your always on edge 

P
age 124



place.
1) Lack of light  2) Large groups of rowdy people hanging around in town centre  3) being approached without invitation and questioned in an intimidating manor 
between station and ton centre - no obvious way of getting help (I am disabled & vulnerable)
A lot of foreigners seem homeless ect plus weird bar on arcade seem to attract unsavoury characters and so much litter and did- respect. 
Answered previously
Any of the paths surrounding the town. I have encountered large groups of men drinking at 5:30am on occasion (near the skate park)
as advised two mugings last week, says it all really 
As an individual it smells urine at times it's ..... and my worst fear is to see a group of people in front of me in the subway. 
As i said - Just moving around after dark worries me
At dark times
Badly lit, to many places for people to lurk unseen
Because a crowd of people around corner shop. 
Because if the fighting and swearing 
Because of the activities you have mentioned
Because of the type of people around. 
Because of the type of people they are very load, have no consideration of spaces, and an be aggressive and abusive 
at night due to drunks and people on drugs. 
Being watched, targeted and angrily approached by beggers  
Bushes and under passes
popular area for druggies. 
Drank people who stay sitting in groups near the bus station here young children wait for the bus to go home after school
Drinkers....drug users..... all unpredictable in behaviour
Drinking and begging.
Drinking, Gangs, Drug users.
commoners
drunk, violent people
Drunks - Drug addicts
Drunks and drug addicts hanging about all the time
Due to random daytime occupation of subways etc do not use at night + elderly people tend to walk in rd rather than use subways 
Everything is closed. Young males hanging around drinking. 
Few people in the town centre or surrounding areas at night, coupled with boisterous drunks make it uneasy to have to walk through
gangs and youths in the park  congregating drinkers in the town
ghetto, I'm ashamed to live here.  
to school 

P
age 125



Groups of people drinking or beggars congregating near cash machines.
Groups of people in subways 
Groups of people wearing hoods, your always unsure
Have a walk around 
was especially bad. This area tends to be quite low income and people probably have nothing better to do than sit around in the town centre. I would especially 
consider putting more places for people to entertain themselves because the galleria is just not enough. This order is all well and good but the lack of things to do is 
definitely tearing the community apart
walk.
I cant go to shop because the drunk people look and want money. My son is afraid, and we cant go to shop
I did answer at question 9
I ont want people shouting when no one else is around and there are always drunk people
Im just scared..and cant wait to move out of the area
In the process of alcohol consumption, anything can go wrong under the influence or alcohol. 
In unlit areas - false economy!
Intimidating 
It’s just you know there are people that drink around them areas and they can be unpredictable 
Less people around in the event something should happen or even less people meaning something is more likely to happen
Market Place ASB  the bridge and old French horn lane no light  
More police 
My feeling is. Late at night the people hanging around, Hatfield Town Centre are just waiting for an opportunity, to fleece people.
never know who is around the corner  Vulnerable 
proactive
Often areas are not well lit enough the quality of the area does not project a safe feeling
People around me have clearly been drinking. I have had people call out to me or approach me.
People drunk in the town centre making it uncomfortable and intimidating. people drunk in the underpasses (which are unsafe for women or children on their own 
anyway at the best of times!), rough sleeping and begging all around the shops and underpasses. Its just so grim. 
remove rough sleepers behind boots
shouting and screaming in the early hours
sometimes some people from that group in town centre. They shout at each others and arguing. When I see that situation other friends of them try to stop. However it 
is not comfortable when i see it during the day.
The aggressive behaviour of people, the language, the fact a lot of them are drunk or high. It's not a nice environment to be in. 
The groups of people watch you and then talk to the group, the tone of voice says to me they are not complimentary remarks.
the timing of unfamiliar faces came and ask or beg in uncivilised manner

P
age 126



There have been a number of instances where the Police have requested if our localised House CCTV could assist them. Our system is not high definition and 
offenders while confirmed does not provide sufficient resolution for further action other than to delay the offenders progress through Hatfield Town Centre.   A 
community system would act as a deterrent and bring to justice those committing offences detrimental to public safety and health. 
threat is visible
To many drunks and smack heads
Too frightening and intimidating.
Too many drunk people and beggers
Too many males & a few woman drinking, noisy and some are aggressive. Lots are eastern europeans. 
Town Centre: Groups hanging around in the squares with no obvious purpose. No police presence.   Elsewhere: No police presence. Street lights turned off. Lone 
ment approaching with benefit of poor street lighting and low visibility. E.g underpass, Walk through from railway station. On old French Lane, Returning home, road / 
path is not over looked, places to conceal a  predator, poorly lit (it at all) pot holes and uneven surfaces.
Unsafe in town centre after dark - Groups of males congregate in and around shops. It may be safe but doesn't feel so if your a female. Unsafe- walking from reain 
station if alone and no one else walking from train in same direction, secluded areas. I've seen a young man by his 'friend' and been approached by 'Beggars' 
Unsure who may jump out. Threat of being attached before getting in the car
Very high hedges make it possible to hide
Market Place. 
Worried in case they shout at you or approach you. 
you feel intimidated, its not a nice place to be in the day let alone the evening of night
You never know who's loitering about 
You should feel free to not be harrassed whilst going about your day and that doesn’t happen. A protection order may move the problem away from our town.
You try not to make eye contact with them but then get shouted at or followed
Youths riding bikes fast on the pavements is dangerous without concern for pedestrians.
Youths, swearing, Motor bike in town centre 

P
age 127



Q12. Do you have any further comments or alternative measures that could be used to deal with the following:
A better police presence. Perhaps change a shop into a local police office
A more visible and regular enforcement presence.
A shelter in Hatfield to provide a safe place and help to homeless people.
Anti-Social noise playing in area (only teenagers can hear)
Asda need to get a grip of the begging by the cash machines and main doors. The number of benches/places to sit need to be reduced in the 
town/underpasses, and replaced with seating attached to restaurants/shops so that paying customers sit, not drunken loiterers.
Banning alone although a useful tool is never a permanant solution, Werever posible support is a longer term solution 
Barn street drinking & to be prosecuted
Begging: provide more street lighting so cannot be harassed in dark environments
Better police response. Will police remove these sleepers if they happen to private property?
Busking is an issue - too loud and for too long considering people live in the Town Centre.
CCTV 
CCTV in the area to help deter, I've had problems with opportunist burglaries on Goldings Crescent
CCTV!
drinkers etc will move away
Close off licenses in Market Place, ban shops from selling single cans
Could it be made illegal to drink in the park and other public places? This by itself is insufficient - there needs to be a police patrol as otherwise 
everyone knows that nothing will happen (e.g. as with the drug taking)
problem.
Fine them and bar them from the area if their not from the uk and arnt working and have no where to live send them home 
Funding, to help certain people to overcome the circumstances which is leading to this behaviour
Government needs to supply more money for the police so there are available police to implement this plan.
Groups of young people too - its the same as the above - dont move them on or send them to court - they need support - they need things to keep them 
occupied - something to live for and help them be part of the community. Give them paid work to clean the town centre, paks etc help them dont punish 
half a mile radius from the town centre
Heavy fines.  Police caution
higher police presence
I really do not know what else can be done about the problem.
I think I’ve made my opinions clear 
I would like to have the answers to all of these problems but believe they are a way of life especially drinking/ begging all we can do is monitor I beleive 
that drinking no+ homelessness is a problem and a sad one but it's  age old good luck 

P
age 128



I would like to see CCTV and speakers so that staff can tell them to stop littering etc
If anyone found drinking, begging or using the town as a toilet, lock them up.
If comminity officers or some officials could do anything about it.
Immediate fines
Improve the town centre, bring in more people (shoppers)
Introduce free to use toilet facilities
It is up to the hatfield town council & the welwyn hatfield borough council to deail with the things along with the police.
It needs twenty four hour coverage ??
the people who sell broadband outside Asda.
it's a priority 
Maybe allocate an acceptable area for them to hang out. Seats/ bins etc may be a solution?
Monitor cameras and have regular police patrols
More police or PCSO presence
More police presence
More Police presents at night particularly between the station and town centre Roughsleepers I guess meant? 
More police.
Move the reasons for homeless people to congregate around the town centre. 
Need more police
Need more police on foot
Nick them and kick them out as not here to better themselfs just here for FREE ride.
Obviously alcoholics, beggars, rough sleepers need help. They need hostels, homes, social workers , medical help.  Rough sleeping is a growing 
problem because not enough social housing is provided. Day-time street drinking is probably linked to unemployment, so help is needed to get people 
Outreach workers from alcohol abuse charities 
Prevent retail outlets from selling single units
Provide a Community Centre in the Town that is inclusive to all. In such a centre people can access help in the community, and be listened to. 
Provide more public toilets
Public toilets. Regular patrols by police, pcso and street wardens, perhaps a dedicated Hatfield town centre street warden.
Public urination could be solved by demolishing the subways in Hatfield, they are dangerous, stinking, and oppressive. Public drinking should just be 
banned and the police should be arresting the people doing it.  
Put more public toilets 
Putting more things to do in the area. More pubs, more places for entertainment so that people are not left to street drinking for fun. I go to the gym for 
fun and that should not be the only thing I can do and I understand why street drinkers exist here.

P
age 129



Reduce the alcohol licensed premises
Regular patrols
Remove offenders. We need a homeless shelter in Hatfield
Restrict the local shop from serving cheaper drinks to the polish
Review licences of all shops selling alcohol in the town & Provide piscines or wheelie bin compostable urinals like they do in london at night time
Rough sleeps need help
Sort it out 
Street drinking- Effective community policing and CCTV, directing CPO's to where they can be effective rather than random patrolling. Begging- 
Effective community policing and CCTV, directing CPO's to where they can be effective rather than random patrolling. Rough sleepers- Regular sweeps 
of local haunts of the homeless. Public urination or defecation- Effective community policing and CCTV, directing CPO's to where they can be effective 
Street drinking- Fine or arrest. Begging- Remove from area or arrest. Rough sleepers- House's or deport. Public urination or defecation- fine or arrest. 
Street drinking- Hatfield should be a no drink zone with an on the spot fine or community service. Begging- arrest and more CCTV in the Town Centre. 
Rough sleeping- help them by having a homeless centre. Public urination or defecation- arrest them, make them clean it up. 
Street drinking- make it law. 
Street drinking- Refuse to sell single cans of beer. More cameras to control drugs. Bigger Police presence. Begging- Control the drug addicts who beg. 
Public urination or defecation- Free public toilets. 
Street Drinking: Ban drinking in area AL10 0LU 
Street drinking: educate the non-local residents to basic behavioral codes. Rough Sleepers: Additional support/services hostel / shelter information. 
Public Urination and defecation: CCTV - prosecution / enforced clean up
Street Drinking: Give ASBO's to the individuals
Street Drinking: Inforce tougher cans. Begging: Ditto. Rough sleepers: Provide them a place to go
Street Drinking: Is there anywhere i can have contact no to report? is it 101? 
Street Drinking: shop keepers. PCSO to report & have action taken. Begging: As above. Public Urination or defecation: + Fines as stated on signs.
the street is intimidating and illegal
Strick fine
The litter problem would be partially alleviated if litter bins were provided along the footway.
The main thing is that I dont have any lights on the stairs near the flat and like I said before, street drinking poblem urination are the worst critical for me. 
I would really appriciate if PSPO would check this things more often for me.  
The park in question is also a main walk through to and from onslow school and countess ann school
The police !!! You very rearly see any police presents and when your you di don’t seem the slightest be bothered by the things that are happening 
around them !! Arrest those who are breaking the law in many way such as drinking in no drinking zones, carrying and taking drugs, being drunk and 

P
age 130



There needs to be regular police presence in around the town centre as they need to crack down on the people who are causing such fright and anxiety 
to people. The rough sleeping there should be somewhere provided by the Coucil to allow these people somewhere to sleep even if it’s a hall floor at 
Too many shops selling alcohol now too easily available 
top shops selling alcohol late at night
Tougher rules and more strict. 
Unless something is put in place to deal with these issues it will just continue as it has done for many years
Use current polices to deal with situation
What's the point, nothing will be done / change anyway. Half the PCSO are frightened of them anyway or stand and laugh with them
Written in first question comment box
Zero tolerance & CCTV that works

P
age 131



please make them below. It is important to highlight that in order for any PSPO to be legally binding and enforceable the council must evidence that 
activities that have taken place have had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of local people, or it is likely that activities will take place and they will 
have a detrimental effect on the quality of life
and preceeding behaviors from my flat (9th october possibly) I was asked if i would be prepared to make a statement. I agreed but have not been yet required to do 
so.   2) Police were called to rough sleepers about 1 year ago in the communal ground floor of my block of flats. A PCSO came and confirmed it was a crime and sent 
an email to property management company. Subsequently more secure locks/doors were installed but at the residents cost.
A walk around Hatfield after sunset makes evident the need for this PSPO. There are people drinking, they are being loud, and they leave litter all over the place. 
All the evidence you need on social media every day or night of the week!!!!
attached to lamp columns no action is taken. Empty cans litter the road and hedgerows and left to the residents to clear up. You might as well put up notices saying 
Hatfield is open house to all offenders unless you are actually caught perpetrating an offence. For all the notice taken of public signs attached to lamp columns, there 
would be no appreciative increase in offences as nobody takes notice unless Policed.   For any effective PSPO there must be evidence of wrong doing either first 
hand visual evidence from policing agent or member of the public that can be used in evidence in any prosecution. As the number of policing agents is severely 
restricted due to budgetary constraints any order made without the requisite back up is about as useless as a chocolate teapot.   A PSPO backed up by CCTV 
directing CPO's direct to the offence as it takes place is effective and can be seen to be effective, and in time becomes the deterrent that is it intended. Revenue from 
the fines imposed from successful prosecutions could be ring fenced to pay for the running of it.   Evidence is available from a number of Towns and locations up and 
down the country who have introduced this type of deterrent and found that the number of offences were markedly reduced where it was evident that somebody may 
drug use, sleeping is just something humans need to do, so I feel it would be wildly unfair to treat homeless rough sleepers who aren't drinking or high with anything 
other than compassion. Having said that, this PSPO sounds like a smashing solution to some of the problems the town faces, so more power to you and full steam 
ahead!
Asda at night especially on a Sunday is a race track and someone I’d going to end up getting hurt if asda refuse to report it they should be fined 
Cycling in the town also cycling on the path in the common
Cycling throughout all areas of the town centre is a major problem. Vehicles driving into Market Place at all times, some of them at speed.    Feeding the pigeons
in the area.     Lower the price of bus tickets to encourage travel around Herts if things to do in Hatfield is not possible. I would DEFINITELY consider a year travel 
card for a cheaper price! this will help the uni, as well as encouraging travel. See Canterbury's stagecoach, a £200 year long ticket for the whole of kent and it makes 
a lot of money, encourages the use of a bus instead of cars and provides some enjoyment for the people of hatfield. I shouldn't have to use a taxi.    I believe my 
quality of life has definitely been affected because I am worried of taking much longer walks at night with the types of people I pass.Asda at night is very popular full of 
students and that's worrying too.
Drinkers, and Rough Sleepers, should have someone, come along to talk to, and get advice. Perhaps for example some one from Social services.
Drinking and begging intimidates people using the town. Litter and filth caused by these people ensures that people go elsewhere to shop. Please clean our town up.
Drinking seems o go with begging & urination. ASBOs!
Hatfield has become a very dirty place rubbish strewn about and beer cans. People dumping large items in streets, unsocial behaviour by lot's of people. 
given up on hatfield now.
How confident can a resident feel that if implemented, A PSPO preventing ASB will be treated any differently to say, a PSPO preventing bicycle riding on pavements, 
which attracts mil response from PCSO's (I have witnessed this)

P
age 132



vibrant town centre
benches within 10 metres of ATM machines in Hatfield Town Centre.    In relation to rough sleeping and homelessness, the myriad reasons for the increase in this 
are down to wide government policy and those that find themselves in this situation are unable to either be helped or dissuaded by being fined money that they do not 
have.     It should be noted that street drinking is not something that will go away because the area has these controls put on them, it will simply move elsewhere.    
Where people drink together outdoors due to circumstance or culture, I believe this is a business opportunity for an early morning/night café to serve those working 
unsociable hours.    Where the issue is one of addiction though, it needs to be understood that they will simply move somewhere else, most likely close by. Subways 
are likely, indeed this is already happening and this would have a distinct impact given that for pedestrians this is still a common route into the town.     Special 
attention should be given to making sure the subways do not become the new home for problem drinkers, but ultimately I hope the Council is able to continue to work 
with and assist organisations that actively have outreach programmes to try to assist these people out of the situations they are in.    In relation to cycling, as is 
mentioned, this is already covered by existing powers, however I note this is rarely enforced. I question, however important cycling is to improve health and reduce 
I am more concerned about the number of vans that drive through the town centre every day (Including WH Council) The damage to the new parking and the litter
I am not sure how one can give concrete evidence of this except in the low numbers of people visiting the town. Apart from Asda. Even here people will access from 
the main Asda carpark and leave that way. Who wants to be witness to anti-social behaviour? It casts a cloud over the day.
there 
I don't know if Hatfield has a homeless shelter or somewhere for the genuinely troubled and abandoned people to go, but a centre or shelter where they can be 
helped, sleep, fed or can wash would go a long way to helping them and helping the local community. Most people just need guidance and support to improve their 
situation. And if someone is genuinely mentally ill they need even more support, and I don't think that can be found at the bottom of a can of cider. 
I don't think street drinking is a priori a problem. It may be the cause of anti-social behaviour in some cases, but could there not be a PSPO or other bye-law against 
that behaviour instead of drinking? It is possible to drink and not bother anybody. 
I Feel insecure to pass by fearing attack or a bottle of beer be spraying over
I have lived and worked in hatfield for the past 30 years and have seen lots of changes. Both good and bad. I have never seen such a large drink, drugs, and rough 
sleeper problem though.    I'm thinking about leaving the town.
street drinking, that would be a start. 
hiding their "stash" in the toilet cistern in the shop. That is why there is a permanent "out of order" sign on the door although it works perfectly.     I think a PSPO 
should cover all shopping areas as i have noticed some of them outside and around ALDI (Clarkson Court area) and birchwood (Co-Op end) I fear a PSPO just for 
the area stated will drive them to other areas.
a huge parking problem with people leaving there cars all day and using the trains.  With a school here too, Its a serious problem that needs sorting out, before 
someone gets run over. 
I should be able to walk around the town centre without fear of stepping in urine, being approached for money, picking my way through disgusting mess left by the 
drinkers and PLEASE DO SOMETHING ABOUT THE DOGS!!
addicts and alcoholics show. Who the he'll allowed the off licence which allows them to get drink so easily, asda has security that can stop them entering but the off 
licence doesnt
I’ve had a run in with a certain person Who continuously begs and drinks and does drugs in around the town and often people find her in the hallways of blocks of 
flats etc it’s very intimidating and it make me want to move out of the town

P
age 133



If the PSPO works in the designated area then consideration should be given to those out to all smaller parades of shops. Hatfield garden village, Hilltop, Cavendish, 
Ground Lane / St Albans Road East, Crawford Road, Birchwood. Following six months of absolute hell the police have now removed a drug dealer from St Michaels 
Close but the meeting areas around these smaller shop parades are a constant eye saw
If we could have radios in the shops then we could get hold of them when needed
the area 
If you drive the out of town, where will they then hang out?
Im a queensway resident  I think the police should be patrolling in the staircase on a regular basis, I could even let them in at anytime if needed.
It has been reported to the WH Housing but nothing has been done
It is unsafe after dark to go into the town center.
It’s not just drinking that need tackling what about the druggies 
Just make this zone town Centre it will push them out on to our streets that we live in or children's park areas why not make it zero tolerance everywhere.          
Mabey to make the area more attractive and more lighting, so that the alley and dark corners especially the amount of litter and bins around it looks like drop-out-vile 
at the moment, A well lit attractive place would be less of a place to defecate / sleep and drink, hopefully.    
we have had grafitti for several years on a retaining wall for which there has been no attempt of removal. Public grass & hedges / shurbs have not been touched for at 
least 10 months, resulting in messy, overgrown, untended areas. After six months of raising this matter the areas have had a cut on the grass areas hopefully will be 
continued. The road and paths are poorly finished with unever surface / potholes.  The lighting in OFHL is old, therefore relatively inefficient, and sketched of each 
night. The street only has houses to one side, overlooked by very tall, dense trees. There is a suprising number of lone males and small groups down this lane 
through night. Plenty of areas to conceal oneself and take drugs and have sex.   Returning home late at night can unmoving; please can we install solar street lighting 
retired. I dont think anyone knows what goes on in the park better than i do. I speak to the guys who try there best to keep the park tidy but they also get very 
frustrated with the mess that is left even though bins are supplied there its almost becoming a daily chore. Small fires have been started in the park before now, and I 
have approached the people concerned but all you get is abuse and (what are you going to do about it) one day there will be a big problem. As far as the town centre 
goes the greens between goldings house and the pedestrain crossing is always a mess, there is only one waste bin , it either needs emptying on a daily basis or to be 
more efficient just add more bins
Old rectory drive and surrounding streets have become a car park for the ststaion all day. dust bin collections unable to collect due to volume of cars. new houses to 
be built will increase the problem. excisition car park in links drive always full. third world country. dangerous
Once the PSPO goes to them to stop them and chat, straight once they leave the same problem starts again. 
People hate hatfield
people spending time in our bins storage on evenings/nights. Drinking, swearing, taking drugs  Please help us - St Peters Close
People urinating in the street is not going to make people come shopping to the town centre, the elderly are coming down to the town and then having to deal with 
beggers, its intimidating for them to be in the town with large groups of people sitting round drinking
drinking. 
Poes it need to be on Road housing Estates   No Problem with town centre and public places
Q1. A business owner and shopkepper, we are seeing the same people over and over again stealing from my store and dealing drugs.
Q1. Hope it can be extended to all Hatfield parks in the future  Q2. All Hatfield parks  Q11. Consider introducing PSPO for litter & dog poo please

P
age 134



Q1. I think this is a good step to take, and very necessary.     Q2. Yes the park off Old Hatfield Road, behind Holliers Court    Q11. I fully agree with the proposals, and 
I think if they are improved it would be a vast improvement to Hatfield Town Centre. My question is would it even last without very strong legal enforcement.
Q1. Most of the drinking occurs in the proposed control zone area.    Q2. St Albans Road West drink cans & drinks on benches outside flats.     Family & Friends from 
other towns, say Hatfield TC not suitable place to shop in comfort and safety would not take children to TC anymore. 
comment on other adjacent areas. 
of Woods Avenue
Q1. Why doesn't it cover Old Hatfield  Q2. As above, especially Salisbury Sq    Any PSPO needs to be enforced where are the roots on the streets to enforce it?
Q1. Woods close should be included  Q2. Wood close as they i.e drinkers etc also hang about there aswell
Q1: Need to deal with drug issue related problems eg. Lotering in groups outside and in side flats and shops which i see on a day to day basis. Big problem in 
Galleycroft Court.    Q2. Hatfield Town (Old market place) The common (Back of flats) (In the stair case area and in bin area too.
Q1: Still to many drinking and taking drugs in town centre also begging, sleeping in shop doorways    Q2. Under passes - drink and drugs    Q13. Boy racers racing 
cars up and down queensway & cavandsh way at night. Speed taps in the day but none in the evening when it is at it's worst
Q2. Parkhouse court, Harpsfield Broadway, parts of comet way, Goldsmith Way, Aviation Avenue, and Tamblin Way. Other areas i have recieved reports from 
constituents that there is an anti-social behavioral problem
Q2. Possibly hatfield garden village
Q2: It's a common street. The bench from Curou point and area around the pallmers shop. The reason is: all days, every day there are people who drink alcohol and 
sleeping in the bench, they hook peoples and kids and want money. My son and friend are afraid of them. Drunk people shouting, swearing and make area dirty.
culprits are teenages    Question 2: This survey requires a public meeting where residents can air their views, see no sense of all questions which can not be 
answered in full.
for but not people
Question 1:No evidence to support such a large zone
Question 2: ALL OF HATFIELD - Hill Top area
raise the standards   increase standards  New movers   more money  more investment
state of mind.
Some area's need attention
Street drinking encourages the use of potential further substance abuse which attracts other worse crimes in the area such as burglaries.
Suggest we have more camera.
The  street drinking in Hatfield town centre definitely spoils the attractiveness of the town centre, the pleasure of visiting it, and the quality of life of living in Hatfield. 
this area also
The current issues highlighted in this document are having a negative impact on businesses and the perception of the town centre 
The only real concern I have is the cycling in the shopping area in Hatfield where no cycling areas are displayed in large letters. This occurs regularly and makes me 
feel anxious when they come within inches of me.
The town centre has become a place that no longer attracts outsiders.    It's an intimidating and scary place.    
hounded for spare change.

P
age 135



This antisocial behaviour definitely has a detrimental effect on the quality of our life. 
We Hate going in to town , would rarther get a bus any where else Than be asked for money and see piss heads fighting.
We need police on foot patrol in the evenings and to visit local parks, underpasses, and town centres especially on weekends, bank holidays 
We were not aware that hollier court was included in this zone until we received this information from you. There is certainly nothing on lamp posts etc...    The 
problem we have has been over the last couple of years only.
Where do the beggers go   We need to help them, pick them up take them to help - if they dont take help and keep repeating the behaviour then use the courts to 
make them. Involve families, friends local people - make others want to help others   We have huge issues with parking in hatfield - use these people to help address 
this and pay them  Huge issues with tress and greenery and ioen spaces.  Get them to take pride in where they live - raise their self esteem , support their needs get 
them to help make this a community 
You have to cover the park in park meadow.
rot in the town

P
age 136



 
 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT SCREENING 
 

Title 
 

Public Space Protection Order 

Lead Officer 
 

 

Service 
 

Housing and Community Services 

Date Created 
 

28/06/2017 

Review Date 
 

 

 
1. What is the title of policy, strategy, function, procedure or project? 

 
Public Space Protection Order 
 
2. Is this a new or existing process? 

 
New process to be introduced to replace current designated public protection order 
in place in Hatfield Town Centre. 
 
3. What is the aim and key objectives of this process? 
 
To use new powers to reduce impact of anti-social behaviour linked to street 
drinking, begging and rough sleeping 
 
4. What are the main activities of this process? 

 
To allow police and other accredited officers to request that persons engaging in 
anti-social behavioru refrain from doing so and taking action if they refuse. 
 
5. Who are the main stakeholders of this process (e.g. councillors, employees, 

residents, local authorities / other housing providers, police, health, etc.)? 
 
Town council, businesses, local authority, police and residents 
 
6. What outcomes are wanted from the process? 
 
That businesses and public are not affected by anti-social behaviour caused by 
persons engaging in such behaviour in Hatfield town centre and Parkhouse Court 
 
7. Are there any factors that might prevent the outcomes being achieved (e.g. 

funding, staffing, political, economic change)? 

Page 137



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Not if procedures are followed 
 
8. Describe what consultation has been undertaken on this process, who was 

involved and the main outcomes. 
 
Businesses and local users of the town centre, partners of the CSP.  Further 
consultation will be undertaken once approved 
 
9. Has any other data been used to help with the process development or review? 

Please outline what and how. 
 
Police data on reported anti-social behaviour 
 
10. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on age?  Why is this? 
 
No impact – there are a variety of persons of all ages linked to anti-social behaviour 
in the locations to be covered by the order.  Positive impact – perception of crime 
and anti-social behaviour will reduce particularly amongst the older generation 
 
11. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on gender?  Why is this? 
 
No impact 
 
12. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on sexual orientation?  Why is this? 
 

No impact 
 
13. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on race?  Why is this? 
 
No impact 
 
14. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on religion / belief?  Why is this? 
 
No impact 
 
15. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on disability?  Why is this? 
 
No impact 
 
16. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on gender reassignment?  Why is this? 

Page 138



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
No impact 
 
17. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on marriage / civil partnership?  Why is this? 
 
No impact 
 
18. Do you consider the process could have a negative, positive or neutral / no 

impact on pregnancy and maternity?  Why is this? 
 
No impact 
 
19. Please outline from the questions 10 -18 whether the proposed process either 

disadvantages or puts any group(s) at risk. 
 
None 
 
20. If, in your judgment, the proposed process has a negative impact, can this 

impact be justified? 
 
N/A 
 
21. If the impact cannot be justified, what can be done to improve access / take up 

of the process or remove the risk? 
 
N/A 
 
22. If there is no evidence to show the process promotes equality, equal 

opportunity or improved relations, can it be adapted so it does? 
 
N/A 
 
23. Does this process need to go on to a full assessment? 
 
No 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



SOCIAL OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2017-2018 

 
MEETING DATE 

 
REPORT TOPIC 

 
AUTHOR 

 

 
PRESENTATIONS and/or 

EXTERNAL PARTIES 

 
22 November 2017 

Health and Wellbeing action plan update 
Finesse Monitoring Report – Q2 
Performance Indicator Report Quarter 2 
Equality and Diversity Policy/update 
Safeguarding – Our New Approach 
Health Scrutiny update 

Jeannette Hollingsworth 
Paul Underwood 
Paul Underwood 
Simone Russell 
Simone Russell 
Fiona Thomson 

Presentation JHB 
 
Finesse Leisure 
 
Presentation 
Health Scrutiny Committee 

 
17 January 2018 

 
Community Safety and Crime and Disorder 
Update 
Safeguarding Policy/update 
PSPO outcome of consultation and 
recommendation 
 

 
Matt Rayner 
 
Simone Russell 
Kerry Clare 
 
 

 
 
Hertfordshire Police 
Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue 
The Probation Service 
 
 

 
11 April 2018 

Finesse Monitoring Report – Q3 
Performance Indicator Report Quarter 3 
Museum Service Annual Report 
CW Entertainment Annual Report 2017-2018 
Youth and Sports/Town Centre Annual Report 
Empty Homes update 

Paul Underwood 
Paul Underwood 
Linda Dobbs 
Mark Woolman 
Matt Rayner 
Kerry Clare 

Finesse Leisure 

Post April 2018 Public Health and Wellbeing Strategy Jeannette Hollingsworth  

 

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 ACTIONS UPDATE
	8 SAFEGUARDING ADULTS AT RISK AND SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN POLICIES
	8a - Safeguarding Adults at Risk Policy (Jan18) v.4
	8b - WHBC Safeguarding Children Policy (Jan18) v.4

	9 COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIPS ANNUAL REPORT 2017
	10 PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER
	10a - Public Space Protection Order Appx A
	10b - Public Space Protection Order Appx B
	10c - Public Space Protection Order Appx C
	10d1 - Public Space Protection Order Appx D
	Q1 The PSPO area will cover the areas highlighted in the information leaflet or in the FAQ sheet. Do you think the proposed control zone area is?
	Q2 Are there any areas which adjoin the proposed PSPO area in Hatfield where you feel we should consider implementing this PSPO?
	Q3 Do you consider any of the following to be a problem in the proposed PSPO area?
	Q4 If you have answered YES to any of the above how often do you feel this problem behaviour has occurred?
	Q5 With regards to the above, please give an indication of the times of day the problem behaviour(s) happen.
	Q6 Do you consider any of the following to have an impact on you and/or the local community in the proposed control zone? (please consider the environment, local businesses, safety of residents and visitors to the town centre).If answering YES to any of the questions below, please provide further details.
	Q7 If you answered yes to either of the questions above, do you think a PSPO would help address the impact/problem? Please provide further details to explain your answer.
	Q8 How safe do you feel in the proposed PSPO area during the following times?
	Q9 If you have answered unsafe or relatively unsafe to any of the above please can you provide further details to explain further in terms of where (specific location) and when (weekday, time) you feel this way.
	Q10 Again if you answered unsafe or relatively unsafe to question 8 please explain further why you felt and/or feel unsafe or relatively unsafe in that place.
	Q11 How long would you like to see the proposed PSPO be put in place for? Please note that a PSPO cannot be implemented for longer than 3 years without review.
	Q12 Do you have any further comments or alternative measures that could be used to deal with the following:
	Q13 If you have any specific comments or other items that you feel are important to highlight with regards to the proposed implementation of this PSPO please make them below. It is important to highlight that in order for any PSPO to be legally binding and enforceable the council must evidence that activities that have taken place have had a detrimental effect on the quality of life of local people, or it is likely that activities will take place and they will have a detrimental effect on the quality of life
	Q14 Are you?
	Q15 Gender
	Q16 What is your age group?
	Q17 How would you define your ethnicity?
	Q18 Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
	Q19 What is your residential or business postcode?
	Q20 Contact details- completing this section is optional

	10d2 - PSPO Consultation Results for Report
	10e - Public Space Protection Order Appx E

	11 COMMITTEE OVERVIEW WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18

